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MILESTONE
BREE

07/2017

e The Reorganisation Proposal
became effective, with CPCE
replaced CPNE as the listing vehicle
of the Group
BHEARER  PEFREEFREIR
K EHER  KASREE LT
B

e Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an
Photovoltaic Power Project
commenced commercial operation
with an installed capacity of 20MW
BREAL —H20KEHREEIE
BRABFRES

e Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Photovoltaic
Power Project commenced

06/2017 commercial operation with an
e Fujian Zhangpu Photovoltaic Power Project commenced operation at installid capacity of 2.5MW
N e JI Ny )
the maximum installed capacity of 80MW RN k%iiwhﬁfﬂjﬁé BIH
N S N — all My vEm
BREROKEAREEEE 2R ERE EEEONCES

e Zhejiang Yunhe Photovoltaic Power Project commenced commercial
operation with an installed capacity of 5.24MW
AIEMNRBEEBIEE » 524K AFEEL

- 2017

o

02/2017 2017

e Mr. Wang Fengxue
was appointed as an
executive director
TRELEEEZTAR
HITESF

2017
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MILESTONE
BERw
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s DTN CLASTE

BY WS pRER Sl TRl

10/2017 S0 i A e

e German Bonen Wind Power Project was conferred
“2017 Green Energy Innovation Award” by CFEID b R— E
fEEBonen /@ /13 B IH B SR 2B E A AT |i
Bk B2 |(CFEID)IX T HY201 74K [ 4% €8 B IR Bl 3 22 | = -

08/2017 ———— 17
e Mr. Zhou Jiong 1
was appointed as - Fr{
a non-executive . 2017 -
director ' ol 4 .
BB 0’“
RIFVTES 2017

11/2017

e Henan Shangqiu
Waste-to-energy
Power Project
was approved

0] B 7 by 3 B
FIHAESRE
09/2017
e Anhui Wuhu Waste-to-energy Power Project
commenced commercial operation with an 12/2017

installed capacity of 24MW sharehold d th . A
A S . == Y ) °
24K A R E IR A E hareholders approved the cooperation wi
o Financial established by SPIC
ERFRKRREB  BERERIN IO BERER
e Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Wind Power B R A 1E
Project commenced commercial operation
with an installed capacity of 80MW

WAL TR 4608 1180k FLR ) S B I A A approved
é;ggq ek ERIERAR & LT LR, B A B R

=

e Hubei Macheng Guishan Wind Power Project was




6 CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

MILESTONE
B

2016

e Phase Il of Guangdong Dongguan Natural Gas Power Project
fully commenced commercial operation with an installed
capacity of 940MW

e Phase Il of Hainan Haikou Waste-to-energy Power Project fully
commenced commercial operation with an installed capacity
of 24MW

e Every ten shares were consolidated into one share with the
board lot size changed to 500

e Sichuan Panzhihua Photovoltaic Power Project successfully
commenced operation of the part with an installed capacity of
34.32MW

2015

e China Power Investment Corporation (a substantial
shareholder) and State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation
jointly reorganized into State Power Investment Corporation
Limited

e Gansu Anbei Wind Power Project fully commenced commercial
operation with an installed capacity of 600MW

e An agreement was entered into to construct a photovoltaic
power plant with an installed capacity of 50MW in Panzhihua,
Sichuan province

e The Group won the bid of the waste-to-energy power plant
project in Deyang, Sichuan province, and was granted to
exclusive franchise operation with a term of 25 years

TEENBREFRERERAR

20164

ERE T Ho40k A AR I EIA
B2 AREET

e B4R REBIEE 2
HERABFET

B S10REHEIREENREFE
E B (74500

PO BERAESRIEB B - 34.320KEL
g4 2

20154

IERRTPEENREEEEEARZ
BRMARMAER  KLEKE
KRESEARRAA
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2014

The Group increased its shareholding in Dongguan China
Power New Energy Heat and Power Company Limited to
100%

The Group won the bid of two 12MW waste-to-energy power
generation projects with a total daily waste processing capacity
of 1,200 tonnes in Wuhu, Anhui

The Group won the bid of the wind power generation project
of 80MW in Chunyangshan, Macheng

The Group entered into a franchise operation agreement in
respect of Guiyang Huaxi Waste-to-energy Power Project

2013

The Group completed the acquisition of German Bénen Wind
Power Project with an installed capacity of 8MW

The Group introduced Guangdong Electric Power Design
Institute Co., Ltd. of China Energy Engineering Group as a
shareholder

The Group acquired 100% equity interest in Yunnan Yingjiang
Hongfu Industrial Company Limited (B &/ LB E 2 A 7))
and Huimin Hydropower Company (EER/KE X A])

The hydropower company in Meixihe, Chongging fully
commenced commercial operation with an installed capacity
of 129MW

20144

BIEERERENERAEERAAE
100% A% A&

TRERR2E12IKE - BRREREES
1,200 57 2 EIE B HIZ

s AERZ LI80JK FLR B IR B iR

BI57EE R I B BTG
BipE

20135

e BB EEIBonenf8IKFLE 13 &
HAE

BIATEERERERERAENR
SRR AR

WEEEATEREEAFTMBERK
TR F1100% A% HE

EEEZEN129KF/KEAREEIR
A EIET
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BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

EBRUMBRE

Revenue and tariff adjustment

WAREEFRE
(RMB000)
(ARETT)

4,820,975

4,726,592

Earnings per share (Basic)

BREBFN(EX)

(RMB)

(AR¥)
0.3385
0.3409

Profit before tax
BRELARA
(RMB'000)
(AR¥ETT)

665,154

Controlled installed capacity
ERERAE

(MW)
(KEL)

3,903.43

3,732.73

REVENUE AND TARIFF ADJUSTMENT BY BUSINESS SEGMENTS

BEBIBZWAREERAR

Profit attribute to equity
holders of the Company
AP FERETE ARGER

(RMB’000)
(ARETT)

401,702

404,536

Power generation
(MWh)
(KTTEF)

9,940,496.33

10,163,677.42

2017 2016

Natural gas power
RAREE

Al \Vaste-to-energy power
HIREE

. (087 \Wind power

[EHEE

Photovoltaic power

RREE

P4 Hydropower

KIEE

WAZN Other

EHth

4%

As of 31 December

HZ12H31H

2017 Percentage 2016 Percentage
20175 {5124 20164 ke

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT AREBFIT

Natural gas power KAREE

(including tariff adjustment) (BEEBHAE) 2,742,734 56.9% 2,959,194 62.6%
Waste-to-energy power hIREE 320,953 6.7% 293,874 6.2%
Wind power B2 E 870,029 18.0% 663,173 14.0%
Photovoltaic power NRBEE 317,579 6.6% 209,716 4.4%
Hydropower KNEE 430,737 8.9% 501,742 10.6%
Other Hith 138,943 2.9% 98,893 2.2%
4,820,975 100% 4,726,592 100%
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DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS
HE 7 fhE

WELL-ESTABLISHED
PLATFORMS WITH
VARIOUS RENEWABLE
PROJECTS
AEEZETBERRER

ZEETVE

Total installed capacity *

MERRE

3,903.43 ix

anﬁan *as at 31 December 2017

NATURAL GAS POWER
RARBE

“HZE20178128318

No.

w5

Project Name

HE AR

Phase | of Guangdong Dongguan Project
BRFE=—HEE

Phase Il of Guangdong Dongguan Project
EREE_HIEE

Sub-total of natural gas power projects

Attributable

Installed Installed

Operating Entity Capacity Interest Capacity

(MW) (%) (MW)

PR AL KERE L BaEERE

(JKR) (%) (JKE)

Dongguan China Power New Energy Heat and 360.00 100.00 360.00

Power Company Limited*

R EHERAEAR AR

Dongguan China Power No. 2 Heat and 940.00 100.00 940.00

Power Company Limited*
REPEE_REERAA

RARBEBIEA /NEt 1,300.00 1,300.00
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DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS o
HE 7

WASTE-TO-ENERGY POWER

e
WIRBE
Attributable
Installed Installed
No.  Project Name Operating Entity Capacity Interest Capacity
(MW) (%) (MW)
fwic REEME PR AL RRRE Rz ERERRE
CKR) (%) (KR
3 Yunnan Kunming Project Kunming China Power Environmental 30.00 100.00 30.00
EFEEMRIER Power Company Limited*
RHAFERRENEGRAA]
4 Phase | of Hainan Haikou Project China Power International New Energy 24.00 100.00 24.00
BREO—HIEA Hainan Company Limited*
EERFEEREEER QA
5 Phase Il of Hainan Haikou Project Haikou China Power Environmental Protection 24.00 100.00 24.00
BEE0 —HEA Company Limited*
BORBRIRERAA
6 Anhui Wuhu Project Wu Hu China Power Environmental Power 24.00 100.00 24.00
ZREIAER Company Limited*
P ERREEARDA

Sub-total of waste-to-energy power projects iﬁﬂﬁé‘élﬁ B/\at 102.00 102.00
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WIND POWER
BEAH%E

11

No.

w55

20

Project Name

HE AR

Phase | of Gansu Jiuguan Project

HEER—HRAE

Phase Il of Gansu Jiuquan Project

HEER—EE

Phase Ill of Gansu Jiuquan Project
HEER=HER

Phase IV of Gansu Jiuguan Project
HEBERMAIER

Phase V of Gansu Jiuquan Project
HRBRAHER

Gansu Anbei Project
HMLILEE

Heilongjiang Hongai Project
BETAEIER

Heilongjiang Hailang Project
RELSRER

Jiangsu Dafeng Project
TERABIEE

Inner Mongolia Chayou Zhonggqi Project
AEEHRAHEER

Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Project
LR AL LB R

German Bonen Project
f=EBsnenId B

Shanghai Sea Wind Project
bEeEsRIER

Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project
EBERIEIER

Sub-total of wind power projects!

Operating Entity

P B AL

Gansu China Power Jiuguan Wind Power
Company Limited*

HRPEERANEEERAF

Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 2 Wind Power
Company Limited*
HETEERE—RHEEERAF

Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 3 Wind Power
Company Limited*
HEhEERE=RAHEEERAF

Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 4 Wind Power
Company Limited*
HEhEHRENRNEEERAF

Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 5 Wind Power
Company Limited*
HRTEERELRNZEEERAR

Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 3 Wind Power
Company Limited*
HERPRERRE=RAHEEHRAA

Hailin China Power Honggi Wind Power
Company Limited*
BN BAER S EERRAF]

Hailin China Power Hailang Wind Power
Company Limited*
BT EGREANEERRAF]

China Power Dafeng Wind Power
Company Limited*
HEAYANETERAT

China Inner Mongolia Wind Power
Company Limited*
PREARGENEBERAT

Hubei China Power Chunyangshan Wind Power
Company Limited*
MR EMBILRAERR AR

Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG
Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG

Shanghai Donghai Wind Power Company Limited*

FERERNBEEERAA

Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Wind Power
Company Limited*
FEERICERNEEER AT

R FHEIEE NEt

Installed
Capacity
(MW)
KBRS
(KR

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

200.25

49.50

80.00

8.00

102.00

48.00

1,509.50

Interest
(%)
ez
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

13.18

20.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity
(MW)
BRERAS
(KR)

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

200.25

49.50

80.00

8.00

13.44

9.60

1,509.50
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DISTRIBUTION OF PROJECTS
HE 7 E

== PHOTOVOLTAIC POWER
1 knnE

Attributable
Installed Installed
No.  Project Name Operating Entity Capacity Interest Capacity
(MW) (%) (MW)
w9t HERBE FfT 8 Bz KBNS Rz RRERAE
(kE) (%) €5:5)
21 Phase | of Gansu Wuwei Project Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic Power 20.00 100.00 20.00
HeR e —8Ea Company Limited*
HETPERBLREERRAA
22 Phase Il of Gansu Wuwei Project Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic Power 30.00 100.00 30.00
HERE—HEA Company Limited*
HBETRERBLREERRAA
23 Phase | of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic Power 20.00 100.00 20.00
HEOHR—HEA Company Limited*
HBETPEARAREERRAA
24 Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic Power 30.00 100.00 30.00
HERHR_HEA Company Limited*
HBTFEORAREERRAA
25 Phase Ill of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic Power 15.00 100.00 15.00
HRAB=HER Company Limited*
HETFEORAREERRAA
26 Gansu Guazhou Project Gansu China Power Jiuguan No 3 Wind Power 8.00 100.00 8.00
HRRINIER Company Limited
HRPEERE=RANEEERAA
27 Hainan Changjiang Project China Power International New Energy Hainan 20.00 100.00 20.00
BmEIEE Company Limited Changjiang Branch*
P EERIEREEERARE LIS AR
28 Yunnan Yuanjiang Project Yuanjiang China Power Photovoltaic Power 20.00 100.00 20.00
EmTIER Company Limited*
TUIRERREEERRA]
29 Fujian Zhangpu Project Zhangpu China Power Photovoltaic Power 80.00 100.00 80.00
REEHRIER Company Limited*
BRTEAREETERAR
30 Sichuan Panzhihua Project Panzhihua China Power Photovoltaic Company 34.32 100.00 34.32
)| 2k rETE B Limited*
BRIERERRERAR
31 Jiangxi Ji‘an Project Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed Energy 14.07 70.00 9.85
IELIER Company Limited*
AP ERESHAERERAF
32 Guangdong Dongguan Huimei Project Dongguan Integrated Energy Company Limited* 0.80 70.00 0.56
BRFE=EXER R ARRERAR
33 Zhejiang Yunhe Project China Power Yunhe Photovoltaic Company 5.24 60.00 3.14
AT EFIEE Limited*
PEEMHREEERLQA
34 JiangxiJi'an Aoli Project Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed Energy 2.50 100.00 2.50
AT RYEIER Company Limited*
TR EREED A ERARAR
35 Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an Project Zhao'an China Power Photovoltaic Power Company 20.00 100.00 20.00
RBERL—HEAR Limited*
ALHERREEERAA
Sub-total of photovoltaic power projects HREBEEEE 5t 319.93 313.37
A ik h
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HYDROPOWER
KHBE
Attributable
Installed Installed
No.  Project Name Operating Entity Capacity Interest Capacity
(MW) (%) (MW)
fwIE JHARIE i B AL KBRS s BRERAS
OkR) (%) (kR)
36 Fujian Shaxikou Project CPI (Fujian) Power Development Limited* 300.00 100.00 300.00
BEMEOER B(RB)ENRBEBRAR
37 Fujian Niutoushan Project Fujian Shouning Niutoushan Hydropower 115.00 52.00 59.80
B EILIAER Company Limited*
RESELRIKERRAR
38 Fujian Zhangping Huakou Project Zhangping Huakou Hydropower 36.60 100.00 36.60
BRI TEOER Company Limited*
EPHEKERRAR
39 Chongging Meixihe Project Chongging Meixihe River Hydropower 129.00 100.00 129.00
EERRAER Development Company Limited*
EEBTEKEREFR AR
40 Yunnan Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial Project  Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial Company Limited* 64.00 100.00 64.00
EHATREERER BIREEXBRLIAF
41 Yunnan Yingjiang Huimin Project Yingjiang Huimin Hydropower Development 6.40 100.00 6.40
EHATIERER Company Limited*
BIGERKEREARAF
Sub-total of hydropower projects KN EIBE Nt 651.00 595.80
@ OTHER CLEAN ENERGY
g ek
= E'ﬂﬂ/ﬁ ;gﬁlé/ﬁ
Attributable
Installed Installed
No.  Project Name Operating Entity Capacity Interest Capacity
(MW) (%) (MW)
mIE AR EME T AL KERE 33 HEERAE
(JKR) (%) (KR)
42 Jiangsu Hongze Biomass Project China Power (Hongze) Biomass Thermal Power 15.00 100.00 15.00
IEORZEYEIRE Company Limited*
PECHE)ENEREFR AT
43 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal Power Project China Power (Hongze) Thermal Power 6.00 60.00 3.60
JLERLERETRE Company Limited*
PEGHE)AEBR AR
Sub-total of other clean energy projects HiEReeREE Nt 21.00 18.60
Aggregate Amount of Controlled Projects rEECEEEREL S 3,903.43 3,839.27
in Operation of the Group'
Note 1: The sub-total of wind power projects and the aggregate amount of controlled i1 RNREBEE /N REELEREBERAHTEE

projects in operation did not include Shanghai Sea Wind Project and Shanghai
Chongming Beiyan Project.

LiEBRIER Rk LERHAILGIER -
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B RAE R

Dear Shareholders,

2017 is a year of stability for China Power Clean Energy in all
aspects of its work. We always abide by the mission of a listed
company and earnestly fulfill our promises to create value for
shareholders and create clean energy for the society. In the
past year, the Group was committed to its principal business,
actively responded to the new norms of economic development,
new trends in energy reform, new strategies of the Group’s
development and other changes. We prevailed over the power
tariff reduction for renewable energy, inflating fuel prices
and increasingly stiff market competition. We stuck to safety
production strictly, and maintained stable operating results.

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2017

2017 saw China Power Clean Energy maintain its stable
development. During the year, China Power Clean Energy
recorded profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
of approximately RMB401,702,000, representing a year-on-year
decrease of 0.7%. Amidst multiple uncertainties, the Company
managed to make profits in all five segments, namely natural gas,
waste-to-energy power generation, wind power, photovoltaic
power and hydropower. Net profit of the Company remained
stable, mainly owing to an improving picture in the percentage
of wind and photovoltaic power curtailment. During the year, the
Company generated 9,940,496.33 MWh of electricity.

15

ERWFURR :

017FRHHENFRERSEIE
EARBEENH—F - HMBRKRISTE
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2017 F ¥ OB
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ARAREZHEEAREZNOARYE
401,702,0007C * RILERA0.7% » EZE
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
BB RMOER

During the year, the Group continued to increase the proportion
of its waste-to-energy power generation and natural gas power
generation projects, with the industrial layout optimised on an
ongoing basis. In 2017, the Group had a controlled installed
capacity of 3,903.43MW and an additional installed capacity of
170.7MW. In particular, Anhui Wuhu Waste-to-energy Power
Project (with an installed capacity of 24.0MW) is the first of its
kind undertaken by China Power Clean Energy in East China; and
operation also commenced as planned in photovoltaic power
projects such as Fujian Zhangpu Project (with an installed capacity
of 80.0MW) and Macheng Wind Power Project (with an installed
capacity of 80.0MW). In 2017, the Group also obtained approval
for multiple projects relating to waste-to-energy power generation
as well as photovoltaic and wind power generation. Such
approved projects are Phase Il of Anhui Wuhu Project, Liaoning
Beizhen Project, Henan Shanggiu Project, Hainan Qionghai Project
and Phase Ill of Haikou Waste-to-energy Power Project. The Group
received the reply on thermal power joint production from Jiangsu
Energy Administration in respect of Jiangsu Lianshui Thermal
Power Joint Production Project; and the Group received the reply
on the planning of thermal power joint production from Dezhou
municipal authorities in respect of Shandong Dezhou Natural Gas
Project. At the same time, the Group has made steady progress
in project engineering quality, obtaining the “2017 China Power
Quality Project Award” 2017FEFEE HEE Ti2%) and the
“2016-2017 National Quality Project Award” (2016-20174%
B (BE T#24%) for the Phase Il Expansion Project of Dongguan
Natural Gas Project for Thermal Power Joint Production. The
Company also won the 2017 “Green Energy Innovation Award”,
an award conferred by CFEID, for its wind power project in
Germany.
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LETTER TO SHAREHOLDERS
B RAOER

In 2017, with the strong support of all shareholders and the joint
efforts of all staff, China Power Clean Energy delivered stable
performance and completed most of its works. | would like to
express my sincere gratitude to the shareholders on behalf of the
Board and all the officers and staff!

PROSPECT FOR OPERATIONS IN 2018

China will push for high-quality development in 2018. On
one hand, as China embraced its “New Normal” in economic
development, national authorities will strenuously reform energy
production and consumption. Favorable policies will steer the
development of the new energy industry to a positive direction.
On the other hand, there will be a decline in electricity tariffs
for new energy, due to lower costs for power generation from
new energy and less government subsidy and support for new
energy. Overall, the “13th Five-Year Plan” has brought both
challenges and opportunities to the new energy industry, with
higher development quality to become a necessity. We will take
into account macro-economic changes and pay close attention
to the changes to main contradictions in the Chinese society. We
will comply with the requirement of high-quality development,
and stick to the supply-side structural reform as the underlying
principle. On top of that and with reference to the development
requirement of building a “World-class Enterprise”, the Group
will work harder on acquiring new energy resources, continue to
optimise its industrial layout and deliver economies of scale in its
region. We will also be engaged in greater development of waste-
to-energy power projects and natural gas power projects, look
for opportunities to develop integrated smart energy projects in
emerging industrial parks, prioritise the development of reserve
projects for wind and photovoltaic power generation in well-off
areas and those with no wind and photovoltaic curtailment. We
will enhance our safety production, project construction and other
areas of basic management in an all-round manner, work on
team building and staff capability development, and continue to
improve our operation, management and asset quality.

| firmly believe that all of the Company’s management and
staff will adhere to the core value of “innovation and creation,
continuous endeavor and harmonious coexistence” and the
entrepreneurial spirit of “green innovation and deployment”, and
continue to return outstanding achievements to shareholders and
the society.
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES

EE EARAEEERATIWEERN

Chairman of the Board

EEExR

Wang Binghua
IRE

Non-Executive Director

FHITES

Born in 1954
AR 19544F

Joined the Group
as a director since
30 December 2015,
and designated as a
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
B2015%12 308
MAREE RES -
WH201745A
EEm AR AT
FMITES

Other positions in the Group
Nomination Committee — Chairman

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Professor level senior engineer

Power system and automation — Wuhan University,
School of Water Resources and Hydropower
Engineering (formerly known as Wuhan University of
Hydraulic and Electric Engineering), Master’s degree

Other major offices
State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation —
Chairman (Since May 2015)

Public service

National Committee (Science and Technology) of
the 12th Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference — Member

Past offices

State Power Investment Corporation Limited (formerly
known as China Power Investment Corporation, an
indirect substantial shareholder of the Company) —
General manager; Chairman (Resigned in January
2018)

China National Nuclear Corporation — Deputy
general manager

State Power Corporation of China* — Head of
operation of power generation and transmission
department

China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Non-executive director and
Chairman of the Board (Resigned on 8 June 2017)

China Power International Holding Limited (the
holding company of China Power New Energy
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company)
— Chairman (Resigned in May 2017)
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Vice Chairman of the Board

ESERERE

Bi Yaxiong
20

Non-Executive Director

FHITES

Born in 1962
HER1962F

Joined the Group as
a director since

1 April 2013 and
designated as a
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
52013F4A18 A
TEBRES
WH201745A
BERRARRAT]
JEHITES

Other positions in the Group

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications

Electric System and Automation — South China
University of Technology (formerly known as South
China Institute of Technology), Bachelor’s degree

Technological Economics and Management —
Chongging University, PhD

Other major offices
China Southern Power Grid — Vice president (Since
December 2017)

Past offices
China Gezhouba Power Plant* — Factory director

China Yangtze Power Co., Ltd (SSEC: 600900) —
Deputy general manager; General manager; Director
(Resigned on 6 May 2015)

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) —
Vice president
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
EE SAREEBRATIMEESR

Chief Executive Officer

BFEHITE

He Hongxin
AATAL

Executive Director

HiTES

Born in 1970
ER1970F

Joined the Group as
a director since

1 April 2013, and
designated as an
executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
H2013F4A18 A
TEBRES
WH201745A
B AR AR
WITES

Other positions in the Group
Investment and Budget Management Committee —
Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications

Financial Accounting — Zhongnan University of
Economics and Law (formerly known as Zhongnan
University of Finance and Economics), Bachelor’s
degree

Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
— Peking University, Master’s degree

Other major offices

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) — Head
of the asset finance department (Since May 2017)

Past offices
Maanshan Iron & Steel Company Limited —
Accounting department

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited — Finance
department; Deputy head of the asset finance and
accounting department; Head of asset finance, audit
and accounting department; Deputy manager of the
capital finance department
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Other Directors
HihESE

Wang Fengxue
IR2

Executive Director

BITES

Born in 1963
AR 1963F

Joined the Group as

a director since

22 February 2017, and
designated as an
executive director

of the Company in
May 2017
2017628228 MA
TEBRES
WH201745A
BERRARRAT]
WiTES

Other positions in the Group

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Senior engineer

Electric Power Systems and Automation — North
China Electric Power University (formerly known as
North China Electric Power College), Master’s degree

Other major offices
State Power Investment Corporation Limited —
Nuclear power business director

State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation —
General manager; Party organisation member (Since
February 2017)

Past offices
Yuanbaoshan Power Generation Plant* — Chief
engineer

Chifeng Thermal Power Plant — Director

Jilin Electric Power Co., Ltd. — Chairman; Party
committee secretary

Jilin Energy and Transportation Co., Ltd. — General
manager; Party committee secretary

SPIC Northeast Electric Power Co., Ltd. (formerly
known as China Power Investment Corporation
Northeast Branch*) — General manager; Deputy
party organisation secretary

Shandong Nuclear Power Company Ltd. — General
manager; Deputy party committee secretary

State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation —
Deputy general manager; Party organisation member
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
EE SAREEBRATIMEESR

Zhao Xinyan
iz g

Executive Director

BiTES

Born in 1962
AR 19624

Joined the Group as
a director since

2 May 2007, and
designated as an
executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
B200745A2E A
rEERES -
WR201745 4
EEa RARE
WITES

Other positions in the Group
Investment and Budget Management Committee —
Chairman

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Senior engineer

Materials engineering — Chongqging University,
Bachelor’s degree

Master of Business Administration (MBA) — Peking
University, Guanghua School of Management,
Master’s degree

Other major offices

China Power New Energy Limited (a substantial
shareholder of the Company) — Director (Since
August 2006)

State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation —
Capital operation director; General manager of
department of capital operation (Since November
2016)

Past offices

China Power International Holding Limited (the
holding company of China Power New Energy
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company)
— Vice president; Assistant to the general manager

China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Managers of various departments;
Vice president

Companhia de Electricidade de Macau — Director
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BEE

Qi Tengyun

Executive Director

BITES

Born in 1969
L1969

Joined the Group

as a director since

19 August 2014,

and designated

as an executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
BE2014F8A19H A
WH201755 A

AL AARRT
WITES

REBBRAABEER

Other positions in the Group
Deputy general manager of the Company

Director of various subsidiaries of the Group

Qualifications

Mining Machinery — Shandong University of Science
and Technology (formerly known as Shandong
Institute of Mining and Technology), Bachelor’s
degree

Management Science and Engineering — China
University of Mining and Technology, Master’s
degree

Other major offices

China Power International New Energy Holding
Limited — Deputy general manager; Committee
member of the party (Since November 2014)

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited
(a substantial shareholder of the Company) —
Deputy general manager of General Office (the office
of the Board) (Since January 2017)

Past offices

Shandong University of Science and Technology
(formerly known as Shandong Institute of Mining
and Technology) — Deputy minister of the
department of students affairs and deputy head of
the student affairs’ office; Head of department of
student associations affairs of the Qingdao campus

China International Water & Electric Corp. — Deputy
head of the general manager office; Assistant
manager of the department of general affairs

China International Water & Electric Co., Ltd* —
Assistant manager of the department of general
affairs

China Water Investment Group Corp.* — Head of
the general manager office; Committee member of
the commission for discipline inspection; Secretary of
the youth league committee

China Three Gorges New Energy Co., Ltd.* (formerly
known as China Water Investment Group Corp.*) —
Assistant to general manager
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EE SAREEBRATIMEESR

Zhou Jiong
=ha)

Non-Executive Director

FHITES

Born in 1960
A 1960

Be appointed as a
non-executive director

of the Company since

18 August 2017
201798 A18HEZLE
RARBBERITES

Other positions in the Group

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Business Administration — University of Western
Sydney in Australia, Master’s degree

Other major offices
CNOOC Investment Co., Ltd. — General manager
(Since July 2017)

CNOOC International Financial Leasing Co., Ltd.* —
President (Since July 2017)

Past offices
CNOOC Bohai Oil Corporation* — Accountant of
external cooperation department

Japan-China Qil Development Corporation* —
Accountant

CNOOC-OTIS Well Completion Services Ltd.* —
Financial manager

China Offshore Qil (Singapore) Internal Pte Ltd —
Financial manger

CNOOC — Financing manager of treasury
department

CNOOC Finance Corporation Ltd. — Manager of
treasury department; Chief accountant

Zhonghai Trust Co., Ltd. — Vice president; Deputy
secretary of party committee; Secretary of discipline
inspection commission; Chief financial officer
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Chu Kar Wing
REH

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BUFHTES

Born in 1957
HER19574F

Joined the Group
as a director since
23 December 2002,
and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
H2002412A23H
MAREEAESE -
20174 5A4
B AR AT
BUERITEE

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Chairman

Remuneration Committee — Chairman
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Social science majoring in economics — Bachelor’s
degree

Other major offices
Emperor Capital Group Limited (HKEx: 717) —
Independent non-executive director (Since May 2010)

Public service
Canada-China Culture and Education Association —
President

Other information
Extensive experience in the banking and finance
sector
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
EE SAREEBRATIMEESR

Li Fang
E~

Independent
Non-Executive Director

BYFHITES

Born in 1962
HER19624F

Joined the Group
as a director since

7 July 2011,

and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
H2011%7R7H
MAREEGHES -
WiR201745 A
BEmARAT
BUIEMITES

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

Investment and Budget Management Committee —
Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Engineering — Beijing University of Science and
Technology, Bachelor’s degree

Law — Arizona State University, United States, Juris
doctoral degree

Other major offices

China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Independent non-executive director
(Since March 2004)

Qinhuangdao Chincell-Town Food Co., Ltd*
(NEEQ: 872370) — Director (Since January 2017)

Past offices
Goldman Sachs (Asia) L.L.C. — Executive Director

Davis Polk & Wardwell LLP, United States — Lawyer

Beijing Soft Rock Investment Group Corporation
(SZSE: 000609, formerly known as Beijing
Mainstreets Investment Group Corporation) —
Director (Resigned on 15 December 2016)

Guangdong Guanhao High-tech Co., Ltd
(SSEC: 600433) — Director (Resigned on 7 June 2017)

Other information
Extensive experience in business management and
corporate finance
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BEE

Wong Kwok Tai
GRS

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BUFHTES

Born in 1938
AR 19384

Joined the Group

as a director since
27 September 2004,
and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
E2004F9H27H
MAREEAESE -
20174 5A4
B AARAT
BIUERITEE

REBBRAABEER

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
Certified Public Accountant (Practising)

Other major offices

W. Wong Consultancy Limited (formerly known as
W. Wong CPA Limited) — Director (Since August
2010)

Past offices
China Solar Energy Holdings Limited (HKEx: 155) —
Director (Resigned on 16 May 2015)

CMBC Capital Holdings Limited (HKEx: 1141,
formerly known as Mission Capital Holdings Limited)
— Independent non-executive director (Resigned on
30 July 2015)

State Energy Group International Assets Holdings
Limited (HKEx: 918, formerly known as Takson
Holdings Limited) — Independent non-executive
director (Resigned on 22 November 2016)

Winshine Science Company Limited (HKEx: 209,
formerly known as Winshine Entertainment & Media
Holding Company Limited) — Independent non-
executive director (Resigned on 18 December 2017)

Other information
Extensive experience in the audit and finance areas in
different industries
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EE - 54

Ng Yi Kum
mE=s

Independent

Non-Executive Director

BYFHITES

Born in 1957
HER19574F

Joined the Group
as a director since
28 June 2013,

and designated

as an independent
non-executive director
of the Company in
May 2017
E2013%6H28H
MAREEGHES -
20174 5A
BEam AR AT
BIERITES

REEERLAAREER

Other positions in the Group
Audit Committee — Member

Remuneration Committee — Member
Nomination Committee — Member

China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
— Director

Qualifications
The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England
and Wales — Fellow

The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators — Associate

Association of Chartered Certified Accountants —
Fellow

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
— Fellow

American Institute of Certified Public Accountants —
Member

Master of Business Administration (MBA) — The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology,
Master’s degree

Other major offices
Tianjin Development Holdings Limited (HKEx: 882) —
Independent non-executive director (Since July 2010)

Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International) Limited (HKEx:
417) — Chief Strategy Officer & Chief Financial
Officer (Since July 2015); Company Secretary (Since
August 2015); Executive Director and Deputy
Chairman (Since December 2015)

Past offices

Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited
(HKEx: 2882) — Independent non-executive director
(Resigned on 31 July 2015)

China Mobile Games and Entertainment Group
Limited (delisted from the NASDAQ in the United
States on 10 August 2015, stock code: CMGE) —
Independent director (Resigned on the delisting date
of the company)

DS Healthcare Group, Inc. (delisted from the
NASDAQ in the United States on 23 December 2016,
stock code: DSKX) — Independent director (Resigned
on 16 May 2017)
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DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT
AND COMPANY SECRETARY PROFILES
EE GREEERAAMEER

Senior Management

SREEE

Chen Xuezhi
[E =¥

Chief Financial Officer
HEMBE

Born in 1968
AR 1968F

Joined the Group
since 2009
H2009F AR

Other positions in the Group

China Power International New Energy Holding
Limited (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company) — Deputy general manager; Financial
controller

Directors of various subsidiaries of the Group

Qualifications
Senior Accountant

Accounting — Fuzhou University, Bachelor’s degree

Business Administration — Capital University of
Economics and Business, Postgraduate

Past offices

China Power International Holding Limited (the
holding company of China Power New Energy
Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company)
— Deputy general manager (department of finance
and asset management)

China Power International Development Limited
(HKEx: 2380) — Deputy general manager
(department of finance and asset management)

Company Secretary

NEAME

Fung Chun Nam
itz

Company Secretary
DNEAME

Born in 1975
AR19754F

Joined the Group
since 2009
B2009F INAAREE

Qualifications
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants —
Fellow

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
— Fellow

Chartered Financial Analyst
Other information

Extensive experience in company secretarial,
accounting and audit areas in various industries
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HEENBREFRERERAR

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR T

The principal activities of the Group at present are the
development, construction, owning and management of clean
energy power plants in Mainland China, including but not limited
to wind power generation, hydropower generation, natural
gas power generation, photovoltaic power generation, waste-
to-energy power generation and other clean energy power
generation projects. As of 31 December 2017, the number of
power generation plants owned or controlled by the Group
has reached 41, which are scattered in 23 provinces, including
Guangdong, Fujian, Gansu, Jiangsu and Chongging, etc., and the
electricity generated therefrom is sold to Southern Power Grid,
East China Power Grid, Northeast Power Grid and Northwest
Power Grid.

BUSINESS REVIEW FOR 2017

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group's revenue and
tariff adjustment were approximately RMB4,820,975,000 (year
ended 31 December 2016: approximately RMB4,726,592,000).
The Group's profit for the year was approximately
RMB403,846,000 (year ended 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB400,650,000) and the Group recorded profit attributable
to equity holders of the Company amounted to approximately
RMB401,702,000 (year ended 31 December 2016: approximately
RMB404,536,000). Basic and diluted earnings per share amounted
to approximately RMB0.3385 (year ended 31 December 2016:
approximately RMB0.3409) and RMB0.3385 (year ended 31
December 2016: approximately RMB0.3409).

On 30 December 2015, SPIC entered into a memorandum of
understanding with CPNE, pursuant to which, SNPTC, a subsidiary
of SPIC, will seek to transfer all of its nuclear power assets and
businesses to the Company. At present, CPNE and SPIC are
still in the discussion and negotiation in respect of the possible
transaction. Save for the MOU (which contains certain legally
binding provisions as disclosed in the Announcement dated 30
December 2015), no formal or legally binding agreement has
been entered into between the Group and the SPIC Group in
respect of the Possible Transaction. The Group understands that (i)
the SPIC Group intends to progress the Possible Transaction after
the completion of certain internal reorganisation which is subject
to the approval by certain governmental and regulatory authorities
in the PRC; and (i) such governmental and regulatory authorities
have not provided any estimated timeline for response. In 2017,
the Reorganisation Proposal was approved by the shareholders,
pursuant to which, the Group moved its register of members from
Bermuda to Hong Kong, and its holding company has changed to
CPCE (from CPNE prior to the Reorganisation Proposal).
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BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT

2017 saw a drastic increase in the installed power capacity of
clean energy. In respect of power generation, there was faster
growth in the power generation from new energy sources such
as photovoltaic and wind power, with brisk growth in additional
installed capacity and improvement in wind and photovoltaic
curtailment. During the year, the installed power capacity of clean
energy accounted for 36.6% of the installed power capacity
nationwide, with power generation amounting to 1.7 trillion kWh
and accounting for 26.4% of the power generation nationwide.
With respect to the supply side of power, green and clean energy,
as part of the power structure, has become the general trend.
Of the future power structure in China, the proportion of clean,
low-carbon electricity will continue to increase. At present, China
still relies on coal power generation. In the next three years, the
proportion of hydropower, wind power, photovoltaic power,
nuclear power and gas power generation will continue to increase.

Supported by the “13th Five-Year Plan” with respect to power
development, China’s power system reform has introduced a
structure in which a number of business models can be explored.
It is expected that results can be achieved in stages in power
transmission and distribution tariff reform, power market
construction, power sales and distribution reform, and other
key areas. 2017 saw a prominent uptick in the traded power
volume in the national electricity market, which amounted to 1.63
trillion kWh and represented a year-on-year increase of 45.0%.
This helped to relieve the wind and photovoltaic curtailment in
Northeast, North and Northwest China. In 2017, there was 41.9
billion kWh in wind power curtailment nationwide and a wind
curtailment rate of 12.0%, which represented a year-on-year
decline of 5.2%. Thus, China has achieved a decline in both the
amount of wind power curtailment and wind curtailment rate.
Across the country, 7.3 billion kWh of photovoltaic power was
curtailed, which represented a curtailment rate of 6.0% and a
year-on-year decline of 4.3%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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According to the “13th Five-Year Plan”, in the Northeast,
North and Northwest China where strict wind and photovoltaic
curtailments are in place, the major issue is to resolve the current
problem of under-utilisation. New construction projects are
situated in the central, eastern and southern regions, and a
series of comprehensive measures are taken to improve system
regulation capability, so as to maintain the percentage of wind
and photovoltaic curtailments at a reasonable level. The additional
hydropower projects are mainly concentrated in Sichuan and
Yunnan Provinces, while the proposed nuclear power projects
are mainly located in Shandong Province and southeast coastal
provinces.

In 2017, China started to establish its national carbon emission
trading market, with the protective buyouts and green certificate
systems implemented on trial. Besides, the country rolled out its
renewable energy quota system at the right timing, launched
parity grid demonstration for wind power, and carried out its
regional power market reform at an ever-expanding scope,
with active participation in the “One Belt, One Road” initiative.
By 2020, China is expected to fully activate its electricity spot
market mechanism, creating sufficient competition among market
players on the side of electricity sales. In the next few years,
China’s demand for electricity will maintain a recovering upward
momentum, with power supply and demand to remain largely
stable.
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According to the data from the National Energy Administration,
in 2017, national power generation was 6,417.9 billion kWh,
representing an increase of 6.5% year on year. Specifically, the
thermal power, hydropower, wind power and photovoltaic power
accounted for 4,624.4 billion kWh, 1,194.5 billion kwh, 305.7
billion kWh and 118.2 billion kWh respectively, representing
a year-on-year increase of 5.2%, 1.7%, 26.3% and 78.6%
respectively; and biomass power accounted for 79.4 billion kWh,
representing a year-on-year increase of 22.7%. During the year,
national average utilisation amounted to 3,786 hours, decreasing
by 11 hours year-on-year. Specifically, the average utilisation of
thermal power and wind power were 4,209 hours and 1,948
hours, representing a year-on-year increase of 23 hours and 203
hours respectively, whereas the average utilisation of hydropower
was 3,579 hours which represented a year-on-year decrease of
40 hours. In 2017, the national installed capacities of thermal
power, hydropower, wind power and photovoltaic power were
approximately 1,110 million kW, 340 million kW, 160 million kW
and 130 million kW, respectively.

OPERATIONAL REVIEW FOR 2017

Slightly decreased power generation

In 2017, the Group’s power generation was 9,940,496.33MWh,
representing a decrease of 2.2% as compared with the same
period last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable to (i) the
power market reform of Guangdong Province, which resulted in
a decreased volume of base power generation allocated by the
government to the project located in Dongguan, Guangdong,
and (ii) an overall decline in the volume of water flow in Fujian
compared with last year, which affected the power generation of
hydropower projects in that region. Consequently, there was a
marginal decrease in power generation compared with last year.

On the other hand, the extent of net decline reduced as a result
of (i) less curtailment of photovoltaic power, (ii) less curtailment of
wind power, (iii) significant higher power generation in Zhejiang
Yunhe Photovoltaic Power Project, Fujian Zhangpu Photovoltaic
Power Project and Sichuan Panzhihua Photovoltaic Power Project,
(iv) commencement of full operation of Anhui Wuhu Waste-
to-Energy Power Project, Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Wind
Power Project, Fujian Zhangpu Photovoltaic Power Project, Jiangxi
Ji'an Aoli Photovoltaic Power Project and Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an
Photovoltaic Power Project during the year.
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Decrease in operating results

In 2017, the Group's profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was approximately RMB401,702,000, representing an
decrease of 0.7% compared to the same period last year. Such
decrease was primarily attributable to: (i) the overall amount of
power generated in Guangdong Province decreased gradually
month-on-month attributable to the “West-to-East Power
Transmission”, and that the amount of power generated by the
Dongguan natural gas projects has dropped; (ii) the average
unit price of natural gas increased period-on-period, resulting in
increased production costs at the Dongguan natural gas projects;
and (iii) the power generation capacity of hydropower was
affected by lower rainfall in the Fujian basin in comparison with
last year, where the hydropower projects are located.

Projects under construction continued to commence
operation

As of 31 December 2017, the Group had commenced operation
in a total of five projects, namely, Fujian Zhangpu Project (with a
capacity of 44.2MW and a total installed capacity of 80.0MW),
Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Project (with a capacity of
80.0MW), Anhui Wuhu Project (with a capacity of 24.0MW),
Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Project (with a capacity of 2.5MW) and Phase
| of Fujian Zhao'an Project (with a capacity of 20.0MW), with a
cumulative newly installed capacity of 170.7MW in total. As of
31 December 2017, the Group’s controlled installed capacity
amounted to 3,903.43MW, which represented an increase of
4.6% compared with the same period last year. During the year,
the Group obtained approval from several projects, including the
waste-to-energy power projects in Liaoning Beizhen, Phase Il of
Anhui Wuhu and Henan Shanggqiu, as well as Hubei Macheng
Guishan Wind Power Project. Such projects are planned to
commence construction in 2018 and 2019.

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s projects under construction
had an installed capacity of 714.28MW.
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Safety production

In 2017, the Group fulfilled its responsibilities for safety production
management, consolidated and promoted the Health, Safety and
Environmental (HSE) Management System and its application,
completed safety inspections and prevention tasks for projects,
while commencing various types of reconstruction projects. During
the year, the Group had no incident recorded with respect to the
annual safety production control target, and the safety conditions
of infrastructure and production were stable and under control.

BASIC SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Natural Gas Power

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's controlled installed capacity
of natural gas power in operation was 1,300.0MW, with annual
power generation of 4,601,106.40MWh, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 3.8%. The decrease in power generation
was primarily due to the power market reform of Guangdong
Province, which resulted in a decreased volume of base power
generation allocated by the government to the Dongguan
subsidiary in early 2017. The natural gas power segment remains
an important profit source for the Group. During the year,
the power generation of this segment accounted for 46.3%
of the Group's total power generation. The current capacity
under construction of the segment was 400.0MW (Guangdong
Dongguan Lisha Island Project). The project has been included as
one of the major construction projects of Dongguan City and was
reported as a provincial level key project. Currently, the project is
progressing as planned and is expected to commence operation in
2020. Furthermore, the Group has acquired some equity interests
of a public resource on Lisha Island. The acquisition is of great
importance to the Group’s thermal power joint production project
and the development of end users in the future.

In addition, the Group’s Sanhe Natural Gas Distributed Energy
Project (with an installed capacity of 800.0MW) in Jiangsu Hongze
has obtained a reply with respect to its thermal power joint
production plan from the Provincial Energy Administration and the
project is waiting for approval.
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Waste-to-Energy Power

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's controlled installed capacity
of waste-to-energy power in operation was 102.0MW with power
generation of 524,197.30MWh, representing an increase of 8.2%
compared with last year. Its four projects processed 1,481,000
tons of waste, representing an increase of 6.9% compared with
last year. The year witnessed a decline in power generation,
due to the power generation units of Yunnan Kunming Project
affected by technical upgrade and the equipment maintenance
for Phase | of Hainan Haikou Project. During the year, the power
generation of this segment accounted for 5.3% of the Group’s
total power generation. Waste-to-energy power generation is
one of the strategic focuses of the Group. A number of projects
are expected to commence operation successively in 2018 and
2019 to offset the impact of under-utilisation of power, reflecting
the Group's capability of resisting risks through diversified and
balanced development, as well as demonstrating the Group's
strategic advantage of segment rotation. The current capacity of
the segment under construction is 144.0MW.

Wind Power

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's controlled installed
capacity of wind power in operation was 1,509.50MW with
annual power generation of 2,219,109.11MWh, representing an
increase of 21.6% as compared with last year. The increase in
power generation in the segment because of less curtailment of
wind power in Jiuquan district where the Group is located and
because Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Wind Power Project (with
a capacity of 80.0MW) commenced operation and brought about
growth in power generation. During the year, the percentage of
wind curtailment rate was 32.0% for the Group’s wind power
projects, which represented an improvement compared with
42.7% over the same period last year. During the year, the power
generation of this segment accounted for 22.3% of the Group's
total power generation. The current capacity under construction
of the segment was 100.0MW.
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Photovoltaic Power

As of 31 December 2017, the Group's controlled installed capacity
of photovoltaic power in operation was 319.93MW with annual
power generation of 405,826.40MWh, representing an increase
of 45.3% as compared with last year. The increase in power
generation of the segment primarily came from the additional
power contributed by the commencement of operation of Fujian
Zhangpu Project (with a capacity of 80.0MW), Jiangxi Ji'an Aol
Photovoltaic Power Project (with a capacity of 2.5MW) and Phase
| of Fujian Zhao'an Project (with a capacity of 20.0MW). The
percentage of photovoltaic power curtailment rate was 4.1%
for the Group's photovoltaic power projects, representing an
improvement compared with 7.6% over the same period last year.
During the year, the power generation of this segment accounted
for 4.1% of the Group’s total power generation. The current
capacity under construction of the segment was 25.28MW.

Hydropower

As of 31 December 2017, the Group’s controlled installed
capacity of hydropower in operation was 651.0MW with annual
power generation of 2,155,570.72MWh, representing a year-on-
year decrease of 21.9%. The decrease in power generation of
the segment was primarily because the year-on-year decrease in
water flow volume in Fujian district affected the power generation
of hydropower projects. During the year, the power generation
of this segment accounted for 21.7% of the Group’s total
power generation. Currently, the Group has no project under
construction in this segment.

Integrated Energy Services

The Group has actively ventured into the industry of new
integrated energy services. Specifically, the Group established
“Dongguan China Power Integrated Energy Company Limited”*
(REPELAERAR AR in Dongguan and obtained the
qualification for electricity sales in direct power supply transactions
in Guangdong Province, thereby starting its business of electricity
and heat sales. In Gansu, the Group established “Gansu China
Power Integrated Energy Services Company Limited”* (H&&m
B A LRIRIG B R AT to expand the power distribution and
sales business. In 2017, in line with the national power system
reform, Guangdong Province enforced a centralised competitive-
transaction scheme for monthly electricity tariffs. Under the
scheme, the payment for electricity consumption is settled in
accordance with the trading rules of the Guangdong power
market, with the catalog price phased out. Throughout 2017, the
Group completed a market trading power volume of 1,232,000
MWh. At the same time, the Group expects that the relevant
electricity sales arrangements will continue to be implemented
during the year.
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The Group is also actively planning and conducting smart energy
projects by providing distributed energy and smart energy services.
The Company plans to establish smart energy service with the
support of Guangdong Dongguan Lisha Island Project to provide
integrated power solutions of heat, electricity, cooling, water and
gas in Lisha Island.

Smart Grid

During 2017, the Group’s available-for-sale financial asset
represented the 20% equity interests in Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng
Company costed at RMB255,000,000 in total. Hainan Bo'ao
Lecheng Company has gained approval to engage in property
development and operation business as well as the development
of the Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng Project. Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng
Company is the strategic project construction unit for the Hainan
Bo’ao Lecheng Project.

The Group and the controlling shareholder of the equity interest
investment, an independent third party (the “Independent Third
Party”) had submitted a revised development plan of the project
upon the request from the local government. Up to the date of
approval of this financial information, the revised development
plan is yet to be approved by the local government. Both parties
agreed to extend the Supplementary Framework Agreement on 12
September 2017 for the implementation of share transfer details.
As at 31 December 2017, the equity investment was reclassified
from non-current asset classified as held for sale to an available-
for-sale financial asset following the management’s reassessment
on the likelihood of the completion of the disposal transaction
with the Independent Third Party that the share transfer may not
be completed within the next twelve months from the balance
sheet date. The Group and the Independent Third Party kept
on negotiating specific details of the plan for implementing the
share transfer of the equity interest, subject to the finalisation
and approval by the local government of the revised development
plan. For the purposes of fair value assessment, the fair value less
costs of sale of the available-for-sale financial asset is determined
using the asset-based approach. Management considers the land
development right to be the major asset of the investment and
the fair value less costs to sell is determined based on market
value of the comparable development less the cost to completion
for the purpose of impairment review. During the year, reduce
in fair value of approximately RMB11,000,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised in other comprehensive income.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved in
the valuation. Management performed valuation taking into
account of comparable development where the project is located
in assessing the achievable gross development value, related
construction cost and resettlement cost.
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PLAN FOR 2018

The macro-economy has been growing at a stable but slightly
slower pace, under the influence of the supply-side structural
reform of the domestic market, the initiative of “eliminating
excess capacity, inventory depletion, deleveraging, reducing costs
and shoring up weakness” (=& —B&—1d), the replacement and
improvement of economic growth drivers (¥7E& &)aceEiz), and
other policies. Against the backdrop, power demand is evolving
in the direction of “slower growth, structural optimisation and
change of growth drivers”, whereas power supply is “largely
abundant, excessive in some areas, and sufficient to meet the
demand”. The Company will maintain its strategic guidance, stay
committed to the new energy industry, and explore the electricity
market according to government and market demand. It will
try to adopt a down-to-earth attitude to grow such business
that has stable profitability. The Company will keep abreast of
new energy policies from national and local authorities, plan in
advance, strictly control the risks during early stages, and seek to
have its key reserve projects included in the energy development
planning of the province concerned. Furthermore, the Company
will study and verify the direction of energy storage technology,
as well as the latest technological developments in wind and
photovoltaic power generation. It will speed up the technology
and policy research to raise the capacity and efficiency of old wind
and photovoltaic power stations, and increase its technical reserve
on waste gasification, integrated smart energy, sludge power
generation, and the interconnection of biomass gasification and
waste-to-energy power generation. As part of its efforts to expand
into circular economy, the Company will also look for partners in
the power generation from sludge as well as food, medical and
construction wastes, where urban pollutants can be recycled and
reused. In this regard, the Company aims to become a model
enterprise in the industry.

The Group’s key task in 2018 remains primarily the development
of environmental-friendly power generation projects. The
Group will continue to develop large-scale installed capacity in
prefecture-level and small-scale installed capacity in county-level
areas, so as to increase its market share. In areas with mature
conditions, the Group will attempt to explore projects of power
generation from medical, food waste and sludge. In mature
key cities, the Group will promote distributed energy projects
of natural gas, and encourage production diversification by
appropriately matching heat supply with installed power capacity.
In areas without wind curtailment, the Group will develop offshore
and onshore wind power projects. In areas without photovoltaic
curtailment, the Group will develop photovoltaic power projects
with higher utilisation rates such as agricultural photovoltaic,
fishery photovoltaic and farming photovoltaic projects. In western
regions (particularly those adjacent to the corridor of high-voltage
electricity transmission), the Group will establish reserve projects
of wind and photovoltaic power as appropriate. In emerging
industrial parks, the Group will look for opportunities to develop
integrated smart energy projects, with active participation in
internet-based energy projects.
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KEY TASKS IN 2018

Making timely disclosure of project work and restructuring
progress
The Group will continue to push forward project approvals and
related works as well as restructuring, and make timely disclosures
on work progress as required by the HKSFC and the Stock
Exchange.

Improving the fundamentals of safety production and
the safety production accountability system with sound
implementation

The Group will improve its supervision and assurance system for
safety production, with greater technical supervision. The Group
will also provide a wide range of training, to eliminate non-
compliance. In addition, more efforts will be made on safety and
quality regulation for projects under construction, generation unit
maintenance and technological upgrade. The Group will tighten its
control on the admission of contractors, and offer greater training
and management for qualified contractors. More than that, the
Group will strengthen its supervision on environmental protection
and maintenance of environmental protection equipment and
facilities, to ensure emissions in line with standard.

Optimising the industrial layout and capturing opportunities
for project development

The Group will continue to put more efforts on developing
projects relating to waste-to-energy power generation and
natural-gas thermal-power joint production. During the year, the
Group has obtained the approval for multiple waste-to-energy
power projects and distributed energy projects, with exploration
of power generation projects from medical, food waste and
sludge. In the meantime, the Group will work harder on project
development in the “One Belt, One Road” countries and actively
pursue quality project in Southeast Asia.
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Ensuring stable operating results and satisfactory sales in
power business

The Group will endeavor to tap into the potential of enhancing
efficiency, control its operating costs, and improve the efficiency
of its inventory assets. The Group will further enhance its business
in power and carbon emission trading. With respect to natural gas
projects, we will continuously track and analyse power production
plans, vie for valuable amounts of transacted power, and actively
explore the heat supply market. Meanwhile, we will widen fuel
supply channels and deliver concrete efforts to reduce controllable
costs. With respect to wind power projects, on the premise of
ensuring basic power volume, we will increase the power supply
for big cross-provincial users, from the “Exchange of Wind and
Thermal Power Generation” (J&/X % X)) and for spot transactions,
seeking to keep the wind curtailment rate lower than the regional
average. As for hydropower projects, efforts will be made to
generate more power during the summer when water resources
are abundant so as to reduce the loss due to hydropower
curtailment.

Improving corporate financing capability and the control on
financial costs

The Group will fully utilise domestic financing and Hong Kong's
Stock Exchange listing platforms, replace high-interest loans
through resource integration, and continue to widen financing
channels to further reduce financing costs. The Group will also
prepare plans for roll-over funding and control project capital
reasonably, to reduce redundant capital.

Developing quality projects and enhancing core
competitiveness of the enterprise

Based on optimised designs, the Group will make good
preparation for new projects and improve the construction
standards of the projects. While reinforcing its process
management, the Group will also adhere to the values, beliefs
and guiding principles in a “striver-oriented” talent management
system, by reinforcing its talent incentive system, recruitment and
assignment mechanism, and constantly optimising its workforce to
build an enterprise team with unity, pragmatism, progressiveness
and aggressiveness.
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PROJECTS 1HH

R AREEEANBAT  BED
ARAELERANLTEBERER

During the year, the power projects in operation and those under
construction and owned by the Group through its subsidiaries,

associates and joint ventures were as follows: HIBR :
Table of Projects in Operation CEZERR
Attributable
Installed Installed Power Utilisation
Capacity Interest Capacity ~ Generation Hours
No.  Project Name Operating Entity (Mw) (%) (Mw) (MWwh) (hours)
®RAE i BnRRAE BEE  FRIRY
% EEER FRER (¥R) (%) (¥R) (KRE) (/M)
Natural Gas Power
ARREE
1 Phase | of Guangdong Dongguan China Power New Energy 360.00 100.00 36000  932,95.10 2,592
Dongguan Project Heat and Power Company Limited*
ERRZ—HEE RERENERASERAT
2 Phase Il of Guangdong Dongguan China Power No. 2 940.00 100.00 940.00 3,668,150.30 3,902
Dongguan Project Heat and Power Company Limited*
BRRE_HER RENEE_HEEMAT
Sub-total of natural gas 1,300.00 1,300.00 4,601,106.40
power
RARBENT
Waste-to-Energy Power
HREE
3 Yunnan Kunming Project Kunming China Power Environmental 30.00 100.00 30.00  131,844.00 4,395
EHERER Power Company Limited*
ERPERRENERA
4 Phase | of Hainan Haikou Project China Power International New Energy 24.00 100.00 2400 156,169.00 6,507
BEa0—HEE Hainan Company Limited*
HERRHEREEER AT
5 Phase Il of Hainan Haikou Project Haikou China Power Environmental 24.00 100.00 2400 184,889.10 7,704
B0 -HEE Protection Company Limited*
AOPERRERLH
6 Anhui Wuhu Project ! Wu Hu China Power Environmental 24.00 100.00 24.00 51,295.20 2137
ECEYIEEL Power Company Limited*
ENnERREEERAT
Sub-total of waste-to-energy 102.00 10200  524,197.30

power

HRRE NG
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No.

5

Project Name

ERAR

Wind Power

NI

7

20

Phase | of Gansu Jiuquan Project

HRER 2R

Phase Il of Gansu Jiuguan Project

HRER 2R

Phase Ill of Gansu Jiuguan Project

HRER=HER

Phase IV of Gansu Jiuguan Project

HRERDEER

Phase V/ of Gansu Jiuquan Project

HRERLEER

Gansu Anbei Project

HRLIER

Heilongjiang Hongai Project
ERIAEER

Heilongjiang Hailang Project
ERTSRER

Jiangsu Dafeng Project
THAEER

Inner Mongolia Chayou Zhonggi
Project

ARLRETIEER

Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan
Project 2

WL ABILER?

German Bonen Project

{&EIBonentE E

Shanghai Sea Wind Project

bEigEER

Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project
LEZHINER

Sub-total of wind power’

BARRND

Operating Entity

B

Gansu China Power Jiuguan Wind
Power Company Limited*
HEREERENEEERAA
Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 2
Wind Power Company Limited*
HBTEERE —EN%EEERAT
Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 3
Wind Power Company Limited*
HBHEESE=RANEEARAT
Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 4
Wind Power Company Limited*
HBHEESENENEEARAT
Gansu China Power Jiuquan No. 5
Wind Power Company Limited*
HEBHEESENANEEARAT
Gansu China Power Jiuguan No. 3
Wind Power Company Limited*
HBHEESE=RANEEARAT
Hailin China Power Hongai Wind
Power Company Limited*
ARELER N EEERAR
Hailin China Power Hallang Wind
Power Company Limited*
BT EERENETARAT
China Power Dafeng Wind
Power Company Limited*
PEREENEEERAT
China Inner Mongolia Wind Power
Company Limited*
PENFERNETERAA
Hubei China Power Chunyangshan
Wind Power Company Limited*
AR EaELESERAT
Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG
Zehnte Windpark Support GmbH & Co. KG
Shanghai Donghai Wind Power
Company Limited*
ERERNEEARAT
Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Wind
Power Company Limited*

LESRIRRNEBARLA

Installed
Capacity
(Mw)
KHRE
(k&)

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

200.25

49.50

80.00

8.00

102.00

48.00

1,509.50

Interest
(%)
i
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

13.18

20.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(Mw)

RREHAE

(¥R)

100.50

49.50

201.00

100.50

20.00

601.00

49.50

49.75

200.25

49.50

80.0

8.00

13.44

9.60

1,509.50

Power
Generation
(MWh)
BEE
(kEk)

193,694.80

60,281.70

255,403.50

134,990.10

43,190.80

823,241.80

91,136.30

107,830.10

298,212.10

104,317.40

92,960.20

13,850.31

494,210.00

113,320.00

2,219,109.11
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Utilisation
Hours
(hours)
HRNE
(&)

1,271
1343
2,160
1,370
1,841
2,167
1,489
2,107
1,162

1,731

2,361

2,420
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Attributable
Installed Installed Power Utilisation
Capacity Interest Capacity ~ Generation Hours
No.  Project Name Operating Entity (Mw) (%) (Mw) (MWh) (hours)
kKRS Bn EnElAE BEE  ARIRY
G5 EEER FIBER (%R) (%) (k&) (RH) (NE§)
Photovoltaic Power
21 Phase | of Gansu Wuwei Project Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic 20.00 100.00 20.00 32,538.10 1,627
HERE—HEE Power Company Limited*
HEPERAANEBARAT
2 Phase Il of Gansu Wuwei Project Gansu China Power Wuwei Photovoltaic 30.00 100.00 30.00 35,056.80 1,169
HERE—HEE Power Company Limited*
HREPERAANEBARAT
23 Phase | of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic 20.00 100.00 2000 33,025.60 1,651
LIS e Power Company Limited*
HEPERRANEBARAT
24 Phase Il of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic 30.00 100.00 3000  43.829.10 1,461
EEISEmtiEE Power Company Limited*
HEPERRANEBARAT
25 Phase lll of Gansu Baiyin Project Gansu China Power Baiyin Photovoltaic 15.00 100.00 1500 23,749.00 1,583
EEISESiEE Power Company Limited*
HEPERRANETARAT
26 Gansu Guazhou Project Gansu China Power Jiuguan No 3 Wind 8.00 100.00 8.00 14,439.90 1,805
HBIMEE Power Company Limited
HBhEERE=RNEEERAT
27 Hainan Changjiang Project China Power International New Energy 20.00 100.00 2000  28,806.40 1,440
BHETEE Hainan Company Limited
Changjiang Branch*
REERI R A ERAR
NN
28 Yunnan Yuanjiang Project Yuanjiang China Power Photovoltaic 20.00 100.00 2000 26,052.10 1,303
EfTIAR Power Company Limited*
TIRERREEERAT
29 Fujian Zhangpu Project 3 Zhangpu China Power Photovoltaic 80.00 100.00 80.00  83,555.60 1,044
BRERER? Power Company Limited*
ERTERREEARAA
30 Sichuan Panzhihua Project Panzhihua China Power Photovoltaic 3432 100.00 3432 49 857.30 1,453
m2s7ER Company Limited
AR ERRARAT
31 Jiangxi Ji'an Project Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed 14.07 70.00 985 1376450 978
IEEZIER Energy Company Limited*
TRREREAHARERLA
32 Guangdong Dongguan Huimei Dongguan Integrated Energy 0.80 70.00 0.56 901.50 1127
Project Company Limited*
ERRZEFER REGARERAA
33 Zhejiang Yunhe Project ¢ China Power Yunhe Photovoltaic 5.24 60.00 314 6,260.60 1,195
MIZAEE" Company Limited

HEENARETERAT
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No.  Project Name

&% HEER

34 Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Project 5
TREZHEER

35 Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an Project ©
ERAR—HER
Sub-total of photovoltaic

power

e LIt

Hydropower

kHEE

36 Fujian Shaxikou Project
BRVENER

37 Fujian Niutoushan Project
BRAALER

38 Fujian Zhangping Huakou Project
ERETENRR

39 Chongging Meixihe Project
ERIGZER

40 Yunnan Yingjiang Hongfu

Industrial Project

EHATAREXER

4 Yunnan Yingjiang Huimin Project
EMRIERER

Sub-total of hydropower
KABE NG

Operating Entity

B

Jiangxi China Power Yineng Distributed
Energy Company Limited*

IRREEH A RRER LA

Zhao'an China Power Photovoltaic
Power Company Limited*

ARPELRETARAT

CP! {Fujian) Power Development
Limited*
Mg (BR) BNREERAA
Fujian Shouning Niutoushan
Hydropower Company Limited*
BRSEFAKEERAF
Zhangping Huakou Hydropower
Company Limited*
EITENKEARAA
Chongging Meixine River Hydropower
Development Company Limited*
ERRETRAKEREERAA
Yingjiang Hongfu Industrial
Company Limited*
BIBREXARAA
Yingjiang Huimin Hydropower
Development Company Limited*

BIEERKERERRAT

Installed
Capacity
(Mw)
KHRE
(k&)
2.50
20.00

319.93

300.00

115.00

36.60

129.00

64.00

6.40

651.00

Interest
(%)
i
(%)

100.00

100.00

100.00

52.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Attributable
Installed
Capacity

(Mw)

RREHAE

(¥R)

2.50

20.00

31337

300.00

59.80

36.60

129.00

64.00

6.40

595.80

Power
Generation
(MWh)
BEE
(kEk)

1,564.90

12,425.00

405,826.40

1,031,646.60

331,046.30

87,821.00

489,126.00

182,470.97

33,459.85

2,155,570.72
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Utilisation
Hours
(hours)
HRNE
(&)

626

621

3439
2,879
2,399
3,792
2,851

5228
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Attributable
Installed Power Utilisation
Interest Capacity ~ Generation Hours

(%) (Mw) (MWh) (hours)
Bt BRENRE REE  FRIBY
(%) (¥E) (kEK) (1NE)

Installed
Capacity
No.  Project Name Operating Entity (Mw)
KHRE
% EREER FREM (¥R)
Other Clean Energy
RfbE 2R
42 Jiangsu Hongze Biomass Project China Power (Hongze) Biomass Thermal 15.00
TELELEEEE Power Company Limited*
HE (4E) £WEASERLA
43 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal Power China Power (Hongze) Thermal Power 6.00
Project Company Limited*
& HEREER HE (12) AEERAR
Sub-total of other clean energy 21.00
EEZRR T
Aggregate Amount of Controlled 3,903.43
Projects in Operation of the
Group’
ARECEERRER A

1 Anhui Wuhu Waste-to-energy Power Project commenced the
commercial operation of its power generation units with an installed
capacity of 24MW in September 2017.

2 Hubei Macheng Chunyangshan Wind Power Project commenced the
commercial operation of its power generation units with an installed
capacity of 80MW in September 2017.

3 Fujian Zhangpu Photovoltaic Power Project fully commenced the
operation of its power generation units with an installed capacity of
80MW in June 2017.

4 Zhejiang Yunhe Photovoltaic Power Project, equipped with a maximum
installed capacity of 14.38MW, commenced the commercial operation
of its power generation units with an installed capacity of 5.24MW in
June 2017.

5 Jiangxi Ji'an Aoli Photovoltaic Power Project commenced the
commercial operation of its power generation units with an installed
capacity of 2.5MW in July 2017.

6 Phase | of Fujian Zhao'an Photovoltaic Power Project commenced the
commercial operation of its power generation units with an installed
capacity of 20MW in July 2017.

7 The sub-total of wind power projects and the aggregate amount of

controlled projects in operation did not include Shanghai Sea Wind
Project and Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Project.
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Table of Projects under Construction

No.
it

Project Name

Natural Gas Power

RARHE
1 Guangdong Dongguan Lisha sland Project
Sub-total of natural gas power

Waste-to-Energy Power

HRHE

2 Guiyang Huaxi Project
3 Hebei Bazhou Project
4 Sichuan Deyang Project
5 Guizhou Renhuai Project
6 Henan Pingdingshan Project
7 Liaoning Tieling Project
Sub-total of waste-to-energy power
Wind Power
BNEE

8 Phase Il of Jiangsu Dafeng Project
Sub-total of wind power

Photovoltaic Power

EREE

9 Zhejiang Yunhe Project
10 Sichuan Panzhihua Project

Sub-total of photovoltaic power
Other Energy
EtbEER

1 Anhui Fengtai Biomass Project

12 Jiangsu Hongze Thermal Power Expansion Project

Sub-total of other energy

Aggregate Amount of
Projects under Construction

ER%H

BRRZUDEBER
RARBENGT

g S
ML BNER
mEHRER
SMCEEE
AR FRILER
REHEAR
HREE NG

THAE 2R
BARENG

MIEMER
ulIE e

KRBT

ZHRAENERR
TELERERRAR
EthReR st

fRERAT

EEBEAEX
Installed
Capacity Interest
() (%)
LHaE L
(%B) (5
400.00 95.52
400.00
24.00 100.00
24.00 100.00
24.00 86.43
24.00 100.00
24.00 70.00
24.00 51.00
144.00
100.00 100.00
100.00
9.60 60.00
15.68 100.00
25.28
30.00 100.00
15.00 100.00
45.00
714.28
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Attributable Estimated
Installed Time of
Capacity Commencement

(MW)  of Operation
RikanE it
(kE)  REEM
382.08 2020
382.08
24.00 2018
24.00 2019
2074 2019
24.00 2019
16.80 2019
12.24 2020
121.78
100.00 2018
100.00
5.76 2018
15.68 —
21.44
30.00 2019
15.00 2019
45,00
670.30
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue and Tariff Adjustment

For the year ended 31 December 2017, revenue and tariff
adjustment of the Group were approximately RMB4,820,975,000
(2016: approximately RMB4,726,592,000), representing an
increase of 2% over last year. Such increase was primarily
attributable to (i) an uptick in the amount of power generation
by the wind power projects in Gansu and Heilongjiang, and the
new project in Hubei commencing operation in the second half
of 2017; and (ii) an uptick in the amount of power generation
by the photovoltaic power projects in Gansu and Hainan, as well
as the projects in Fujian, Sichuan, Gansu, Jiangxi, Zhejiang and
Dongguan commencing full operation during the second half of
2017.

Fuel Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, fuel costs of the Group
were approximately RMB2,215,299,000 (2016: approximately
RMB2,147,329,000), representing an increase of 3.2% over last
year. Such increase was primarily attributable to the average unit
price of natural gas increased year-on-year, resulting in increased
production costs of the Dongguan natural gas projects.

Depreciation and Amortisation

For the year ended 31 December 2017, depreciation and
amortisation of the Group were approximately RMB884,502,000
(2016: approximately RMB835,980,000), representing an increase
of 5.8% over last year. Such increase was primarily attributable to
the depreciation charges provided for the additional equipment
assets installed in the newly-operated projects.

Staff Costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, staff costs of the Group
were approximately RMB252,130,000 (2016: approximately
RMB239,938,000), representing an increase of 5.1% over
last year. Such increase was primarily attributable to the
commencement of operation of new projects.
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Repairs and Maintenance

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the expenditure on
repairs and maintenance of the Group was approximately
RMB112,838,000 (2016: approximately RMB93,899,000),
representing an increase of 20.2% over last year. Such increase
was primarily attributable to more repair occasions for generation
units in comparison with last year.

Operating Profit

For the year ended 31 December 2017, operating profit of
the Group was approximately RMB1,043,163,000 (2016:
approximately RMB1,123,199,000), representing a decrease of
7.1% over last year. Such decrease was primarily attributable to
the decrease in power generated from Dongguan project which
was affected by the “West-to-East Power Transmission” and has
dropped, coupled with the decrease in power generated in Fujian
owing to less rainfall there in comparison with last year.

Finance Costs, Net

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the net finance costs of
the Group amounted to approximately RMB515,155,000 (2016:
approximately RMB503,807,000), representing an increase of
2.3% over last year, which was due to the finance costs of the
loans borrowed for the Group’s new projects.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2017, income tax expense of the
Group was approximately RMB156,860,000 (2016: approximately
RMB264,504,000), representing a decrease of 40.7% over last
year. The income tax expense decreased along with the decrease
in total profit.

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of the Company

For the year ended 31 December 2017, profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company was approximately RMB401,702,000
(2016: approximately RMB404,536,000), representing a decrease
of 0.7% over last year. It is mainly due to (i) the overall amount
of power generated in Guangdong Province decreased gradually
month-on-month attributable to the “West-to-East Power
Transmission”, and that the amount of power generated by the
Dongguan natural gas projects has dropped; (i) the average unit
price of natural gas increased year-on-year, resulting in increased
production costs at the Dongguan natural gas projects; and (iii)
the power generation capacity of hydropower was affected by
lower rainfall in the Fujian basin in comparison with last year,
where the hydropower projects are located.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB775,703,000 (2016:
approximately RMB1,816,761,000). The cash and cash equivalents
decreased by 57.3%, which was mainly due to repayment of
corporate bond and bank loans.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2017, capital expenditure of
the Group was approximately RMB2,201,857,000, used mainly
for the development of new projects, purchases of equipment
and technical renovations. The major sources of capital were the
Group's cash balance and bank loans financing for projects.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2017, total borrowings and corporate bonds
of the Group amounted to approximately RMB13,680,290,000
(2016: approximately RMB13,120,230,000), which included short-
term bank borrowings, current portion of long-term bank and
other borrowings of approximately RMB3,517,070,000, long-term
bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB9,363,857,000
and long-term corporate bonds of approximately
RMB799,363,000.

Gearing Ratio
As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s gearing ratio, calculated as
net debt divided by total capital, was 60% (2016: 58%).

Foreign Exchange and Currency Risks

The Group’s main business transactions, assets and liabilities are
substantially denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong Dollar. The
Group did not use any derivative instruments to hedge its foreign
currency exposure as the Group considered its foreign currency
exposure is insignificant.

Investment Risk of the Capital Market

The Group has kept some of its funds invested in the securities
market. By focusing on clean energy related businesses, the
Group will scale down its securities investment business. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s fair value losses
on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss amounted
to approximately RMB78,000 (2016: a gain of approximately
RMB1,397,000).
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Charge on the Group'’s Assets

As at 31 December 2017, certain bank deposits, accounts
receivable, lease prepayments, property, plant and equipment and
investment properties of the Group with an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB6,949,759,000 (2016: approximately
RMB4,109,096,000) were pledged as securities for certain
borrowings of the Group and notes payable facilities granted by
banks.

Contingent Liabilities
The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at
the balance sheet date.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 1,813 employees in
Hong Kong and the PRC (2016: 1,627). Remuneration of directors
and employees is determined by the Group with reference to their
performance, experience and duties as well as the industry and
market standards. The Group provides appropriate emoluments
as well as benefit packages and insurance to all employees of its
operating power plants and new project developments in the PRC
based on their respective duties and pursuant to the labour laws
of the PRC. The Group provides Hong Kong employees with a
mandatory provident fund scheme with defined contributions as
required by the laws of Hong Kong. It also provides Hong Kong
employees with medical insurance.
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TERRBRTABRRE

)

MARKET RISKS

Risks relating to changes in electricity retail
market policies

As China deepens its power system reform, the
Company'’s operations are affected by the increase in
the proportion of retail power transactions, market
fluctuation of transaction tariffs and other factors.
Northwest China, where the Group’s projects are
located, faces complex but improving curtailment
conditions. While following policy orientation,
intensifying the research of state policies and
participating in market transactions, the Group seeks
to generate more electricity to improve its economic
efficiency, ensure stable operation of its generation
units, and take various measures against the risks
brought by changes in the electricity retail market.

Risks relating to price fluctuation of natural gas

Fluctuation may occur to the domestic price of natural
gas. Any increase in fuel costs will affect the economic
benefit of natural gas projects of the Company. The
Group will meticulously and prudently conduct market
analysis on price movement, expand channels for
procuring fuels, optimize the structure of gas sources
and execute reasonable control on procurement cost.
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(I) OPERATING RISKS

1.

More challenges in project development

Given the rapid development of the new energy
industry and increasingly stringent government
requirements in energy conservation and emission
reduction, domestic power companies have been
increasing their investments in the new energy
industry, fueling more intense competition and
making project development more difficult than
before. The Group will adapt to the existing resource
allocation and fresh regulatory requirements imposed
by the government at a faster pace, flexibly adjust
its development plan and optimize its development
mechanism, with greater efforts to secure resources
and enable its regional economies of scale to take
shape.

More environmental investment

The government has accelerated its institutional
reform on ecological civilization, vowing to build
a beautiful China and imposing increasingly strict
requirements on environmental protection. This has
brought both opportunities and challenges to the
Group in the waste-to-energy sector. The Group will
increase its environmental investment, enhance its
management of environmental protection facilities
and production, and optimize its waste incineration
and control. Furthermore, the Group will raise its
standard of waste-to-energy power generation and
the efficiency of power generation on the premise of
ensuring that environmental indicators are met.

Lack or draining of specialized talents

The lack of human resources with appropriate skill
sets and proven experience might prevent the Group
from realizing its strategic objectives. The Group will
focus on strengthening the development and training
of staff in the pipeline for succession, building talent
teams at various levels, and establishing a mechanism
to stimulate the motivation of its talents.
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{ID)]

(v)

V)

FINANCIAL RISKS

The Group has reported its financial conditions in due
compliance with procedures stipulated under the Listing
Rules. For our financial risks, please refer to the section
headed “Financial Review” in “Management Discussion and
Analysis” set out in page 48 to 51 in this annual report.

UNCERTAINTY OF CLIMATE CHANGE

Power generation and source of revenue of wind power,
hydropower and photovoltaic power projects of the
Company are dependent on changes in seasonal and
climatic conditions. Meanwhile, extreme climate conditions
will affect the revenue from the above projects. Before
construction, the Group will conduct tests on constant
climatic conditions of the project to reduce the adverse
impact of climate change on operations, and in daily
operations, organize more drills of contingency plans to
enhance the ability in responding to natural disasters at the
same time.

CONTINUOUS MONITORING OF RISKS AND THE
SCOPE AND QUALITY OF INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM BY THE MANAGEMENT

The Group has established an internal control and
monitoring department to perform internal audit functions
and furnish opinion in respect of material matters or
bring to the attention of the management the existence
of any relevant risks. Meanwhile, in accordance with
new requirements under the Listing Rules, the Company
continues to make steady progress in driving the
development of its risk management mechanism. During
the year, the Group carried out its regular risk assessment,
strengthened daily risk tracking, and provided special
risk assessment for investment projects, all in an effort to
ensure effective implementation of comprehensive risk
management of the Group. The management made 1
communication on the outcome of their internal control
to the Audit Committee during the year, to report the risk
evaluation and provide data analyses and relevant policies
at such stage. During 2017, the Group conducted internal
audit in its operations and tracking audit on constructions,
increasing income and reducing cost and creating risk alert
to strengthen its management. Throughout the year, Group
performed supervision on daily operations as usual and
conducted operations in an orderly manner.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

SR ERTE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 May 2017.
The Company has become the holding company of the Group
with effect from 17 July 2017, and has replaced the listing status
of CPNE since 18 July 2017. Both the Board and the management
of the Company and CPNE are committed to the maintenance of
good corporate governance practices and procedures, and believe
that good corporate governance provides a framework that is
essential for effective management, healthy corporate culture,
successful business growth and shareholders’ value enhancement.
The corporate governance principles of the Company and
CPNE emphasize quality Board, sound internal controls, and
transparency and accountability to all shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Group acknowledges the important roles of the Board
in providing effective leadership and direction to the Group’s
business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of the
Group's operations. The Board sets appropriate policies and
implements corporate governance practices appropriate to the
conduct and growth of the Group’s business.

The Company and CPNE have applied the principles as set out in
the CG Code.
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1. COMPLIANCE WITH THE CG CODE

The Company and CPNE has complied with all the code
provisions set out in the CG Code during the year ended
31 December 2017, save for the deviations from code
provisions A.4.1, A.4.2 (for the period from 1 January to 17
July 2017) and E. 1.2, as follows:

Code provision A.4.1: non-executive directors should be
appointed for a specific term and subject to re-election.

None of the existing non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors is appointed for a
specific term, but they are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general meeting
pursuant to the Bye-laws and now the Articles. Accordingly,
the Board considers that such requirements are sufficient
to meet the underlying objective of the said code provision
A4,

Code provision A.4.2: every director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years.

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, 1/3 of the directors for the time
being (if their number is not a multiple of 3, the number
nearest to but not less than 1/3) shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every director (excluding the
Chairman of the Board) shall be subject to retirement at
an annual general meeting at least once every 3 years.
The Board considers that, though there is a deviation from
the code provision A.4.2, the aforementioned provision in
the Bye-laws is appropriate to CPNE since the continuous
leadership by the Chairman of the Board allows for effective
and efficient planning and implementation of business
decisions and strategies which is vital for stability and
growth of the Group.

On 18 July 2017, the Company has replaced CPNE as the
listing vehicle and the Articles has come into effect, which
stipulated that 1/3 of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of 3, the number nearest to
but not less than 1/3) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every 3 years.
Therefore, the Company has complied with the code
provision A.4.2 since then.
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Code provision E.1.2: the chairman of the board should
attend the annual general meeting.

Mr. Wang Binghua, the Chairman of the Board and
the Nomination Committee, due to his other business
engagement, did not attend the 2017 AGM. In view of
his absence, Mr. Wang had arranged Mr. He Hongxin, the
executive director and the Chief Executive Officer who
is well versed in all the business activities and operations
of the Group, to attend the 2017 AGM as a chairman
and communicate with the shareholders. Mr. Wang also
invited Mr. Chu Kar Wing, being the chairman of the
Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee and a
member of the Nomination Committee, to attend the 2017
AGM and to give shareholders an opportunity of having a
direct dialogue with the Board members.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Company and CPNE have adopted the Model Code as
their own code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions. Having made specific enquiry of all the
directors, they confirmed that they have complied with the
Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2017.

The Group has also established written guidelines on no
less exacting terms than the Model Code (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”), governing securities transactions by
employees who are likely to possess inside information of
the Group and/or the Company’s securities. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by
relevant employees was noted by the Group.

In case when the Group is aware of any restricted period
for dealings in the Company’s securities, notification will be
sent to the directors and relevant employees in advance.
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3. THE BOARD

3.1 Board Composition (as at 31 December 2017)

Executive directors:

Mr. Wang Fengxue
Mr. Zhao Xinyan

Mr. He Hongxin

Mr. Qi Tengyun

Non-executive directors:

Mr. Wang Binghua

Mr. Bi Yaxiong
Mr. Zhou Jiong

(Chairman of the Investment and
Budget Management Committee)

(Chief Executive Officer, Member of
the Investment and Budget
Management Committee)

(Chairman of the Board, Chairman of
the Nomination Committee)
(Vice Chairman of the Board)

Independent non-executive directors:

Mr. Chu Kar Wing

Dr. Li Fang

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai

Ms. Ng Yi Kum

(Chairman of the Audit Committee,
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee,
Member of the Nomination Committee)
(Member of the Audit Committee, Member
of the Remuneration Committee, Member
of the Nomination Committee, Member
of the Investment and Budget
Management Committee)
(Member of the Audit Committee, Member
of the Remuneration Committee, Member of
the Nomination Committee)
(Member of the Audit Committee, Member of
the Remuneration Committee, Member of the
Nomination Committee)
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Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the Board
has met the requirements of Listing Rules 3.10 and 3.10A
of having at least 3 independent non-executive directors
(representing at least 1/3 of the Board) with one of them
possessing appropriate accounting and related financial
management expertise.
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The Board has maintained the necessary balance of skills and
experience appropriate for the business requirements and
objectives of the Group and for the exercise of independent
judgement. The independent non-executive directors bring
different business and financial expertise, experience and
independent judgement to the Board and they are invited to
serve on the Board committees. Through participating Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving
potential conflicts of interests and/or serving on Board
committees, the independent non-executive directors have
made contributions to the effective direction of the Group
and provided adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of both the Group and the shareholders.

The Group recognizes and embraces the benefits of having
a diverse Board to the quality of its performance. A Board
diversity policy was adopted for complying with the code
provision A.5.6 of the CG Code. The Board will take
into account various measurable objectives to achieve its
diversity, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional qualifications,
skills, knowledge and industry and regional experience. Such
policy and objectives, if any, will be reviewed from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness in determining the
optimum composition of the Board.

The biographical details of the directors and the relationships
between the Board members (if any) are set out under
“Directors, Senior Management and Company Secretary
Profiles” in this annual report.

The Company has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director of his/
her independence pursuant to the requirements of the
Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent
non-executive directors to be independent in light of the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.
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3.2 Responsibilities and Delegation

Leadership, control and management of the Company
are vested in the Board. The Board oversees the Group’s
business, strategic decision and performance to further the
healthy growth and effective functioning of the Company
with a view to enhancing value to investors. All the directors
carry out their duties in good faith, take decisions objectively
and act in the interests of the Company and its shareholders
at all times.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of
the Company, including the approval and monitoring of
all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal
control and risk management systems, material transactions
(in particular those that may involve conflict of interests),
financial information, appointment of directors and other
significant financial and operational matters.

All directors have timely access to all relevant information
as well as the advice and services of the company secretary
and the senior management, with a view to ensuring
compliance with Board procedures and all applicable laws
and regulations. Any director may request for independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company'’s expense, upon reasonable request made to the
Board.

The Board delegates the authority and responsibilities for
the day-to-day management and operation of the Group
to the senior management and the Investment and Budget
Management Committee of the Company (Executive
Committee of CPNE). The delegated functions and work
tasks are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained
from the Board prior to any significant transactions entered
into by the abovementioned officers, and the Board has the
full support from the senior management to discharge its
responsibilities.
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Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions set out in the code provision D.3.1 of
the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and monitored the corporate
governance policies and practices, the training and
continuous professional development of directors and senior
management, the policies and practices on compliance with
legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and the Employees Written Guidelines, and
the compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The Company supports the division of responsibility
between the Chairman of the Board and the Chief Executive
Officer in order to ensure a balance of power and authority
and preserve a balanced judgement of views. Currently,
Mr. Wang Binghua takes up the role of the Chairman
of the Board, who is responsible for the leadership and
effective running of the Board, the determination of the
broad strategic direction of the Group in consultation with
the Board, and the high-level oversight of management of
the Group; whereas Mr. He Hongxin is the Chief Executive
Officer, who takes care of the day-to-day management and
operation of the Group.

3.3
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3.5 Appointment and Re-election of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment and removal of
directors are laid down in the Articles. In accordance with
the Articles: (i) 1/3 of the directors for the time being (if
their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than 1/3) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every director shall be subject to retirement
at an annual general meeting at least once every 3 years;
and (i) any new director appointed to fill a casual vacancy
or as an addition to the Board shall hold office until the
next following annual general meeting of the Company
after his/her appointment and submit himself/herself for
reappointment.

According to the articles stated in the foregoing paragraph,
all existing directors of the Company, namely Mr. Wang
Fengxue, Mr. Zhao Xinyan, Mr. He Hongxin, Mr. Qi Tengyun,
Mr. Wang Binghua, Mr. Bi Yaxiong, Mr. Zhou Jiong, Mr.
Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Li Fang, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms.
Ng Yi Kum will hold office until the 2018 AGM. All of the
above 11 directors are eligible and will offer themselves for
re-appointment at the 2018 AGM. The Board recommended
the re-appointment of these directors at the 2018 AGM.
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3.6

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors
According to the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all directors should participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains
informed and relevant.

Each newly appointed director receives induction on the
first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that
he/she has appropriate understanding of the business and
operations of the Group and that he/she is sufficiently aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

The existing directors are continually updated with the
legal and regulatory developments, and the business and
market changes to refresh their knowledge and to facilitate
the discharge of their responsibilities. Continuing briefings
and professional development to directors are arranged
whenever necessary. In addition, reading materials on new
or changes to salient laws and regulations applicable to the
Group are provided to directors from time to time for their
studying and reference. All of the directors received trainings
as described below and provided the training records to the
Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
and CPNE had provided regular briefings and updates on
the Group's business, operations and corporate governance
matters to all directors (being Mr. Wang Fengxue, Mr.
Zhao Xinyan, Mr. He Hongxin, Mr. Qi Tengyun, Mr. Wang
Binghua, Mr. Bi Yaxiong, Mr. Zhou Jiong, Mr. Chu Kar
Wing, Dr. Li Fang, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai, Ms. Ng Yi Kum,
Mr. Wang Zhongtang and Mr. Wu Hanming). Each of
the aforesaid directors had also attended seminars, which
are relevant to their duties and responsibilities, to keep
themselves updated to the relevant laws and statutes; and
read technical bulletins, periodicals and other publications
on subjects related to the Group and on their responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.
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3.7 Directors’ Attendance Records
The attendance records of each director at the Board
meetings, the Board committees’ meetings and the general
meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2017 are
set out as follows:

3.7
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Ms. Ng Yi Kum h&sERt 45 n n W) 1 02

Notes: BsE

1. Mr. Wang Zhongtang resigned as a director of CPNE with
effect from 22 February 2017. Prior to his resignation, no Board
meeting was held during the year ended 31 December 2017.

2. Mr. Wang Fengxue was appointed as a director of CPNE on 22
February 2017 and currently also a director of the Company.
Subsequent to his appointment, there were 4 Board meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2017.

3. Mr. Wu Hanming resigned as a director of the Company and
CPNE with effect from 18 August 2017. Prior to his resignation,
there were 4 Board meetings held during the year ended 31
December 2017.

4. Mr. Zhou Jiong was appointed as a director of the Company and
CPNE on 18 August 2017. Subsequent to his appointment, there
was 1 Board meeting held during the year ended 31 December
2017.
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4.1

5. Other General Meetings included the Special General Meeting of
CPNE held on 7 July 2017 and the Extraordinary General Meeting
of the Company held on 1 December 2017.

In addition, the Chairman of the Board held a meeting with
the non-executive directors and independent non-executive
directors without the presence of executive directors during
the year.

BOARD COMMITTEES

CPNE has 5 Board committees, namely the Executive
Committee, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Investment
and Budget Management Committee, for overseeing
particular aspects of its affairs. All Board committees have
been established with defined written terms of reference,
which are posted on CPNE's website www.cpne.com.hk
and on the Stock Exchange's website www.hkexnews.hk
(except for the written terms of reference of the Executive
Committee and the Investment and Budget Management
Committee). All the Board committees should report to the
Board on their decisions or recommendations made.

On 18 July 2017, the Company has set up 4 of the
abovementioned Board committees, except the Executive
Committee. The Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Investment and Budget Management Committee of the
Company comprise the same members as CPNE with the
same terms of reference posted on the websites of the
Company (www.cpne.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Audit Committee

Composition The Audit Committee of the Company and

K CPNE comprises all 4 independent non-
executive directors, namely Mr. Chu Kar
Wing (Chairman), Dr. Li Fang, Mr. Wong
Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum. In which 2
of the members, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, possess the appropriate
accounting and financial management
expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of
the Listing Rules. None of the members of
the Audit Committee is a former partner of
the Company’s existing external auditor.

4.1
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Function

e

The main duties of the Audit Committee
are reviewing the financial information
and reports of the Group and considering
any significant or unusual items raised
by the financial officers of the Group or
external auditor before submission to the
Board; reviewing the relationship with
and the terms of appointment of the
external auditor and making the relevant
recommendation to the Board; and
reviewing the Group’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal
control systems and internal audit function.

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Audit Committee has performed the
following major works:

o Review and discussion of the
annual financial statements, results
announcement and report for the year
ended 31 December 2016, the related
accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group, and the
internal control related matters; and
recommendation of the reappointment
of the external auditor;

o Review and discussion of the
interim financial statements, results
announcement and report for the 6
months ended 30 June 2017, and
the related accounting principles and
practices adopted by the Group;

e  Review and discussion of the significant
issues on financial reporting, operation
and compliance controls, and the
effectiveness of risk management and
internal control systems and internal
audit function.
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4.2

Attendance The attendance records of each Audit

HE

Committee member at the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year
under review are set out in section 3.7
above.

The external auditor has attended the Audit
Committee meetings to discuss with the
Audit Committee on issues arising from
the audit and financial reporting matters.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee regarding the appointment of external auditor.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.

Remuneration Committee
Composition The Remuneration Committee of the

Function

Tae

Company and CPNE comprises all 4
independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Chairman), Dr. Li Fang,
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum.

The principal responsibilities of the
Remuneration Committee include reviewing
and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy and structure
and the remuneration packages of directors
and senior management (i.e. the model
described in the code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of
the CG Code is adopted). The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for establishing
transparent procedures for developing such
remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates
will participate in deciding his/her own
remuneration, which remuneration will be
determined by the Board with reference to
the performance of the individual and the
Company as well as the market practice and
conditions.
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Function
(Cont'd)
BeE(48)

Attendance

HE

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Remuneration Committee has performed
the following major works:

o General review and discussion of and
recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration packages and benefits
policy of the directors and senior
staff;

° Assessment of the performance of
executive directors and considering
the bonus payment to senior staff for
the year 2017;

o Consideration of and recommendation
to the Board on the terms of the
appointment of the new directors
during the year ended 31 December
2017.

The attendance records of each Remuneration
Committee member at the Remuneration
Committee meeting held during the year
under review are set out in section 3.7
above.
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4.3 Nomination Committee
Composition The Nomination Committee of the Company

AR

Function

Bae

and CPNE comprises a total of 5 members,
being the Chairman of the Board, namely
Mr. Wang Binghua (Chairman); and the 4
independent non-executive directors, namely
Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr. Li Fang, Mr. Wong
Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum. The majority
of the members are independent non-
executive directors.

The principal responsibilities of the
Nomination Committee include reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and recommending
any changes to the Board; identifying
qualified and suitable individuals to become
Board members and selecting and/or
making recommendations to the Board on
the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships; assessing the independence
of independent non-executive directors; and
making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment
or reappointment of directors and succession
planning for directors, in particular the
Chairman of the Board and the Chief
Executive Officer.

In selecting candidates for directorship,
the Nomination Committee may make
reference to certain criteria such as the
Company’s needs, the integrity, experience,
skills and professional knowledge of the
candidate, and the amount of time and
effort that the candidate will devote to
discharge his/her duties and responsibilities.
External recruitment professionals might be
engaged to carry out selection process when
necessary.
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Function
(Cont'd)
BeE(48)

Attendance

HE

During the year ended 31 December 2017,
the Nomination Committee has performed
the following major works:

o Review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board to ensure
that it has a balance of expertise, skills
and experience appropriate to the
requirements for the business of the
Group;

° Recommendation of the re-election of
the retiring directors standing for re-
election at the 2017 AGM;

o Assessment of the independence of all
independent non-executive directors;

o Consideration of and recommendation
to the Board on the appointments of
the new directors during the year.

The attendance records of each Nomination
Committee member at the Nomination
Committee meeting held during the year
under review are set out in section 3.7
above.
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4.4

Investment and Budget Management Committee

Composition The Investment and Budget Management

AR Committee of the Company and CPNE
comprises a total of 8 members, including
3 directors, namely Mr. Zhao Xinyan
(Chairman), Mr. He Hongxin and Dr. Li Fang;
and 5 senior staff, namely Mr. Sun Guigen,
Mr. Bai Jinchang, Mr. Tian Jiandong, Mr.
Chai Mao and Mr. Chen Xuezhi (Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and
Deputy General Manager of China Power
International New Energy Holding Limited,
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company).

Function The Investment and Budget Management

Jiig=12 Committee is under the direct authority
of the Board to increase the efficiency
of business, investment and budgeting
decisions. It reviews the execution of
investment and budgeting strategies,
and discusses and considers the
recommendations on investment and
budgeting related matters.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors have acknowledged their responsibilities for
preparing the financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear
and understandable assessment of annual and interim
reports, price sensitive announcements and other disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. The management has provided such
explanation and information to the Board as necessary to
enable the Board to make an informed assessment of the
financial information and position of the Group put forward
to the Board for approval.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.
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6. RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established and maintained its own risk
management and internal control systems, the details of
the specific features of such systems, and the processes
and procedures used for managing risks are also presented
under the section “Major Risks and Uncertainties”.

The Group’s risk management and internal control systems
have been designed to protect assets from misappropriation
and unauthorized transactions and to manage operational
risks.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and
determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing
to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives, and
establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems to safeguard the
interests of the Company’s shareholders and the Group's
assets. The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing
their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the
management and overseeing their design, implementation
and monitoring of the risk management and internal control
systems, and makes recommendation to the Board.

6.
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The Group has established an internal control and
monitoring department to perform the internal audit
function and furnish opinions in respect of material matters
or bring to the attention of the management the existence
of any relevant risks. This department is responsible for
performing independent review of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

The Group has also formulated a policy related to
risk management with detailed provisions addressing
specific issues that help to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks, define basic processes and methods for
relevant risk management, and develop detailed specific
risk evaluation standards. The ongoing improvement of
the risk management regime has provided assurance for
broader and more in-depth development of the Group’s
management.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group has implemented control procedures to ensure that
unauthorized access and use of inside information are
strictly prohibited.

The management, together with the internal control and
monitoring department, reviews and evaluates the control
procedures and monitors the risk factors on a regular
basis, provides treatment plans, and reports to the Audit
Committee and the Board on any findings and measures to
address the variances and identified risks.

Based on the reports submitted by the external auditor
and the internal control and monitoring department and
the various management controls put in place, the Board,
with the support of the Audit Committee, reviewed the
risk management and internal control systems, including
the financial, operational and compliance controls, for the
year ended 31 December 2017, and considered that such
systems are effective and adequate. The annual review also
covered the financial reporting and internal audit function
and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

So far as it is known based on available information, there
was no significant error in internal control, nor was any
major weakness in internal control identified during the
year, the occurrence of which might result in unforeseeable
consequences or emergency situations or any significant
impact that might materialize in future.
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6.1

6.2

Internal Control in 2017

The Group attaches great importance to internal control
and risk management. Currently, the Company has internal
control mechanisms for aspects including governance
structure, strategic development, capital operation,
financial management, human resources management,
production management, safety, health and environmental
management, construction management, resources and
fuels management, administrative and comprehensive
management, information system management, party-
masses work and risk management.

In 2017, the Company newly prepared and revised a total of
98 systems in 14 categories, including finance, engineering,
security, and production. Comprehensively improving the
soundness, applicability, and reasonability of the system
would contribute a more rigorous and sound internal control
system of the Company and improve its standardized and
refined management level. Meanwhile, the management
communicated with the Audit Committee on the outcome
of their internal controls, including reporting the risk
evaluation and providing the data analyses and relevant
policies. The Group believes that timely data analysis is a
very effective tool for the Board in assessing the status of
internal control and risk management.

In 2017, the Group conducted 385 tasks of supervision over
daily ongoing operations to ensure smooth implementation
of various material matters in its operations. The Group
also conducted systematic reviews of internal controls
for different regimes, such as the major controls for
financial, operational and compliance matters and the risk
management function.

Working Plan for 2018

In 2018, the Company will continue to carry out overall
system revision, strengthen the implementation of systems,
enhance risk tracking and audit management, improve audit
quality and performance and achieve double effect in service
and supervision. The focuses are as follows:

) Conducting assessment on the internal control and
risk management systems.

(I Improving and implementing the work requirements
of grassroots supervision.

6.1

6.2
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() Strengthening the dynamic tracking of audit
mechanism of engineering process, effectively
improving audit quality and performance, and realizing
double effect in audit service and supervision.

(IV)  Orderly carrying out performance monitoring, tender
supervision, petition report verification and other
works, so as to achieve the desired goals.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is Mr. Fung Chun Nam, who has
fulfilled the qualification requirements laid down in the
Listing Rules. Biographical details of Mr. Fung are set out
in the section headed “Directors, Senior Management and
Company Secretary Profiles” of this annual report. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, Mr. Fung has taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
annual remuneration of the members of senior management
by band for the year ended 31 December 2017 is set out
below:

Remuneration band (RMB)
FHER(ARYE)

Below 1,000,000 1,000,000L4

(Z) MaTiEREAHI 2D
RRRH - VERAEAME
Kee - LEBEARSE R

EEHUBEN -

(M) BFRRMEESR  BEE
B GEHEHEREEEET
1 Z2EHTIERR -

RNEAME

ARMERBIRELEE  HEFA
ETRBIERY 2 ERRBE  BEE
CEEFBERAFRIEE &
BEEERRARIWEEL | —F -
HE2017F12A31BLEFE 5
EEBEISTORNI5/NEZ EER
123 -

BEEREREERE 25

BB EEASTRIER SETRIE
X BE2017F12A3MBILEE
SREEERE 2 FEHMILZER
P

Number
of individuals

AB
1

Details of the remuneration of each director for the year
ended 31 December 2017 are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements contained in this annual
report.
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9. EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor about their reporting
responsibilities on the Group’s financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 is set out in the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” of this annual
report.

The fees paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor, in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 31 December 2017 are analyzed
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10.

10.1

SHAREHOLDERS AND INVESTORS

Shareholders’ Rights

To safeguard shareholders’ interests and rights, separate
resolutions are proposed for each substantial issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual directors, for
shareholders’ consideration and voting.

Pursuant to Article 49 of the Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit, and shall on requisition of members in
accordance with the statue, proceed with proper expedition
to convene a general meeting.

Pursuant to the Companies Ordinance:

(1)

One or more shareholder representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the shareholders having
a right to vote at general meetings may request the
Board to call a general meeting. The request must
state the general nature of the business to be dealt
with, and it may include the text of a resolution
that may properly be moved and is intended to be
moved at the meeting. The Company’s directors shall
proceed to convene a general meeting within 21 days
after the date on which they become subject to the
requirement.

If the directors do not within 21 days proceed to
convene a general meeting, the shareholders who
requested the meeting, or any of them representing
more than one half of the total voting rights of all
of them, may themselves call a general meeting. The
meeting must be called for a date mot more than 3
months after the date on which the directors become
subject to the requirement to call a meeting; and in
the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which that meeting is required to be called by the
directors.

One or more shareholder representing at least 2.5%
of the total voting rights of all shareholders or at least
50 shareholders (as the case may be) who have a
right to vote on the resolution at the relevant annual
general meeting may request the Company to give
notice of a resolution that may properly be moved and
is intended to be moved at that meeting.
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Shareholders should follow the requirements and
procedures as set out in the Companies Ordinance and the
Articles (where applicable), for convening a general meeting
or circulating a resolution for annual general meeting.

Under the Articles, if a shareholder wishes to propose a
person for election as a director at a general meeting, he
or she should give a written notice of nomination to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s registered office.
Details of the procedures for shareholders to propose
a person for election as a director of the Company are
available in the Company’s website.

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholder must provide his/
her full name, contact details and identification, in the
originally signed written requisition, notice or statement (as
the case may be), in order to give effect thereto. Information
of the shareholder may be disclosed as required by law.

During the year under review, no changes have been
made on the Bye-laws and the Articles. An up-to-date
version of the Articles is available on the websites of the
Company (www.cpne.com.hk) and the Stock Exchange
(www.hkexnews.hk).

Shareholders may refer to the Articles for further details
of the rights of shareholders. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings shall be voted by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The poll voting results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after
each general meeting.
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10.2 Communications with Shareholders and Investors

The Group recognizes the importance of transparent and
timely disclosure of corporate information, which enables
shareholders and investors to make the best investment
decision. The Board believes that effective communication
with shareholders is essential for enhancing investor
relations and investors’ understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies.

A website at www.cpne.com.hk is maintained as a
communication platform with shareholders and investors,
where information on the Group’s announcements,
financial information and other information are available for
public access. Shareholders and investors may send written
enquiries or requests to the Company, for the attention of
Investor Relationship Manager, as follows:

Address:  Rooms 3801-05, 38/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 3607 8888
Fax: (852) 3607 8899
Email: ir@cpne.com.hk

Besides, general meetings provide an opportunity for
communication between the directors and the shareholders.
Board members and appropriate senior staff of the Group
are available at such meetings to answer any questions
raised by shareholders.
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The directors are pleased to present this annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
construction, ownership, operation and management of clean
energy power plants in the PRC, including but not limited to the
following types of energy generation — wind power generation,
hydropower generation, waste-to-energy power generation,
natural gas power generation and photovoltaic power generation.
The Group is also engaged in investment holding in the clean
energy power industry, property investments and securities
investments. The principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries
are set out in Note 40 to the consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
principal activities and geographical area of operations for the year
ended 31 December 2017 is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year is provided
in the “Letter to Shareholders” and the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance during the year using financial key performance
indicators, a discussion on the major risks and uncertainties facing
by the Group, and the Group’s future business development are
set out in the “Business and Financial Highlights”, the “Major
Risks and Uncertainties”, and the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report respectively. In addition,
discussions on the Group'’s relationships with its key stakeholders
and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have a
significant impact on the Group are also contained in the “Letter
to Shareholders”, the “Management Discussion and Analysis”, the
“Major Risks and Uncertainties” and the “Corporate Governance
Report” of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

“Green Innovation” — the Group’s mission this year. Committing
to good ESG practices, developing green, recyclable, low-carbon,
clean energy have been our goals. An overview of relative efforts
were summarised in the “ESG Report” which will be published on
the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s website in due
course.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, sales to the Group’s 5
largest customers accounted for approximately 82% of the total
sales and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted
to approximately 57% of the total sales.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 99% of the total purchases for the year ended 31
December 2017 and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 96% of the total purchases.

As far as the directors are aware, none of the directors of the
Company nor their close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules), nor any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s 5 largest
customers or suppliers.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last 5 financial years is set out on page 241 of this
annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in the consolidated income statement on pages 112 to
113 and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
page 114 respectively.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The directors recommended a final dividend of approximately
RMBO0.1185 (equivalent to HK$0.1467 at the exchange rate
announced by the People’s Bank of China on 16 March 2018)
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2017,
representing a total of approximately RMB140,616,000 (equivalent
to HK$174,079,000), payable to the Company’s shareholders
whose names appear on the Company's register of members on
10 July 2018. This dividend payment, subject to the approval of
the shareholders at the 2018 AGM, is expected to be paid on 24
July 2018.

DONATIONS

During the year, no charitable donations were made by the Group,
however, it showed support for charitable causes. With details
set out in the "ESG Report” which will be published on the Stock
Exchange’s website and the Company’s website in due course.

PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES

Details of the principal properties held for development and/or sale
for investment purposes are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

Details of the shares issued in the year ended 31 December 2017
are set out in Note 28(a) to the consolidated financial statements.

HEENBREFRERERAR

KEKRE

EEEFRBEHE2017F12A318 1
FTENSRTBERARBEREHDARE
0.1185 T (#HEH0.146778 7T » B E A
REIB1TR2018F3H16 B RMIE R K
) L A AR 140,616,0007T (#8
%£14174,079,000787C) * [AA20184F7 A
108 B AABIREAMARQFPEER
IR o IR MR2018FRERAFAE b
A% - AR B FRIETEARN2018%F 7 A 24
HIRAT ©

FR AEEWRERERBRIL @ £
MAEXHRERD LY  FHHANER
3EL B % 3 A O B S T AR i S AR R R
U IRIR - HERERTWE P -

ERWE
FIEBRREHHENMEREZETEY
EHBERERE M IEHMAM 7 -
FRERITRG

HZE2017F12A31BILFE D #TKR M
ZFIEHN R A TR M 5E28(a) °



ANNUAL REPORT 2017
3R 2017

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEERE

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As governed by the Companies Ordinance, a company shall not
make a distribution except out of profits available for the purpose.
A listed company may only make a distribution (i) if the amount of
its net assets is not less than the aggregate of its called up share
capital and undistributable reserves; and (ii) if, and to the extent
that, the distribution does not reduce the amount of those assets
to an amount less than that aggregate.

In addition, according to the Articles, no dividend shall be paid if
to do so would render the Company unable to pay its liabilities as
they become due or cause the realisable value of the Company’s
assets to become less than its liabilities.

As at 31 December 2017, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution amounted to RMB192,734,000.

DEBENTURES ISSUED IN THE YEAR

A green corporate bond of RMB800,000,000 issued on 22 May
2017, as approved by National Association of Financial Market
Institutional Investors, will be due in May 2020. The purpose is to
provide funding for the daily operation and business development.
The bond is unsecured, carries a fixed coupon rate of 5.5% per
annum, with the interest being payable annually. Details are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements contained
in this annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company or CPNE (as appropriate) nor any of their
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the listed
securities of the Company or CPNE during the year ended 31
December 2017.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company and CPNE
as disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that will or may
result in the Company/CPNE issuing shares or that require the
Company/CPNE to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company/CPNE issuing shares were entered into by
the Company/CPNE during the year or subsisted at the end of the
year.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company and CPNE operate share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution to the Group and/or to enable
the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract
human resources that are valuable to the Group. Further details of
the Company’s and CPNE's share option schemes are disclosed in
Note 28(c) to the consolidated financial statements.

Upon the completion of Reorganisation Proposal on 17 July 2017,
all options to subscribe for shares in CPNE were cancelled and
options to subscribe for a corresponding number of shares in
CPCE granted to the same option holders under the Pre-Listing
Share Option Scheme which became effective on the same date.

The following tables disclose movements in CPNE and the
Company’s share options during the year ended 31 December
2017:

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

fERsERTE

RRATE &R EHEIRE R B IAERT8I0A
BRRBREHAEEEHEMZAER
SEER/REAEEERELRES
ZEERBUANBMEAEENETEEE
ZANER - BEAARB RPEHER
MBS E - PFBEREEMH
HERMTT28(0HKEE ©

R2017F7 178 Tk EHEFFRIE - A
AIRBEREMERR D 2 BRED T
i - MARIE ETmATEE AR ET SR R HERE
KREBEARLREHEESRERES
REe R D 2 BB RIE R E B ARK ©

TREBENVEZ2017F12831BILFEE
FREFTEER M AR R R R &2

CPNE Number of share options
HENER RREHA
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
Name or category 1 January during during during during  31December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
of participant 217 the year the year the year the year 2017 of share options of share options? share options#
0175 VIVES
1818 128318 BhRiE
SRR ZIE HATE  FAERE  FREAE  FREAM  ERSHH HATE  RUERERH FRETRS fre@e
HKS per share
A/
Directors
EE
Mr. Zhao Xinyan 1,800,000 - - (1,800,000 - - 8June 2007 15 June 2007 to 836
BAARE 200756/18H 7 June 2017
07%6A15HZ
017%6A7R
800,000 - - - (800,000) 0 1November 2010 1 November 2010 to 780
01051118 31 October 2020
1011 A1EE
20205108318
1,200,000 - - - (1,200,000) 0 16January 2013 16 January 2013 to 5.4
01317168 15 January 2023
013F1A16HE
2023518158
Sub-total for director: 3,800,000 - - (1,800,000) (2,000,000) 0
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CPNE Number of share options
HENHR BRESE
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
Name or category 1 January during during during during  31December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
of participant 2017 the year the year the year the year 2017 of share options of share options* share options*
20175 20175
1A18 128318 RREZ
SEEN AR HAGE  EABRY  EREAE  FREBAN  FREEE HATE  RUBRERD BRERE T
HKS per share
#/R
Other employees working under continuous employment contracts
RERBERSNEANELES
In aggregate 2,750,000 - - (600,000 (2,150,000) 0 1November 2010 1 November 2010 to 780
aft 01051 A1R 31 October 2020
W10E1R1BE
20205108318
4,850,000 - - (400,000) (4,450,000) 0 16January 2013 16 January 2013 to 5.14
013517168 15 January 2023
13E1A168E
202314158
Sub-total for employees: 7,600,000 - - (1,000,000) (6,600,000) 0
8
TOTAL: 11,400,000 - - (2,800,000 (8,600,000) 0
aft:
Notes to the table of movements in CPNE's share options during the year: FERREBEFLRERAEEBR ZHI:E -
# The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant # BRE s FEBHRKEY ABREE/TEE
until the commencement of the exercise period. IR AL
# The number and/or exercise price of the share options is/are subject to # MR 2 BB R RATEER R EHEER
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in AR Bk IR B AT B ol R AR AN AR A5 L B A

CPNE’s share capital. AT -
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the Company Number of share options
AR7 BRREA
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
Name or category 1 January during during during during ~ 31December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
of participant 217 the year! the year the year the year 2017 of share options of share options? share options®
R017% IVES
1818 128318 EREL
SEEN AR HAGE  FAERH  FREAE  FREAR  ERSHEE HATE  RUBRERS BREmRE ke
HKS per share
Er/B
Directors
g%
Mr. Zhao Xinyan - 800,000 - - - 800,000  8June 2017 18 July 2017 10 780
BHARE 2017567187 31 October 2020
01757718HE
20208108318
- 1,200,000 - - - 1,200,000  8June 2017 18July 201710 5.4
2017466488 15 January 2023
01757718HE
2023518150
Sub-total for director: - 2,000,000 - - - 2,000,000
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the Company Number of share options
AR ERERA
Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled asat Exercise
Name or category 1 January during during during during  31December  Date of grant Exercise period price of
of participant 2017 the year! the year the year the year 2017 of share options of share options? share options®
R017% 0175
1A18 12A318 gz
SEEN AR HAGE  FRERE  FREAE  FRBAN  FRSEE HATE  RUERERS IR RE k@
HKS per share
Er/B
Other employees working under continuous employment contracts
RERBERSNEANELES
Inaggregate - 2,150,000 - - - 2,150,000 8June 2017 18 July 2017 10 180
aft 201756/8H 31 October 2020
W17ETAI8HE
2020510A318
- 4,450,000 - - - 4,450,000 8 June 2017 18 July 2017 10 5.14
01756A8H 15 January 2023
N17ETAI8HE
2023514158
Sub-total for employees: - 6,600,000 - - - 6,600,000
E&/)it -
TOTAL: - 8,600,000 - - - 8,000,000
At

an:

Notes to the table of movements in the Company’s share options during the
year:

L The closing price of CPNE's shares immediately before the date of grant
of the share options on 8 June 2017 was HK$5.02.

2 The vesting period of the share options is from the date of the grant
until the commencement of the exercise period.

3 The number and/or exercise price of the share options is/are subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other changes in the
Company's share capital.

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of securities
of the Company available for issue under the share option scheme
was 118,663,341 shares, representing approximately 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the date of this annual
report.
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DIRECTORS’ LISTS

The following is the list of Directors during the year and up to the
date of this report (unless otherwise stated).

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Fengxue
(appointed as a director of CPNE on 22 February 2017 and the
first director of CPCE on 8 May 2017)

Mr. Zhao Xinyan (Mote)
Mr. He Hongxin ®ote) (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Qi Tengyun (Note)
Mr. Wang Zhongtang
(resigned as a director of CPNE on 22 February 2017)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wang Binghua ®ete (Chairman)
Mr. Bi Yaxiong et (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Zhou Jiong
(appointed as a director of CPNE and CPCE on 18 August 2017)
Mr. Wu Hanming
(resigned as a director of CPNE and CPCE on 18 August 2017)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing (Note)

Dr. Li Fang (Note)

Mr. Wong Kwok Tai (Nete)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum (Note)

Note:

They have been directors of CPNE and were appointed as directors of CPCE on
9 May 2017.

Pursuant to the Articles, all directors (namely Mr. Wang Fengxue,
Mr. Zhao Xinyan, Mr. He Hongxin, Mr. Qi Tengyun, Mr. Wang
Binghua, Mr. Bi Yaxiong, Mr. Zhou Jiong, Mr. Chu Kar Wing, Dr.
Li Fang, Mr. Wong Kwok Tai and Ms. Ng Yi Kum), shall hold office
until the 2018 AGM and they, being eligible, will offer themselves
for re-election at the 2018 AGM.
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Directors of CPCE’s subsidiaries

The list of directors of CPNE is set out above. The following is the
list of directors of CPCE’s other subsidiaries during the year and
up to the date of this report (unless otherwise stated).

Mr. Sun Guigen !
Mr. Chen Xuezhi !
Mr. Fung Chun Nam 2

Notes:

1 One of the members of the Investment and Budget Management
Committee

2 Company Secretary of CPCE

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the 2018 AGM has a
service contract with the Company which is not determinable by
the Company within 1 year without payment of compensation,
other than statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY FOR DIRECTORS

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company are
determined by the Board in accordance with their duties and
responsibilities within the Company and the Group’s performance,
and based on the recommendation of the Company’s
Remuneration Committee.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from the share option schemes operated by the Company/
CPNE as set out in note 28(c) to the consolidated financial
statements and save as disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Schemes” above, neither at the end of nor at any time
during the year there subsisted any arrangement to which
the Company/CPNE or any of their subsidiaries or their parent
company or their fellow subsidiaries was a party and the objects
of or one of the objects of such arrangement are/is to enable
the directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company/CPNE or any other body
corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company/CPNE or
any of their subsidiaries or their parent company or their fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director and the director’s
connected entity had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year ended 31 December 2017.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of directors and senior management are
set out on pages 18 to 29.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests of the Company’s directors
in the underlying shares of the Company, which were required,
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
maintained by the Company referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:
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Long position in underlying shares of the Company -
physically settled unlisted equity derivatives

Pursuant to the Pre-listing Share Option Scheme, the Company
has granted options to the following director of the Company to
subscribe for shares of the Company, details of which as at 31
December 2017 were as follows:

91

RAQATHEBERONERE -—BYWEEF
EFHRASTETR

BRI ERTERERTE - ARABE M
TARBEERTFTERENRELRQF
R&1D - FR2017F 12 A31B ARSI T ¢

Number! of Percentage? of

underlying shares
in respect of the
share options granted

Name of director Nature of interest

underlying shares
over the Company'’s
issued share capital

ERHBRERYS HERDMGEEDR
EEpnR EEME REBRRGHE ERTRANB 2
Mr. Zhao Xinyan Beneficial owner 2,000,000 0.17%
R EE BERBEEA
Note 1:  Upon the completion of Reorganisation Proposal on 17 July 2017, MizET : R2017F7R17ARKEEARE - 7]

options to subscribe for shares in CPNE were cancelled and options
to subscribe for a corresponding number of shares in CPCE were
granted to Mr. Zhao under the Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme
which became effective on the same date.

Note 2:  The percentage represents the number of underlying shares

interested divided by the number of CPCE’s issued shares as at 31
December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none of the
directors nor the chief executives of the Company nor their
associates had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register maintained by the Company referred to
therein, or which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The interests of the relevant directors in a business apart from the
Group's business, which competes or is likely to compete either
directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business as informed by
the Company’s directors (other than independent non-executive
directors) pursuant to Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules are as
follows:

Name of the Position(s)
director within Company
EEME AR BB AL

Non-Executive Director;
Chairman of the Board

FRTES EFEER

Mr. Wang Binghua

TRERE
BHE)

HEENBREFRERERAR

EERBEERBNES

BARRER(TRREBLIENTES)
R EMEBIESI0Q)EES » A
BENAEBETG AN B ek E s i
AEEXEBEHEF XA EE R EEENK
BHFEBTHEE 2 ESIT

Position(s) in other companies
which may compete with the Group

AHREFAKEBRHEF 2 AT 2BA

State Power Investment Corporation Limited — former
Chairman (resigned in January 2018)

BRENKEEEBR AR — FITEER(H2018F1 A

China Power International Holding Limited — former
Chairman (resigned in May 2017)
PEENERARAR — AIEEER(X201795 ABHE)

Save as disclosed above, during the year and up to the date of
this report, none of the directors of the Company are considered
to have interests in any business which competes or is likely to
compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Group required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.

The directors of the Company are fully aware of, and have been
discharging, their fiduciary duty to the Company. The Company
and its directors would comply with the relevant requirements
of the Articles and the Listing Rules whenever a director has
any conflict of interest in the transaction(s) with the Company.
Pursuant to the Articles, when the director is aware of the
existence of his interest, he is required to declare the nature of
such interest at a Board meeting. Such director shall not vote
nor be counted in the quorum on any resolution of the Board
approving any transaction, contract or arrangement or any
other proposal in which he or any of his associates is materially
interested.

B EXFIEEI  RAFEREEAR
FHEH  BMEARFNEFTERA/EN
KB EBEERKRERBRBF A6
BRBF ZETMEBTRERERELHR
ABTREE < e o

ARREZEZTEMBLCEBITRFLEXR
REZZERE - WEMESFEARF
ETZR 5T ETANEER - ARQA
REEFHETERMARE MR Z
BRASRTE - RESEMAR  BEFAL
HEaFERBAEESEe2 LHMA
D EE - ZEF T A ER
HETABMBEAREEARGE RS
BT AEAEMBREZIESTER

EESLEEEINZVIN
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

As at 31 December 2017, the following parties had interests of
5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company according
to the register of interests required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or as known by the Company:

Name

=1

State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of the State
Council, the PRC
HEEBREEEEEEEREZEE

23

State Power Investment Corporation Limited

ARENREEEERAT

China Power International Holding Limited

FEENERERLE

China Power New Energy Limited

FEENHEERBRAT]

China Three Gorges Corporation Limited

FERI=ZBKEEERAR

China National Offshore Oil Corporation
EalerisyE Ay FCUNE]

Overseas Oil & Gas Corporation, Ltd.

Shining East Investments Limited

Nature of interest

EmtE

Corporate interests

XS

Corporate interests

XEES

Corporate interests
ERR
Beneficial owner

EanEEA
Beneficial owner
EmEB A

Beneficial owner

BalAA

Corporate interests

R ES

Corporate interests

R ES

Beneficial owner

BaliAA

FERRRRGD 2 Es

2017124318 -

93

B R RIRIEE S

KK f‘ff\ﬂﬁﬂ%3361#%1?&5’]2&6%%%&

HFLARRFTA

UTETHEEAR

BEITIRARIS % akIA H#EE ¢

Notes

Bt
1,2,3,485

1&2

Number of
shares interested
or deemed Percentage
to be interested holding*
BERRA
BENROEE FRED L
778,641,857 65.62%
333,074,923 28.07%
313,502,923 26.42%
19,572,000 1.65%
333,074,923 28.07%
313,502,923 26.42%
321,626,923 27.10%
90,000,000 7.58%
90,000,000 7.58%
90,000,000 7.58%
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Notes:

These 313,502,923 shares were held by China Power New Energy
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Power International Holding
Limited. China Power International Holding Limited was a wholly-owned
subsidiary of State Power Investment Corporation Limited (formerly
known as China Power Investment Corporation), which in turn was
wholly-owned by State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council, the PRC (FEE#ft A EEEE
EI2Z B ). Accordingly, China Power International Holding Limited,
State Power Investment Corporation Limited and State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of The State Council, the
PRC were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

These 19,572,000 shares were held by China Power International
Holding Limited. Based on the relations set out in note 1 above,
State Power Investment Corporation Limited and State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of The State Council, the
PRC were deemed to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV
of the SFO.

These 321,626,923 shares were held by China Three Gorges Corporation
Limited (PR R TIZIKEBEF R A 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of The
State Council, the PRC. Accordingly, State-owned Assets Supervision and
Administration Commission of The State Council, the PRC was deemed
to be interested in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

These 90,000,000 shares were held by Shining East Investments Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Overseas Qil & Gas Corporation, Ltd.,
which in turn was a wholly-owned subsidiary of China National Offshore
Qil Corporation. China National Offshore Oil Corporation was a wholly-
owned subsidiary of State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of The State Council, the PRC. Accordingly, Overseas Oil
& Gas Corporation, Ltd., China National Offshore Oil Corporation and
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of The
State Council, the PRC were deemed to be interested in these shares
pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

QOut of these 778,641,857 shares, 33,940,011 shares were held by
Guangdong Electric Power Design Institute Co., Ltd. of China Energy
Engineering Group (FEIgEREREEEREE N RHARIRE
fR /2 7)), a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Energy Engineering
Group Co., Ltd. (FFEEEIREZREB AR A F]) which is an ultra-large
energy construction group directly managed by State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of The State Council, the
PRC. Accordingly, State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of The State Council, the PRC was deemed to be interested
in these shares pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

The percentage represents the number of ordinary shares interested
divided by the number of the Company’s issued shares as at 31
December 2017.

HEENBREFRERERAR

5%313,502,923 % Bz {7 B8 Bl & ) T RE IR
BRATFE  ZARATEEHERE
BARMNEEMBAR - PEENEERE
RARBERENEEEEERAR(AIE
ATPRENRELERARNEZENEA
A MEEAPEEEREEEEERE
BLEES2AESR - At BEFEHFLEB
BIEGIEXVE - FEREHEBEER AR
EREHREEEGRA R R EBEER
EEEEEEERZESRRARZER
DHREER -

19,572,000 B EE N EEER
AR - ER L1 AT mEER -
BEBLZNEEOEXVE  BREHE
EEEARARRTEEKTREEES
BEEBZBSWRARZSEROTHER

=

I

o

E

5%2321,626,923 0% Bt B AR Bl RO = W &
BERARFE  HATEHBEBKKREAE
EEEEEREEeZ2EMBAR - A
It RIBE S RATERGIEXVER - R EIE
BrRAEELEEREE@WRANZ
EWRMPHEERER -

#% 90,000,000 & A% {5 F Shining East
Investments Limited 5 & + H /& Overseas
Oil & Gas Corporation, Ltd. 2 & &[] B A
Al MEENAPEGFABRRAGIZE
BWBAR - PEUGFRBEARATEH
BB EEEEEREZESNREN
BAa - At - BEZBHFRHAEKRNE
XV #B - Overseas Oil & Gas Corporation,
Ltd. « R EDGFAEE QR R B E B
EEEEEEERZESRRARZER
DHEEERE -

778,641,857 B B& 19 7+ 33,940,011 %
RDBFERERERERERE T RE
MERERARFE - ERTEGERER
EEERAR(FERBREEEELEREE
BLZEgEEEECRARERERER)
ZEEWBAR - At - RIBEBHFRHAE
1EPIEXVES  FREBREREEEEEE
BZEgWRARZERMPHEAEE -

ADLLIEATE L BRI EE BRUAARAR]
2017512 831 HE BTRMHEE -
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, no person
had registered an interest or a short position in the shares or
underlying shares of the Company that was required to be
recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected Transactions
and Continuing Connected Transactions” below, no contracts of
significance have been entered into between the Company/CPNE
or any of its subsidiaries and the controlling shareholder or any of
its subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2017.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and/or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company/CPNE were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND CONTINUING
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year under review, the Group had conducted the
following connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions (being the transactions set out in Note 37 to the
financial statements) and was exempted from the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2)
of the Listing Rules or had obtained the independent shareholders’
approval pursuant to Rule 14A.36 of the Listing Rules.

The details of such connected transactions and continuing
connected transactions, which complied with the disclosure
requirements of Rules 14A.49 and 14A.71 of the Listing Rules, are
set out as follows:
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Br EXCRTHEE SN + 7R2017412 A 31
B SMEFEAALSZHEEREZSR
HAIE&0I55 3361578 T B i 2 AR A% (0
AR I RE RS A B o

EXEH

BTXERSGRFEERERS |5
FrigsE &N REE2017F12 83181k
FE - KQAR P EHERSE TR
[ /X RN 4 o0 % AR BR sk E T ] BT B A
RIEISLEBRAH -

EEEH

FAL BT LK FHEEARF,HEH
ERXGEDXTRAERLI»BELE
B SITHER

CIEFAN AEEGET NI E
RZBBEMER S (R BEHRERM
IVAMAMRS)  WEREEMRANE
14A.76(2) 1R IE#A % 8 <7 8 SR AL /E AR
FESEE ST AR RS 14A.36 {5 A7 £ BX
SRR ALE -

ZEMNA LRI E14A49F R F
TAATVRRBEREFHNRER S LEF
BRAERZFHE - #5IT -

(i)

Type: Connected Transaction

A MER S

Announcement Date: 28/02/2017

NERH - 201742 H28H

Parties: (@) Shanghai China Power New Energy Property Development
HEORE Company Limited (“Service Provider”) — a wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company
FEREFEREEZRAGRAR ([RBEMRF]) - ARE2
EHARMBAR

China Power International Holding Limited (“Service Receiver”) —
a substantial shareholder of the Company, therefore a connected
person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
HEENBEIRERAR ([REEKT]) — RARMNEZERRE
Hitst EHHR RIS AR R RREAL
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Description and purpose of the
transaction:

K@Kk B

COMPOSITE SUPPORT SERVICES AGREEMENT — on 28 February
2017, the Parties entered into the Composite Support Services
Agreement pursuant to which the Service Provider has agreed to
provide composite support services to the Service Receiver in respect
of an office building of the Service Receiver situated in the Haidian
District, Beijing, PRC, including Event planning and related support
services; Cleaning of office area and ancillary facilities; Reception
services; Management, maintenance and repair of electronic devices;
Management, maintenance and annual evaluation of lifts; Inspection
and maintenance of engineering facilities; Security services; Operation,
maintenance and repair of equipment and facilities; Maintenance of
public order and regular inspection of fire prevention facilities; Business
centre services; Chauffeur services; Catering services and management
of canteens; and Record-keeping relating to the provision of support
services
HRAEBRYRBHE 5O N2017F2 828 A5 R AR YRGS W
& B BRERME S R ERRBER T R B 7GR R AR
BRREEE S REGESEDRY - BREEBRE LB IERE
MAEHERREREREE  AIEEERE  EFXRENER R
BREE  FRKER  RERFENG S IEXIHORBIEE
RERT - RERFEVEIE - RERGEE - BHLHEKF MEHHEH
e Lms - BP ORY  BEEERS  ERARBRAREE
B Rt SR RIS ERC SR TF

Term:

HARR

01/03/2017-30/06/2018
20173 H1HZE2018F6H30H

Consideration:

RMB22,320,000

KB - AR#22,320,0007T

(i)

Type: Continuing Connected Transaction

A RERERS

Announcement Date: 25/07/2017

NEBR 20177 H25H

Parties: (@) China Power International New Energy Holding Limited*
HESPE ("CPINE") — an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the

Company
hEFEEHERERAERAR (THEEEHER]) — AT
FE2ENB LR

(b)  China Power Hua Chuang Electricity Technology Research Co.,
Ltd.* ("CPHCETR") — a subsidiary of China Power International
Holding Limited (a substantial shareholder of the Company) and
therefore a connected person of the Company for the purpose of
the Listing Rules
hEEEEN TR ARAT ((HBEE)) — FHENE
RBERAE (ARF—REERE) MWEAR - B3t LR
Al & AR AR BEEAT
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Description and purpose of the
transaction:

TECHNICAL SUPERVISION AND SERVICES FRAMEWORK
AGREEMENT — on 25 July 2017, the Parties entered into the

RSEu kB : Technical Supervision and Services Framework Agreement, which is
a framework agreement for the provision by CPHCETR of technical
supervision and management services to the Power Generation
Enterprises of CPINE, including but not limited to:

(1) detecting issues relating to equipment timely through
conducting technical supervision, putting forward practical
solutions to the issues and continuously tracking, supervising
and rectifying the issues identified;

(2)  undertaking the training, collection of evidence, inspection and
examination relating to technical supervision;

(3) participating in the assessment and verification work relating to
technical programs and feasibility study, etc.;

(4)  participating in on-site investigation, examination and project
evaluation organised by CPINE;

(5)  providing technical analysis report and relevant technical
supervision information and scientific and technological
information; and

(6) periodically reporting to CPINE the analysis, evaluation and
inspection results and issues identified over the term of the
Agreement

BB B BRI IER MR E — ST R201767 A25 BT I KN E &

HRBER NGRS  ZhEEAPEER NP EREIERNESE

FIRHRIME S BB REHIER G - BIRETRR

(1) RBARRMEEIE KNERJEFENEE - REDEA
TR R - HERAMBETIHER - BB

(2) AFAEERRMEENEI - BE - 28 mEITE

(3) ZINERMBMAR  IHEmESHNE  RELE

@) 2T EEEREREMNIESREDT  mEMBERFTEITE

(5) RHERMOFTHRE - REAERMESERMMEHRER - &

(6) MiHHESERPE TR AP ERHEIFERERST  FHAERBE
R LA R B IR ey e

Term: 25/07/2017-31/12/2019

HARR - (renewable within the 3 months immediately preceding the expiry of
the term by mutual agreement of the Parties, subject to compliance
with the relevant requirements under the Listing Rules)
201747250 %2019 12 A31H
(fEESF R AIZ AR ESKT - A B HAMR @M AT 318 A A ETAY
FHEE hERER)

Annual Cap: 25/07/2017-31/12/2017: RMB12,000,000

FELR: 201797250 %2017412 318 - AKR#¥12,000,0007T

01/01/2018-31/12/2018: RMB20,000,000
2018F1A1HZE2018%12A31H : AR¥20,000,0007T

01/01/2019-31/12/2019: RMB26,000,000
2019F1 A1EZE20195F12 4318 - AR#%26,000,0007T
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

(iii)

Type: Connected Transaction

Lk HER S

Announcement Date: 15/09/2017

NEHH 201749 H15H

Parties: (a) Fengtai China Power Biomass Power Generation Company
HESPE Limited* (“Contract Letting Party”) — an indirect wholly-owned

subsidiary of the Company
BETFELENERBTARAR([ERT ) — ARAEEZER
JEEYN

(b)  SPI Power Engineering Company Limited* (“Contractor”) —
a company incorporated in the PRC and a subsidiary of SPIC
(a substantial shareholder of the Company), and therefore a
connected person of the Company for the purpose of the Listing
Rules
PERENIRARQB(HABT]) — RPEEMKILZ D
8 MRARABFERFRERER ZMELR - Bibit EmRAl
M= RARRNEEAL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

@A KB

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT AGREEMENT - on 15 September 2017,
the Parties entered into the Construction Project Agreement
pursuant to which the Contractor has agreed to complete the
materials procurement, construction installation and engineering
implementation, project management, supervision of facilities
production, commissioning, acceptance testing, training, handover of
production, performance quality assurance and services covering the
quality assurance period of the Fengtai County Agricultural Biomass
Power Generation Project of the Contract Letting Party
TITREBER-FTAAR2017F9A15HT LI RER AR @ &t
FRHERERHEERERTERREMEYERETREBRN
BRZMEERE  BERERTIRET  HEER  RMERE A
Ao Bl B BRAE - HREEERE  ITRESREHRZRK
7%

Term:

HAMR

15/09/2017-28/02/2019 (expected completion date of the Project)
20174 9A15AE201992 A28 (AR 2 EHRIRMH)

Consideration:

B :

RMB180,961,542
AER#180,961,5427C
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(iv)
Type: Continuing Connected Transaction
LLithE FEMERS
Announcement Date: 16/10/2017
NEHE 20174F10H16H
Parties: (@  CPINE —an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
HESRE PEEEFER — ARRBEER2ENB AR

(b)  Beijing China Power Huizhi Technology Company Limited (“China
Power Huizhi”) — a wholly-owned subsidiary of China Power
International Development Limited (HKEx: 2380) and also an
indirect subsidiary of SPIC, and therefore a connected person of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing Rules
ERPEEERMZBERAR ([FEEE]) —FEENEEER
BERAF (BRFTRMGHRSE - 2380) 22 BMBAF - AFIHE
BRER 2 FEMEAT - Bitst EHRAIN S RAR R 2 B
AL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

ERP SYSTEM CONSTRUCTION FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT — on 16
October 2017, the Parties entered into the ERP System Construction

THEM LB Framework Agreement, which sets out the framework for the provision
by China Power Huizhi of services in connection with construction
and implementation of an ERP (enterprise resource planning) system
to CPINE and the power generation enterprises and subordinate
companies designated by CPINE
ERPEMERIERGHAE —FI#M2017F 10 A 16 HFILERPR A2
RIERWZES @ LR EFAREES MR EREIEERIEETH
BHELENTBARRHEBMERLERERP (RXERRE) Rl
B2 ER

Term: 16/10/2017-15/10/2020

HARR 2017910816 HE20205F10415H

Annual Cap: 16/10/2017-31/12/2017: RMB5.4 million

FEER : 20174F10A16BE2017F 128318 : ARBSAEET

01/01/2018-31/12/2018: RMB12.1 million
201851 H1HE20185F12A31H : ARB1218ET

01/01/2019-31/12/2019: RMB10.6 million
2019%F1 A1HZE2019412A318 : AR¥1068&T

01/01/2020-15/10/2020: RMB9.6 million
2020F1 A1HZE2020%108158 : ARBIASET
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(v)

Date:
BRI A g B A

Type: Continuing Connected Transaction
|E SEMEBER S

Announcement Date: 16/10/2017

NERE: 20174F10H16H

Extraordinary General Meeting 01/12/2017

2017F12A1H

Parties:

HEVE

(@  The Company
¥ /N

(b) SPIC Financial Co.,Ltd (”SPIC Financial”) — a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of SPIC (a substantial shareholder of the
Company) and therefore a connected person of the Company for
the purpose of the Listing Rules
EREREEVBEERAD(BERERTHELD - —FNF BT
B2 BREARF]  RERBR(AARN—REEZRR) 22
BHAMBAR - Ftst EHRAIT S AARRIMNEEAL

Description and purpose of the
transaction:

RepEAMEE R

FINANCIAL SERVICES FRAMEWORK AGREEMENT - on 16 October
2017, the parties entered into the Financial Services Framework
Agreement pursuant to which SPIC Financial has agreed to provide
the Group with deposit services, loan services, settlement services, and
other financial services approved by the China Banking Regulatory
Commission on a non-exclusive basis subject to the terms and
conditions provided therein

S EMRFSIEZR B — T4 A 2017F 10 A 16 HE M & B BR IS IEZE 17
& Bt BRERUBERERGRRTE 2 RGN - 1IEB
REEOREEREFTHRS EFRY - SERB LT ERITHEEE
BEEBZEE 7 Eth e mRY

Term:

HAMR -

01/12/2017-30/11/2020
201712 A1HE2020911 A30H

Cap:
ER

RMB1 billion (approximately HK$1.19 billion) in respect of the
maximum daily balance of deposits (including accrued interests) placed
in SPIC Financial

ERZERUBERz&SFAFERES (BREEATE) SARK
10f87T ($911.98%7T)

Further details of the above connected transactions and
continuing connected transactions are set out in the respective
announcements and/or circulars, which are available on the

PRERGRFEWER G2 E—F
HBEHNEAZAERIBHA - A
FIRBE S P R AN A RIS ETTE R

websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.
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ANNUAL REVIEW ON CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised)
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PricewaterhouseCoopers
has issued an unqualified letter containing findings and
conclusions in respect of the continuing connected transactions
disclosed by the Group in the paragraph above in accordance with
Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the
independent non-executive directors of the Company reviewed
the continuing connected transactions in the paragraph above
and confirmed that the transactions were entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Group as a whole.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of other related party transactions, which do not constitute
connected or continuing connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules, are set out in Note 37 to the financial
statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best knowledge of the directors of the Company,
there was sufficient public float of not less than 25% of issued
shares of the Company/CPNE as required under the Listing Rules
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in the Companies
Ordinance) for the benefits of the directors of the Company/CPNE
is currently in force and was in force throughout the year.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are
set out in the Corporate Governance Report in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.

INFORMATION TO SHAREHOLDERS

Closure of register of members

Right to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM: the register of
members of the Company will be closed from 25 June 2018 to 28
June 2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining this
right. In order to be entitled to attend and vote at the 2018 AGM,
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents accompanied with the corresponding
share certificates are lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar,
Tricor Tengis Limited, at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s
Road East, Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
22 June 2018.

Entitlement to the proposed final dividend: the register of
members of the Company will also be closed from 6 July 2018 to
10 July 2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
this entitlement. In order to be qualified for the proposed final
dividend (if approved by the shareholders at the 2018 AGM),
unregistered holders of shares of the Company should ensure that
all share transfer documents accompanied with the corresponding
share certificates are lodged with the Company’s Share Registrar
at the above address for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on 5
July 2018.

Annual report

This annual report is published in English and Chinese bilingual
format and is available on the Stock Exchange’s website at
http://www.hkexnews.hk under “Listed Company Information”
and the Company’s website at http://www.cpne.com.hk. Printed
copies in both languages are posted to shareholders.

On behalf of the Board tXExH=

Wang Binghua ER#E
Chairman % /&

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
&% - 201853 716H

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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To the Members of China Power Clean Energy Development
Company Limited

(Known as “China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited” before group reorganisation)

(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of China Power Clean
Energy Development Company Limited (the “Company”), known
as “China Power New Energy Development Company Limited”
before group reorganisation, and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 112 to 240, which comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2017;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2017, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Classification, valuation and impairment of an available-for-
sale financial asset

o Impairment assessment of goodwill

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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Key Audit Matter

BREXSEE

Classification, valuation and impairment of an
available-for-sale financial asset

ATHHESREEND B - HERRKE

Refer to notes 4 and 27 to the consolidated financial
statements
ZIRIER A B SRR N 5 E4 K27

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated financial
statements included an available-for-sale financial asset
of approximately RMB244,000,000, representing a
20% equity interest investment which is mainly related
to a land development right. During 2016, the Group
entered into a Supplementary Framework Agreement
(Original agreement signed on 29 May 2015) on
share transfer with an independent third party to
dispose of its entire equity interest. The Supplementary
Framework Agreement was extended by both parties
in 2017 due to the uncertainty on the approval of
the revised development plan by local government
that might postpone the share transfer completion
date. During 2017, the equity interest investment
amounting to approximately RMB255,000,000 has
been reclassified from non-current asset classified as
held for sale to an available-for-sale financial asset
following management'’s reassessment that it is unlikely
to complete the transaction within the next twelve
months from the balance sheet date.

R20175F12A310 - AW BRRBEAIHLES
Bl & E # AR 244,000,000 7T ¢ 1 K 20% B #E %
B FERHA-ELHMRAEE - R20165F - E%5E
H—ZEIE=FFI U —EROEBEMTIERDE
(72015565 429 # TR =) AR EHE 2 &R
o BREM IR ELETREAS 2T EEN
NBEERNERETKBE - FTHEFER2017F
ERERIEEmZE - R2017F - REKEHDARE
255,000,000t E R EEEBHREZ RS TAA R BEE
ARREARKI2{E A AT EH EFETEE - BHER
REHEZIERBEESHH R HEESHEE
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BEMHERNTEEBRELSER

Our procedures in relation to the key assumptions used
in the classification, valuation and impairment of the
available-for-sale financial asset included:
BRI L EeRMEEN DR - MEIRERRH
BARMBRRIRREZ B4

o Assessing the likelihood of the disposal
transaction completing after the year end
by checking to the signed shares transfer
framework agreement, the business plan on
the disposal of the assets and interviewed the
independent third party to understand the
likelihood of completing the potential disposal
transaction within twelve months from the
balance sheet date;
BAREEEFNRMNERERDZ  LEE
ENEBHEIRGHBYE=ZTHRNEERR
1218 AR TEROBTE & 32 5 A a8 M YRR AR -
HERBTHHERZ SR REMEET TR

o Confirming the details of Supplementary
Framework Agreement and the latest status of
the revised development plan by sending audit
confirmation to the independent third party;
RBABYE - A ELERRRASERETIE
BRI RIS MAERT & T BB RFIRAE -
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Key Audit Matter (cont’d)

BREXSHEE)
Classification, valuation and impairment of an
available-for-sale financial asset (cont'd)

AREETMEENDE - GERBEGE)

Management engaged an independent external appraiser
to perform a valuation on the available-for-sale financial
asset using the asset-based approach, for which its fair
value less costs to sell is determined based on market
value of the land of the comparable development nearby
less costs to completion including construction cost and
resettlement cost.
ERERRE—ZEINBAEMEEAEEERE A
HEESRMEELETHE AR TERBESKAREE
B3 AT & LE B 5 B Y + 3 T (ERL S8 TR (B HE IR SR AR
RARBER) MEEE

Management considered that the fair value of the
available-for-sale financial asset was approximately
RMB244,000,000 as at 31 December 2017, decreased
by approximately RMB11,000,000 as compared
to the original investment cost of approximately
RMB255,000,000 and recognised the decrease through
equity during the year then ended.

ERERA - M2017F12A3MBAIHBEeREEZR
FEAKAREE244,000,0007T © BIAREKALAR
#255,000,0007TR 4] A #511,000,0007T - 3735 i@ E
iuiﬁtifm%ﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬂ% °

We focused on this area as the classification, valuation
and impairment of the available-for-sale financial asset
involve significant management judgement.

BRI ERE - RAZAHEESMEENDE -
BENBES R EEEBRIE AL -

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

(cont'd)

EMMERNNEEFRRERSR ()

o Assessing the competence, capabilities and
objectivity of the management’s external
appraiser, and involving our internal valuation
specialist to evaluate the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and the key assumptions
used;

A EIR MDA ERTR B R - sE HFAEEI -
WM AFAIE A FBEEBRKETE T REETER
BREROHEEL

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
such as land unit rates, related construction cost
and resettlement cost by benchmarking with
comparable development nearby;
RIEMDA AT B L RFAEIEE - SHEBERERRENE
%% Pl ETTE R - AR RS AT B

o Performing sensitivity analysis in consideration
of the potential impact of reasonably possible
upside or downside changes in these key
assumptions; and
?ﬁﬁfﬁix{ﬁj*ﬂ TREA IR IR 2 BH RAF &S
ZBERE  ETERESN R

o Assessing the appropriateness of the criteria
applied by management in their assessment
of whether the decrease in fair value was
“significant” or “prolonged” by comparing the
decrease to the original investment cost and
determining the duration of decrease.

AEEREEN G ATETRESSEI KBS &
B ) 5 FTER AR BRI AR 1 B A AR I T PR B 2
Ti[‘j'—“* °

We found that the key assumptions used by
management in relation to the valuation of available-
for-sale financial asset to be supportable by the
evidence we obtained.

HFEE - BREHAHEEREENGEMRA
EVRABRRER A A 1S /RRE S HF o
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Key Audit Matter (cont’d)

BREZEERA)

Impairment assessment of goodwill

BB RER G

Refer to notes 4 and 18 to the consolidated financial
statements
LR AR S I SR M4 18

As at 31 December 2017, the consolidated financial
statements included goodwill of approximately
RMB1,023,692,000, in relation to the acquisition of
natural gas power plant and wind power plant in 2007.
Management performed annual impairment assessment
of goodwill, or when there is an indicator of impairment.

R2017F12 310 » &6 M Wk 8112007 F
WERAAREERMEANEEHNTENOARE
1,023,692,0007C * B2 EFF N A B BT ER #
RSB (TR A

For the purpose of impairment review, the recoverable

amount of cash generated unit, which the goodwill

belongs to, is determined based on value-in-use

calculation using discounted cash flow models.

RTETRESES  BEMBENRSESELRATIE

%%%ﬁ%@%%ﬁﬁim%ﬁ”mﬁﬁﬁﬁ BHE
oo

Management has concluded that there is no impairment
in respect of the goodwill.

EEENGRERERERIE

This annual impairment assessment is significant to our
audit because the impairment assessment process is
complex and involves significant management judgement
with respect to the key assumptions of revenue growth in
electricity output and discount rates used in the value-in-
use calculation.

FERFEREHEERMANEZEELN - REZRBER

BT - R B E B A A R
ﬁﬁ“%ﬂ%ﬁ?%@ﬁﬁmyaﬁFMV%ﬁméx
‘Hﬂ °
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
(cont'd)

B ERNTEEBEREXEE(H)

Our procedures in relation to key assumptions used
by management on goodwill impairment assessment
included:

SETRE R AR B R E R RIS RR
BAR BT -

APIERTT

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the valuation
methodology and the key assumptions used and
also involving our internal valuation specialist
to evaluate the reasonableness of discount rate
applied in the valuation model;

ST G PR i 77 TR R R 25 B 1 30 S
ﬁm@%ﬁ@\iﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁfm
2SI

o Assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
such as revenue growth rate in electricity output
and discount rates by comparing with the Group’s
prior year performance and benchmarking with
the market trend of comparable location, as
well as comparing the current year actual results
with the prior year budget in order to assess the
reliability of management budget and strategic
plans;

@@%m EEBA—FREW2E A LR
ﬁ%@ C ARE AR FEBEREEER— 58
AR EROSENY - flEHREKRA
E%ﬁf AFHEEIR BT S M B AT 8l

#

o Agreeing the input data used in the value-in-
use calculation, such as power plant utilisation
rate and per unit electricity price, to supporting
evidence, such as approved budgets and the
agreed electricity rate by the respective provincial
power grid companies; and

RBREMEMEMEEBEM ST EEREERN
%m%kﬁﬁ MEREEER. Tﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬂ

uﬁzuTEE;g’;ArmLTfE &

o Assessing management’s sensitivity analysis
around the key assumptions, to ascertain
the extent to which adverse changes, both
individually or in aggregate, would result in the
goodwill being impaired.

AHEE IR EH R RR A GURIED T - UREEE
BRARN TN K ERHEXEBNEE -

We found the key assumptions used by management

on goodwill impairment assessment to be supportable

by the evidence we obtained.

ﬁﬁ%ﬁ FIEER A B ERER RN ERRR
SRR pMSIZ%—J' °
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group'’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 405 of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR'’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT'D)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group'’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
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We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chung Kit Yi, Kitty.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16 March 2018
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HZE2017F12A31HIEFE

2017 2016

201745 20164

Note RMB’000 RMB’000

B aE ARETTT ARETIT

Revenue and tariff adjustment LONSER- &k 5 4,820,975 4,726,592

Other income HAKA 6 65,458 66,130

Other gains, net Hibdizs - B 7 12,688 72,914
Fuel costs YR IDWIN (2,215,299) (2,147,329)
Staff costs BB 11 (252,130) (239,938)
Depreciation and amortisation e REH (884,502) (835,980)
Repairs and maintenance W& EE (112,838) (93,899)
Other operating expenses HAg Rz (391,189) (425,291)

Operating profit KR A 8 1,043,163 1,123,199

Finance income B TSR A 9 11,367 46,515
Finance costs BI5E A 9 (526,522) (550,322)
Finance costs, net HEER  FRE 9 (515,155) (503,807)

Share of profits of associates FE(EEE S N A A 12,752 9,366

Share of profits of joint ventures FEEEBDEDT 19,946 36,396

Profit before tax B BT Y A 560,706 665,154
Income tax expense FriSfif X 10 (156,860) (264,504)

Profit for the year F R 403,846 400,650
The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these F121 2240 BT RALR G B TRE

consolidated financial statements.

ZEk ©
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mE W xR
2017 2016
20174 20165
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
B ARBFIT ARBFIT
Attributable to: B
Equity holders of the Company KNATIRESIEA A 401,702 404,536
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR I A 2,144 (3,886)
403,846 400,650
Earnings per share for profit attributable ~ FRANA TS
to equity holders of the Company during  fE{&& Fll 2 B Z F
the year (expressed in RMB per share) (LNERAREIITR)
— basic —EK 12 0.3385 0.3409
—diluted —#E 12 0.3385 0.3409

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these F121E240 B M ARG A B HRE
consolidated financial statements. ZERS o
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

SREEHEBAR

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive (loss)/income
that may be reclassified to consolidated
income statement:

HE2017F12A3181LEE
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETTT
F R H| 403,846 400,650

AREEF D REFERER

ZEMEE(EER), MW

Currency translation differences B =R (273) 2,088
Fair value change on available-for-sale AN ESREE
financial asset, net of tax N EEE
(FEHBRTIIE) (8,250) -
Other comprehensive (loss)/income FREMEE(ER),
for the year Wz (8,523) 2,088
Total comprehensive income for the year FRNEENEEZE 395,323 402,738
Attributable to: 5B
Equity holders of the Company RAREEFEA 393,179 406,624
Non-controlling interests FEFERR 2,144 (3,886)
395,323 402,738

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these FNNZ240E T RAGE BB ImE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
GREERER

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2017 2017512 A31H
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
B aE ARETIT ARET T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets JERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KLRE 15 18,210,016 17,329,774
Lease prepayments HETEMRIA 16 303,771 210,722
Investment properties AW 17 308,496 308,496
Intangible assets M AE 18 1,055,192 1,054,614
Interests in associates NI 19 153,569 136,891
Interests in joint ventures REBERE 2 ER 20 231,912 249,319
Long-term prepayments and deposits REEM B RIES 22 891,651 609,833
Available-for-sale financial asset AfHESREE 27 244,000 -
Deferred income tax assets FEFTSTREE 32 27,180 24,586
21,425,787 19,924,235
Current assets MEVEE
Inventories FE 23 125,518 105,165
Accounts receivable FEUBR TR 24 1,322,038 939,712
Prepayments, deposits and ERFIE - Fek
other receivables H i el I8 22 931,371 811,269
Financial assets at fair value BB AN EDER
through profit or loss ZEREE 25 7,140 7,216
Cash and cash equivalents HE NS EEIEBAH 26 775,703 1,816,761
3,161,770 3,680,123
Non-current asset classified NERFEHEZ
as held for sale ERBNEE 27 - 255,000
3,161,770 3,935,123
Total assets BEHAE 24,587,557 23,859,358

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these FI21E240 BT AR A ISR
consolidated financial statements. ZEBS o



CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
1 1 6 HEENBREFRERERAR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

mEEERER
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
i AREFIT AREFIT
EQUITY =
Capital and reserves attributable to equity ZWQ BIAEZEIEA A FEIEAL
holders of the Company PN
Share capital &N 28 5,746,012 1,077,101
Share premium 10 mE 28 - 195,308
Reserves B 29 2,708,416 6,930,428
8,454,428 8,202,837
Non-controlling interests IEEAR T 99,268 70,565
Total equity pr ey k] 8,553,696 8,273,402
LIABILITIES a1&
Non-current liabilities e UN=Er=
Long-term bank and other borrowings ~ EHIRITR EMEE 30 9,363,857 9,748,816
Corporate bond TEES 31 799,363 -
Construction costs payable FE SRR AN 34 947,656 976,153
Other non-current payables H b JEBNERFE S 5RIA 34 131,173 54,144
Deferred income tax liabilities FIEFTSR B E 32 75,286 112,317
11,317,335 10,891,430

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these 21 E240 B WM BARAR & BT ISk

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

GAEEAER
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5E AREFIT ARETIT
Current liabilities mEEE
Accounts payable FETERIR 33 46,639 34,753
Construction costs payable TR 34 813,214 941,799
Other payables and accrued charges E b IE R
EETER 34 296,737 283,378
Short-term bank and other borrowings %2 EA$R1T M E g & 30 489,939 715,588
Current portion of long-term bank and ~ REJSRITRHMEE
other borrowings BIHEAER > 30 3,027,131 1,856,483
Corporate bond TEES 31 - 799,343
Income tax payable EATER 42,866 63,182
4,716,526 4,694,526
Total liabilities 16,033,861 15,585,956
Total equity and liabilities 24,587,557 23,859,358

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these FI121E240E M T RS A M wK

consolidated financial statements. ZEpS o
Wang Fengxue Zhao Xinyan

TE=Z2 TR

Director Director

EF EF



CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

118

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY
llv_\é\*géﬁib%

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE2017F12A3181EFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

KAREREE AR
Share Share Other  Retained
capital  premium reserves  earnings Non-
(Note 28(a) (Note 28(b))  (Note29)  (Note29) controlling
Bax  RGEE  HEE  REBF interests Total
(WH28(a) (Maras(b))  (P&F29)  (ME29)  FREERER st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
Balance at 1 January 2017 R01I7E1B1B 28 1,077,001 195308 4751812 2,178616 70565 8273402
Profit and total comprehensive FNRHREENEEE
income for the year - - (8,523) 401,702 2,144 395,323
Transactions with owners in BEFAMEEASD)
their capacity as owners X5
Share options forfeited afterthe  SBHAR AR NERE
end of the vesting period - - (3,345) 3,345 - -
Dividend paid (Note 13) B (HEE13) - - (141,588) - - (141,588
Contribution from REFARERNLE
non-controlling interests - - - - 26,559 26,559
Cancellation of CPNE shares HEPENEERD
(Note 28aii)) (PHZE28 (ayii) (1,077,101)  (195,308)  (4,473,603) - - (5746,012)
Issue of new CPCE shares pursuant 1R IE B4 7 %517
to the Reorganisation Proposal TREEREERD
(Note 28(a)(iv) (B528 (alv) 5,746,012 - - - - 5746012
Transfer (Note 29(ii)) B2 (B E29() - - (198,384) 198,384 - -
Total transactions with ownersin -~ S A A (LVEBASH)
their capacity as owners MR HEE 4,668,911 (195,308)  (4,816,920) 201,729 26,559 (115,029)
Balance at 31 December 2017 R2017E12831R 2 &8 5,746,012 - (73,631) 2,782,047 99,268 8,553,696
The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these F121 2240 BT RALRE B IE

consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mERBREER

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RAREREEARS
Share Share Other  Retained
capital  premium  reserves  earnings Non-

(Note 28(a)) (Note 28(b))  (Note29)  (Note 29) controlling
RE  ROEE  HttfEE  RERF interests Total
(Hi&k2s(a)) (Kizkas(b))  (FfE29)  (MfEF29) SRR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT ARETR ARETT AR%TR

Balance at 1 January 2016 R2016F1R18 268 1,077,101 195308 4,797,502 1,764,155 36,554 7,870,620

Profit and total comprehensive A H & 2 E Yz

income for the year k] - - 2,088 404,536 (3,886) 402,738
Transactions with owners in HEFAEEAFH)

their capacity as owners A5
Contribution from REFERERNOER

non-controlling interests - - - - 37,897 37,897

Share options forfeited after the  G3BEAE R RIS

end of the vesting period i - - (9,925) 9,925 - -
Dividend paid ERRE - - (37853 - - (37,853)
Total transactions with ownersin -~ EEEE A (LAER AF 1)
their capacity as owners MR 515 - - (47,778) 9,925 37,897 44
Balance at 31 December 2016  }A2016%12A31H
2iEE 1,077,101 195,308 4,751,812 2,178,616 70,565 8,273,402

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these F121E2240E KT ARG A BB ®RE
consolidated financial statements. =i



CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
1 20 HEENBREFRERERAR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GeERETRER

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017 HE2017F12A31HILFE
2017 2016
20175 20165
Note RMB'000 RMB’000
BiaE ARBTTT ARETT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBAERERE
Cash generated from operations BETHEENES 35 1,573,086 1,628,900
PRC income tax paid BN ETEH (214,051) (195,220)
Net cash generated from operating activities 484 EEhE 4 IR %5 1,359,035 1,433,680
Cash flows from investing activities REZBHFERETE
Payments for property, mE - WELREZ
plant and equipment I (2,154,527) (2,238,690)
Payments for lease prepayments MEBMFIEAR (99,535) (58,925)
Payments for intangible assets B EERNT (4,532) (2,164)
Proceeds received from disposals of HEDE « BE MR
property, plant and equipment FTUER I FT1S 50 0R 28,952 21,194
Capital injection into an associate m—EEE R R
EEMEIE (9,200) -
Acquisition of a joint venture WHE—HEERE (10,500) -
Dividends received from associates and Bl E AR R
joint ventures SEPERE 15,254 56,075
Proceeds received from disposal HE—MEENE
of a joint venture PS8 20 5,280 -
Interest received BHFLE 11,367 46,515
Decrease in pledged deposits BEHRERR D - 501,750
Net cash used in investing activities REETBAR G F5E (2,217,441) (1,674,245)
Cash flows from financing activities METBIERERE
Contribution from non-controlling interests 38 & JEiE AR REZ A HE 26,559 37,897
New bank and other borrowings FERITIEAMEE 30 2,818,663 3,249,456
New corporate bond, net of MERES  IGRRS
transaction costs B AR 799,200 -
Repayment of bank and other borrowings ~ {&EHEITREMEE 30 (2,258,623) (1,653,421)
Repayment of corporate bond BELEES (800,000) -
Dividend paid BRARE 13 (141,588) (37,853)
Interest paid BRFE (626,863) (538,565)
Net cash (used in)/generated from WEEE (TR, ELH
financing activities &R (182,652) 1,057,514
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReMREFEER
cash equivalents CRd),/sghnFae (1,041,058) 816,949
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January MATBZR & kR %A
IEE 1,816,761 999,812
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December ~ R12A31RZHE KREE
I8! 26 775,703 1,816,761

The notes on pages 121 to 240 are an integral part of these F121E240 B WM GE RARGR S Bk
consolidated financial statements. iR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

1 GENERAL INFORMATION

The Reorganisation Proposal announced by the Boards of
Directors of China Power New Energy Development Company
Limited (“CPNE"), the former holding company of the Group were
successfully completed during the year.

With the completion of the Reorganisation Proposal, CPNE
and all its subsidiaries became direct and indirect subsidiaries
of China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited
("CPCE" or the "Company”) respectively, CPCE became the
new holding company of the Group, and the shares of CPCE are
listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) while the listing status of CPNE
on the Stock Exchange had been withdrawn. The Reorganisation
Proposal was not a business combination, but an internal capital
reorganisation. Upon completion of the Reorganisation Proposal,
CPCE controls and operates the same assets and businesses as
CPNE. The Reorganisation Proposal did not involve any change
in the beneficial ownership of the Group nor any change to the
nature and scale of existing operations, save for changing the
place of incorporation of the holding company of the Group
from Bermuda to Hong Kong. Accordingly, the consolidated
financial statements of CPCE is a continuation of CPNE's existing
and on-going activities with assets and liabilities at existing book
values, and include CPNE’s full results for the year, including
comparatives. Further details of the Reorganisation Proposal were
set out in a circular issued by CPNE dated 14 June 2017.

The Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the development, construction, owning,
operation and management of clean energy power plants in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), including but not limited
to the following types of energy generation — natural gas power
generation, wind power generation, hydro power generation,
waste-to-energy power generation, photovoltaic power generation
and other power generation. The Group is also engaged in
investment holding in the clean energy power industry, property
investments and securities investments.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), unless otherwise stated.
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CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS") issued by HKICPA and requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. These consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current liabilities
of approximately RMB1,554,756,000. In preparing these
consolidated financial statements, the directors have taken into
account all information that could reasonably be expected to
be available and have ascertained that the Group has obtained
adequate financial resources to support the Group to continue
in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Based on
the Group’s history of obtaining finance, its relationship with
its bankers, banking facilities available and net operating cash
inflow, the directors consider that the Group will be able to obtain
adequate financial resources to enable it to operate and meet its
liabilities and commitments as and when they fall due within the
next twelve months from the balance sheet date. Accordingly, the
directors have prepared these consolidated financial statements
on a going concern basis.

In the current year, the Group has adopted the following
amendments to standards and improvements issued by the
HKICPA that are relevant to the Group’s operations and
mandatory for annual periods beginning 1 January 2017.

HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities

HKAS 7 (Amendments) Statement of Cash Flows

HKAS 12 (Amendments) Income Taxes

The adoption of these amendments to standards and new
interpretation does not have a material impact on the Group’s
accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

At the date of these consolidated financial statements are
approved for issue, the following new standards and amendments
to standards have been issued but are not effective and have not
been early adopted:

2 FEEHEEBERE

2.1 WAEEEE)
BEAGAMBHRAERER - AT
#a] Rl R EANERT 2 MM - B R
R AW ARERFRS

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on

or after

Nl A=pEE

LAIZ BRIREY

R e

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments 1 January 2018
BB RELERNFE R CRITE 201851 A1H
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 1 January 2018
FRWHREERE 1555 RS RVAS R Ol L ON 201851 A1H
HKFRS 1 (Amendments) First Time Adoption of HKFRS 1 January 2018
BRI REERIE 15 (BAET) BRERM BBV RS LR 20181 A1H

HKFRS 2 (Amendments)

Classification and Measurement of

1 January 2018

Share-based Payment Transactions

BB RS ERE 25 (125])
HKFRS 4 (Amendments)

WARR D RER R Z SR D NG S
Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

20181 A1H
1 January 2018

with HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

BRI EER B4 (ERT)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HEBMBHREERFSRRBE O —PHERES
M ERFESRERMTA
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

20181 A1H

1 January 2018

EREGTAERIZE285 (185]) REEERRIREEREZRE 20181 H1H

HKAS 40 (Amendments) Transfers of Investment Property 1 January 2018

BB GRTERIZE405: (125]) EEREME 20181 H1H

HK (IFRIC) — Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance 1 January 2018

Consideration

HE(ERMBREREEZEEY) INERXHRENKE 201851 A1H
—mEE225%

HKFRS 16 Leases 1 January 2019

FEPHREENE 165 iR 201951 A1H

HK (IFRIC) — Interpretation 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 1 January 2019

&8 (ERTHBRERELZES FrigtiRiEz MEE M 20191 A1H
—REFE235%

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor To be determined
(Amendments) and its Associate or Joint Venture

HEMBREERFE 1097 & REFEHBMENFINAELELHEERN €
BEGHERIZE285% (185]) HELHE

The Group will apply the above new standards and amendments
to standards from 1 January 2018 or later periods. The Group
has already commenced an assessment of the related impact
to the Group but is not yet in a position to state whether any
substantial changes to the Group’s significant accounting policies
and presentation of the consolidated financial statements will be
resulted.

AEBFEBF2018F 1 A1 H #E 5k E 1% Hf
R4 _E i FTaT R R ERHERT - A&
BERRTHEAEE2ERBTE - A
M NEBEKRERTZENEL R
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

A number of new standards and amendments to standards and
interpretations are effective for annual periods beginning after
1 January 2018 and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these is expected to
have a significant effect on the consolidated financial statements
of the Group, except the following set out below:

(i) HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’

Nature of change

HKFRS 9 addresses the classification, measurement and
derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, introduces
new rules for hedge accounting and a new impairment model for
financial assets.

Impact

The Group has reviewed its financial assets and liabilities and is
expecting the following impact from the adoption of the new
standard on 1 January 2018. The financial assets held by the
Group include available-for-sale financial asset for which a fair
value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) election is
available and financial assets at fair value though profit or loss will
continue to be measured on the same basis under HKFRS 9 and
hence there will be no change to the accounting for these assets.

Accordingly, the Group does not expect the new guidance to
affect the classification and measurement of these financial assets.
However, gains or losses realised on the sale of financial assets
at FVOCI will no longer be transferred to profit or loss on sale,
but instead reclassified below the line from the FVOCI reserve to
retained earnings. During the 2017 financial year, approximately
RMB11,000,000 of such fair value change was recognised in
FVOCI reserve in relation to the available-for-sale financial asset.

There will be no impact on the Group’s accounting for financial
liabilities, as the new requirements only affect the accounting
for financial liabilities that are designated at fair value through
profit or loss and the Group does not have any such liabilities. The
derecognition rules have been transferred from HKAS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and have not been
changed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)
(i) HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’ (Cont’d)

Impact (Cont'd)

The new impairment model requires the recognition of
impairment provisions based on expected credit losses (ECL)
rather than only incurred credit losses as is the case under HKAS
39. It applies to financial assets classified at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI, contract assets under HKFRS 15
Revenue from Contracts with Customers, lease receivables, loan
commitments and certain financial guarantee contracts. Based on
the assessments undertaken to date, the Group does not expect
significant increase or decrease in the loss allowance for trade
debtors.

The new standard also introduces expanded disclosure
requirements and changes in presentation. These are expected to
change the nature and extent of the Group’s disclosures about its
financial instruments particularly in the year of the adoption of the
new standard.

Date of adoption by the Group

This standard must be applied for financial years commencing
on or after 1 January 2018. The Group will apply the new rules
retrospectively from 1 January 2018, with the practical expedients
permitted under the standard. Comparatives for 2017 will not be
restated.

(i) HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’

Nature of change

The HKICPA has issued a new standard for the recognition of
revenue. This will replace HKAS 18 which covers contracts for
goods and services and HKAS 11 which covers construction
contracts and the related literature.

The new standard is based on the principle that revenue is
recognised when control of a good or service transfers to a
customer. The standard permits either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach for the adoption.

Impact

The management of the Group has assessed the effects of
applying the new standard on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements and does not expect a significant impact on the
recognition of revenue.
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e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)

(i) HKFRS 15, ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’
(Cont’d)

Date of adoption by the Group

This standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or

after 1 January 2018. The Group intends to adopt the standard

using the modified retrospective approach which means that the

cumulative impact of the adoption will be recognised in retained

earnings as of 1 January 2018 and that comparatives will not be

restated.

(iii) HKFRS 16, ‘Leases’

Nature of change

HKFRS 16 was issued in January 2016. It will result in almost all
leases being recognised on the balance sheet, as the distinction
between operating and finance leases is removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial
liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are
short-term and low-value leases.

The accounting for lessors will not significantly change.

Impact

The standard will affect primarily the accounting for the Group’s
operating leases. As at the reporting date, the Group has non-
cancellable operating lease commitments of approximately
RMB4,448,000. The Group estimates those related to payments
for short-term and low value leases which will be recognised on a
straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss are insignificant.

The Group has not yet assessed what other adjustments, if any,
are necessary for example because of the change in the definition
of the lease term and the different treatment of variable lease
payments and of extension and termination options. It is therefore
not yet possible to estimate the amount of right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities that will have to be recognised on adoption of the
new standard and how this may affect the Group's profit or loss
and classification of cash flows going forward.

Date of adoption by the Group

This standard is mandatory for financial years commencing on or
after 1 January 2019. At this stage, the Group does not intend to
adopt the standard before its effective date. The Group intends
to apply the simplified transition approach and will not restate
comparative amounts for the year prior to first adoption.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made up to
31 December.

(a) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from
its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power to direct the activities of the entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date
that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting policies
of subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets transferred, the
liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition
date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition
date; any gains or losses arising from such remeasurement are
recognised in income statement.

2 FEEHEEBERE

2.2 HZEAR
GRAVBRERBEARAREMEH B
NBAEZE12A31BIE2FBHRE -

(a) HIEBAA
MEAREAREREHIEN - EE
(BREABILER) - EAKEBBEZ2T
EREMEBTELBOENHAZE
PR M ER RN REEERER
BB ELHRES R - AN EE A
ZER - -HWEARERHREBEARE
EEAMMEEAEE AR -HBARAE
2R L B EESRERRASIR o

SEHARRMZRS  #HRAEEAR
BIAIR % 2 KRB T IAEH o BRIF
RoEERMEREECRE - SRR

BRCEHVEZEE - URERERE
B PR 2 R — 2K

AEBRBUBEAKRBEHARK - I
BHBEAREZENNERBKBE TN
BEANMEEREE MELNABLRA
SEBTHRAEDNAFE - EE
MRERERXRRELHEENTMNE
ERBENRTE - EEBEHFH IR
BrRRIEENRPIAZNEERIR
BE - BENENKER BN FER
B - AEERZFABRBEE - UV E
ok 3% JR Y AR A 2 P A MR U7 A R
BECER B PR RS
JEVIRE RS o WA ATRE
HERFSCE o

HEBE G OEBOETT - BB STA
FAOBKRE T A ERRNKEE B
FHENENRFTEASWNERRNORTF
B RENAEELENTMRENER
T an R AR o



128

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(a) Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the Group
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Subsequent
changes to the fair value of the contingent consideration that
is deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 39 either in income statement or as a change to other
comprehensive income. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest measured is less
than the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired
in the case of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement (Note 2.8(a)).

On the Company’s balance sheet, investments in subsidiaries are
accounted for at cost less impairment (Note 2.9). Cost is adjusted
to reflect changes in consideration arising from contingent
consideration amendments. Cost also includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required
upon receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in
the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements exceeds the
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements of the
investee’s net assets including goodwill.

(b) Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in a
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions — that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of the
subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

2 FESTHERHMEE)

22 fHmEANRE)

(a) HELE(E)
NEBATEZENTMIAREFELE
BEEAFERR HRAE—IHEESN
BENIAREATEREEZD @ Bk
BESSERFEINMBTE - Nk
EPERNERAEMEAKEET -
DEAEENIAREBEEN= -
MmEBEENEZR AR -

Fresa (18 - #UREE 7 B0 (] FEIZ A i
% B R ] S BT UL E 7 e AR R
Wi B HM A FEBRMUER ERE
EFENAFENZEARIEDE -
WiEEAE - BERIEERER RITH
BERNEEN2RBEANEEREE
FIEERB A NEEFENAFE
Az E=Bmae BEN e ek IR (K
£+2.8(a)) °

RARREEREBERY  RHUBAFN
RE AR E AR (F3E2.9) o
AR T B AR BRI ARKEBERTEEDN
REEH - KA AREEBZMEK
AR o AN BRI W B B R A A B
BRREBEAR -

A BB KBRS M Z M B A R
2HREARE  RHBLHBERROK
BRREEBHAGA M B RRATKRE
RAEEFE(BREHE)WREE @ Bl
B EREWBUR B RHNZENE
RAIMBEETTRER -

(b) TEHZFIELELINELAHE
LB E

TEBREFHENFEBRERZSH A
RIERRR S - BIUBRSEREE AN
FMEREAANETHRS - EAEHK
ERFEEMKBREEGNEBARF
EERAENEZRNERALR - MIFE
PR mRETHE AN REABERITR
AR



ANNUAL REPORT 2017
3R 2017

129

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in income
statement. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the
purposes of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. It means the
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to income statement.

(d) Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control. This is generally the case where the
Group holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting, after initially being recognised at cost.
The Group's investment in associates includes goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest in
an associate, any difference between the cost of the associate
and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant
influence is retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to income statement where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the
carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of
losses in associates equals or exceeds its interest in the associate,
including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount
of the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to “share of profits of associates accounted for using
equity method” in the income statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.2 Consolidation (Cont'd)

(d) Associates (Cont’d)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are
recognised in the income statement.

(e) Joint arrangements

Joint arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint
ventures depending on the contractual rights and obligations
of each investor. The Group has assessed the nature of its joint
arrangements and determined them to be joint ventures. Joint
ventures are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses and movements in other comprehensive income. The
Group's investments in joint ventures include goodwill identified
on acquisition. Upon the acquisition of the ownership interest
in a joint venture, any difference between the cost of the joint
venture and the Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint
venture's identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as
goodwill. When the Group’s share of losses in joint ventures
equals or exceeds its interests in the joint ventures, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the joint ventures.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests
in joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s
entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional
currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions or valuation where the items are remeasured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and
cash and cash equivalents are presented in the income statement
within “finance income or finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the income statement
within “other gains — net”.

Translation difference on non-monetary finance assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss
are recognised in the consolidated income statement as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as available
-for-sale, are included in other comprehensive income.
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e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.3 Foreign currency translation (Cont’'d)

(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of
which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have
a functional currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance
sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iiiy  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are taken to other comprehensive income.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are
recognised in the consolidated income statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of
a foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign
entity and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment other than construction in progress
(see Note 2.5 below) are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises purchase price, costs transferred from construction in
progress and any directly attributable costs of bringing the assets
to the condition for their intended use.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their costs to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 14-50 years
Dam 50 years
Power generators and equipment 5-25 years
Others 3-17 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9). Such impairment
losses are recognised in income statement.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment are
determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount
and are recognised in income statement.
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e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.5 Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
under construction and pending installation and is stated at cost
less accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost includes the costs
of construction of buildings, the costs of plant and machinery
and interest charges arising from borrowings used to finance
these assets during the period of construction or installation and
testing. No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed and
are available for the intended use. When the assets concerned are
brought into use, the costs are transferred to other property, plant
and equipment and depreciated in accordance with the policy as
stated in Note 2.4 above.

2.6 Investment properties

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under operating
leases are accounted for as investment properties when the rest
of the definition of an investment property is met. In such cases,
the operating leases concerned are accounted for as if they
were finance leases. Investment property is initially measured at
cost, including related transaction costs and where applicable
borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment properties
are carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value
is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for any
difference in the nature, location or condition of the specific asset.
If the information is not available, the Group uses alternative
valuation methods such as recent prices on less active markets
or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair values are
recorded in income statement as part of a valuation gain or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M HRRM

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.7 Lease prepayments

Lease prepayments included land use rights, coast use rights and
other lease prepayments. They are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
mainly represents consideration paid for the rights to use the land
or coast on which various plants and buildings are situated and
up-front prepayment made for operating leases. Amortisation of
lease prepayments is calculated on a straight-line basis over the
period of the leases.

2.8 Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures and represents the excess of the consideration
transferred over the Group’s interest in net fair value of the
net identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the
acquiree and the fair value of the non-controlling interest in the
acquiree.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a
business combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs"), or groups of CGUs, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or group of
units to which the goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level
within the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating
segment level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU containing
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is the
higher of value-in-use and the fair value less costs of disposal. Any
impairment is recognised immediately as an expense and is not
subsequently reversed.

(b) Other intangible assets

Other intangible assets mainly include franchise right and
computer software. Cost of other intangible assets are initially
recognised and measured at cost. Other intangible assets with
definite useful lives are amortised on a straight-line basis either
over the respective period of the operating right or their estimated
useful lives of 10-30 years for franchise right and 5 years for
computer software respectively.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life or intangible
assets not ready to use are not subject to amortisation and
are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value-in-use. For the
purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(CGUs). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

2.10 Non-current asset classified as held for sale
Non-current assets are classified as held for sale when their
carrying amount is to be recovered principally through a sale
transaction and a sale is considered highly probable. The non-
current assets (except for certain assets as explained below), are
stated at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
to sell. Deferred tax assets, assets arising from employee benefits,
financial assets (other than investments in subsidiaries and
associates) and investment properties, even if classified as held
for sale, would continue to be measured in accordance with the
policies set out elsewhere in Note 2.

2.11 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables and available-for-sale. The classification depends
on the purposes for which the financial assets were acquired.
Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVPL")

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial
assets held for trading. A financial asset is classified in this
category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the
short term. Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this category are
classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12
months; otherwise, they are classified as non-current.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets, except for the
amounts that are settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the balance sheet date. These are classified as non-
current assets. The Group's loans and receivables mainly comprise
deposits with banks and accounts and other receivables with fixed
or determinable payments included in the consolidated balance
sheet.

(c) Available-for-sale

Investments are designated as available-for-sale financial asset
if they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or determinable
payments, and management intends to hold them for the medium
to long-term. Financial assets that are not classified into any of
the other categories (at FVPL or loans and receivables) are also
included in the available-for-sale category.

The financial assets are presented as non-current assets unless
they mature, or management intends to dispose of them within
12 months of the end of the reporting period.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recongnised on the trade-date — the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

When securities classified as available-for-sale are sold, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss as gains
and losses from investment securities.

2 FEEHEEBERE

211 ERMEEGE)

(b) EFRENERN

ERR YRR AL IR ERT S RE
mABETEHAEEMRZIFITESR
BE - ZERFIIARBEE - ERE
FRREBNEAKEXARAETEE
ZHBGNRIERBEE)BRIN - AEE
ZERREREREEBREFTARA]
ERER AN EE A EERR R
TTHFERIA B PR MR BRR e EL b B KURROR

(0 HHAE

fird 4% & I 4 [&] 7F B 20 A M B s Al B E
ZF - AlEE AR HHESREE
mEBRERETAHLETRARE - L3k
DRABEMNEMERNCEBBENAFE
FIRRSRE K EWRIR) 2 & BB E TR
AT SRR IR o

BRIEMMEHRRNEANGREED
IR EREERELEREEREE
BRGIRIERBEE -

NERTAEESREENAREAS
BEFHEEEZRHAER - MES
MEEEGSHRREZRENCEHNE
& AAKECEBBMARZIERED
R R e - AR ERZEEREE

WA BAAHEEZESFCEH KA
2R ERZ R A FEFBAE
MO BERRFANERFZ Mt KB

18 e



138

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.11 Financial assets (Cont’d)

(c) Available-for-sale (Cont'd)

Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction
costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are
expensed in the consolidated income statement. Available-for-sale
financial asset and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
provision for impairment.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the
“financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” and
“available-for-sale financial asset” category are presented in the
consolidated income statement and consolidated statement of
comprehensive income respectively in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale financial asset are recognised in
the consolidated income statement as part of other income when
the Group's right to receive payments is established.

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is
objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired. Impairment testing of accounts and other
receivables is described in Note 2.14.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not be
contingent on future events and must be enforceable in the
normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency
or bankruptcy of the company or the counterparty.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.13 Inventories
Inventories comprise coal, consumable supplies and spare parts
held for consumption and usage.

Coal, consumable supplies and spare parts held for consumption
and usage are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value after provision for obsolete items, and are expensed to fuel
costs or repairs and maintenance expense when used. Cost is
determined using the weighted average method. Cost comprises
purchase price and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition and excludes borrowing
costs.

2.14 Accounts and other receivables

Accounts and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any provision for impairment. A provision
for impairment of accounts and other receivables is established
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able
to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of
receivables. The amount of the provision is the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the assets is reduced through the use of
an allowance account, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement within other operating
expenses. When a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to other
gains in the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held
at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank
overdrafts.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.16 Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group
are classified according to the contractual arrangements entered
into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity
instrument. Financial liabilities (including accounts payable) are
initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. An equity
instrument is any contract that does not meet the definition of
financial liability and evidences a residual interest in the assets of
the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, net of
tax, directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in
equity as a deduction from the proceeds.

2.17 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction
costs) and the redemption amount is recognised in the
consolidated income statement over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the balance sheet date.

2.18 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax
laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the places where the Company and its subsidiaries, associate and
joint ventures operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to
interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements. However, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or a
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax
liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable profit will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax bases
of investments in foreign operations where the Group is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred income taxes assets
and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable entities
where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.
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POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.19 Employee benefits

(a) Pension obligations

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods.

The Group’s contributions to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme established under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance are expensed as incurred. Both the
Group and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
5% of each individual's relevant income with a maximum
amount of HK$1,500 per month as a mandatory contribution.
Employees may also elect to contribute more than the minimum
as a voluntary contribution. The assets of the scheme are held
separately from those of the Group and managed by independent
professional fund managers. The Group has no further payment
obligation once the contributions have been paid.

For employees in the PRC, the Group contributes on a monthly
basis to various defined contribution plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC based
on certain percentage of the relevant employees’ monthly salaries.
The municipal and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations payable to all existing and
future retired employees under these plans and the Group has no
further constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. Contributions to these plans are expensed
as incurred.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.19 Employee benefits (Cont’'d)

(a) Pension obligations (Cont’d)

All contributions to pension plans are fully and immediately vested
and the Group had no unvested benefits available to reduce its
future contributions.

(b) Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities of bonus plan are expected
to be settled within twelve months and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when they are settled.

(c) Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives service from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The
fair value of the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined by reference
to the fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact
of any non-market service and performance vesting conditions
(for example, profitability, sales growth targets and remaining
employees of the entity over a specific time period). Non-market
vesting conditions are included in assumptions about the number
of options that are expected to vest. At each balance sheet date,
the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest. It recognises the impact of the revision of
original estimates, if any, in the consolidated income statement,
with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction
costs are credited to share capital.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs and
legal claims are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the obligations
at the balance sheet date. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the liability. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

2.21 Finance lease

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment. Lease of
property, plant and equipment where the Group has substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased property and the
present value of the minimum lease payments.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.21 Finance lease (Cont'd)

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the consolidated income
statement over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

2.22 Operating lease

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are not transferred to the Group as lease are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged or credited
to the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease.

2.23 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time that is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale.
Qualifying assets are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they
are incurred.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.24 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in @ manner consistent with
the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors and
certain senior management of the Group that makes strategic
decisions.

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially
measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher of the
amount determined in accordance with HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets and the amount
initially recognised less cumulative amortisation, where
appropriate.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined as the present
value of the difference in net cash flows between the contractual
payments under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated
amount that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.

2.26 Revenue and income recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown net of
value-added tax and discounts and after eliminating sales within
the Group.

The Group recognises revenue and income when the amount can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities as described below.

(@)  Sales of electricity and revenue from heat supply by thermal
power plants are recognised when electricity and heat
capacity are generated and transmitted.
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2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.26 Revenue and income recognition (Cont’d)

(b)  Tariff adjustment represents subsidy received and receivable
from the local government authorities in respect of the
Group’s power generation business. Tariff adjustment is
recognised at its fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the additional tariff will be received and the
Group will comply with all attached conditions, if any.

(©)  Rubbish handling income and repairs and maintenance
management fee income are recognised when services are
rendered.

(d) Operating lease rental income is recognised on a straight-
line basis over the lease period.

(e) Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

(f)  Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

2.27 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions, if
any.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the consolidated income statement over the period necessary to
match them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONT'D)

2.28 Contingencies

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events
and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain event not wholly within
the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually certain,
an asset is recognised.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements unless the probability of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits is remote. When a change in the
probability of an outflow occurs so that the outflow is probable, it
will then be recognised as a provision.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s Members is recognised
as a liability in the financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s Members or directors as
appropriate.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risks (including: foreign exchange risk, cash flow and fair
value interest rate risks and price risk), credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Group's overall risk management programme focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.
The use of financial derivatives to hedge certain risk exposures
is governed by the Group’s policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Group does not use derivative financial instruments
for speculative purposes.

(a) Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with transactions mainly
settled in RMB, United States dollar (“US$"”), Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$") and Euros (“EURO™). Foreign exchange risk arises when
future commercial transactions or recognised assets and liabilities
are denominated in a currency that is not the entity’s functional
currency.

Management has a policy to require group companies to manage
their foreign exchange risk against functional currency. It mainly
includes managing the exposures arise from sales and purchases
made by the relevant group companies in currencies other
than their own functional currencies. The Group also manages
its foreign exchange risk by performing regular reviews of the
Group's net foreign exchange exposures. The Group has not used
any forward foreign exchange contracts or currency borrowings to
hedge its exposure as at 31 December 2017.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(a) Foreign exchange risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2017, if US$ had weakened/strengthened
by 5% (2016: 5%) against RMB, with all other variables
held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have been
approximately RMB48,000 (2016: RMB18,994,000) lower/higher,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange losses/gains on translation
of US$-denominated cash and cash equivalents.

Foreign exchange risk with respect to HK$ and EURO is minimal
as the Group has no significant HK$-denominated and EURO-
denominated assets and liabilities.

(b) Interest rate risk

The Group’s income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates and the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for certain
interest-bearing bank balances, details of which have been
disclosed in Note 26. The Group’s exposure to changes in interest
rates is mainly attributable to its borrowings, details of which have
been disclosed in Notes 30 and 31. Borrowings carried at floating
rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk whereas
borrowings carried at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest rate risk. The Group has not used any interest rate swap
to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(b) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

At 31 December 2017, if the interest rates had been 50 basis
points higher/lower than the prevailing rate announced by the
People’s Bank of China, with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year would have been approximately
RMB2,006,000 (2016: RMB43,211,000) lower/higher, mainly as a
net result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bank
and other borrowings and higher/lower interest income on bank
deposits.

(c) Price risk

The Group is exposed to commodity price risk mainly in relation to
the natural gas and coal price for its generation of electricity. The
Group has not used any forward contracts to hedge its exposure.

During the year, the Group's fuel costs amounted to approximately
RMB2,215,299,000 (2016: RMB2,147,329,000). If the fuel
costs had increased/decreased by 5% (2016: 5%), with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year would have
been approximately RMB83,074,000 (2016: RMB80,525,000)
lower/higher.

Given the insignificant portfolio of listed equity securities held
by the Group, price risk with respect to investments in equity
securities listed in Hong Kong held by the Group which are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is
minimal.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(d) Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash at bank, available-for-sale financial
asset, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
receivables included in the consolidated balance sheet represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets.

Most of the Group’s cash at bank are held in major financial
institutions, which management believes are of high credit quality.

The credit quality of cash at bank is as follows:
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also listed on a recognised stock exchange. Management does not
expect any losses from non-performance by these counterparties.

The Group's available-for-sale financial asset represents equity
securities of a private company which credit ratings are not
available. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at year end is
the carrying value.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd)

(d) Credit risk (Cont’d)

The Group is exposed to significant concentration of credit risk
in terms of electricity sales as majority of the Group's sales of
electricity were made to provincial power grid companies. As
at 31 December 2017, accounts receivable of approximately
RMB801,752,000 (2016: RMB592,170,000) is due from 2 (2016:
2) major customers, they account for 61% (2016: 63%) of the
Group's accounts receivable. The Group normally grants credit
terms ranging from 30 to 60 days to these power grid companies.
For other debtors, the Group normally exercises a tighter credit
control by shortening credit period to 30 days. The Group
normally does not require collaterals from trade debtors. Ageing
analysis of the Group’s accounts receivable is disclosed in Note
24. Management makes periodic collective assessment as well
as individual assessment on the recoverability of accounts and
other receivables based on historical payment records, the length
of the overdue period, the financial strength of the debtors and
whether there are any disputes with the relevant debtors. The
Group's historical experience in collection of accounts and other
receivables falls within the recorded allowances and the directors
are of the opinion that adequate provision for uncollectible
receivables has been made.

(e) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities.
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)

(e) Liquidity risk (Cont’d)

The Group's primary cash requirements have been for construction
of power plants, additions of and upgrades on property, plant and
equipment, payment on related debts and payment for purchases
and operating expenses. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through a combination of internal resources, short-
term and long-term bank and other borrowings and corporate
bond.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows
(including interest payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates at the balance sheet date).
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At 31 December 2017 20175124318
Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 3,517,070 2,447,436 2,447,412 4,469,009
Corporate bond TEES - - 800,000 -
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Bank and other borrowings RITREMEE 3,059,160 3,102,361 4,471,216 5,016,143
Corporate bond TEES 826,000 - - -
Accounts payable FERTBETR 34,753 - - -
Construction costs payable JE (R R 941,799 976,153 - -
Other payables and accrued HA fE B &
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for Members and to maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in the light of changes in economic condition. In order to
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payments to Members, return capital to Members, issue
new shares, sell assets to reduce debt, obtain bank borrowings or
issue corporate bonds.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net
debt is calculated as total bank and other borrowings (including
short-term and long-term borrowings and corporate bonds as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash
equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the
consolidated balance sheet, plus net debt.

During the year, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
last year, was to maintain gearing ratio at a stable level.

The table below analyses the Group’s capital structure as at 31
December 2017 and 2016.
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Total bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEESRE

(Notes 30 and 31) (MFsE30531) 13,680,290 13,120,230

Less: Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) B ReMReEEEE
(FfE26) (775,703) (1,816,761)
Net debt BEFHE 12,904,587 11,303,469
Total equity Wk iEEE 8,553,696 8,273,402
Total capital FEREViN 21,458,283 19,576,871
Gearing ratio BAREMELE 60% 58%
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value
by valuation method. The different levels have been defined as
follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (Level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is,
as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (Level
3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value at 31 December 2017 and
2016. See Note 17 for disclosures of the investment properties
that are measured at fair value.
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During the year ended 31 December 2017, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or transfers into or out of
Level 3 (2016: Nil).
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3  FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)

(i) Financial instruments in Level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets
is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry
group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in Level 1. Instruments included in Level
1 comprise primarily equity investments classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss.

(ii) Financial instruments in Level 3
The movements in the balance of Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy during the year are as follows:

3 HMEBEREREEGE)

3.3 AFEME(E)

() F-EBzzMITA
EEABMETRRXZNEMTANRFE
DIRBEEEBRBMEFTE - HRER
BXR5MH - KHEE - &2 - TXEE -
TERGREEHBES MTHES -
BZERBEHRATFTNERFIERERE
EZERE ARMESERRAERTSE - K
SEMBAEEREEEBNOTISRED
BITEANEBE - ZBIEBRE-E -5
—EREZITAIZERIER/BERE
SAR ARz EMEEZRERE -

(i) E=F2LBIA
FRATEERY B BAREDER
T

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT AREEFIT
At 1 January ®1A1H - -
Reclassification from non-current asset B AFERE
classified as held for sale IERBEEEFHE 255,000 -
Fair value change recognised in available-for-  FAR] it H & S (&
sale revaluation reserve RN EE (11,000) -
At 31 December M12A31H 244,000 -
Changes in unrealised fair value change FPAFREMEENE 2
for the year included in other FRARERAFEES
comprehensive income at the end of the year % 11,000 -

The unrealised fair value change arising from changes in the fair
value of the available-for-sale financial asset is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity in
the available-for-sale revaluation reserve.

THEESRAEATESDELY K
BN TER B S E s
R R B A
23t -
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A MR

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D) 3 HBEREEGE)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AV EME(E)
(i)  Financial instruments in Level 3 (Cont’d) (i) F=EZZ2@MTAHE)

The valuation technique and inputs used in the fair value E=ZBAVEFTEMA 2 GERMN &G

measurements within Level 3 is as follows:

The valuation is performed and reported twice each year, in line

ABBLT

Value of Relationship of

Valuation Unobservable unobservable unobservable

Financial instrument technique inputs inputs inputs to fair value
AUEZBABE TABEaARE

SRMIA fRERN FUREHARE ZhfE HAVEZBE
Available-for-sale financial Asset-based  Gross development RMB 5,815/sgm The higher the GDV,
asset approach value ("GDV") (medical centres) the higher the fair vilue
At ESREE BEWTEAN EET I AE#5,.815/ FRAELS -
(EEGED FAREERDYL) AR TEES

RMB 17,150/sgm
(shopping mall)
AR#17,150,/
FAKEDFRL)
RMB 12,250/sgm
(residential)

AR#12,250/
FHAUEE)
RMB 2,000/sgm
(schools)
AR¥2,000
FhHAR(ER)
Unit construction RMB 4,260/sgm The lower the UCC,
cost ("UCC") the higher the fair value
BB i REER AR AR#4,260/ BBy EREER AR HIE
([EfZENA]) FHAK AR ESR
Developer’s 40% of  The lower the developer’s
profit margin GDV less total profit margin,
development cost the higher the fair value
R BRBE240% GEEREES
AR AR ELR

with the Group’s reporting dates, to Group management.

HEFFETMAR  BEREEREHH
—HO YRAREEEERE
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e M HRRM

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are discussed below.

(@) Impairment of goodwill

The Group tests at least annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment. Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts have
been determined based on value-in-use calculations or fair value
less costs to sell. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.

Management's judgement is required in the area of asset
impairment particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has
occurred that may indicate that the related asset values may not
be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, being the higher of fair
value less costs to sell and net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset
in the business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether these
cash flow projections are discounted using an appropriate rate.
Changing the assumptions selected by management in assessing
impairment, including the discount rates or the growth rate
assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially affect
the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result
affect the Group’s financial condition and results of operations. If
there is a significant adverse change in the projected performance
and resulting future cash flow projections, it may be necessary to
take an impairment charge to the consolidated income statement.
Specific assumptions and estimates involved in the cash flow
projections are set out in Note 18.

4 EEETHEFIRAE

FIA#R RLEA TS ¥Rk 2 (5 5 M B D DA A8
EEBREEMEARSERFELETH
- BREEHEBEATHESEARRE
HZREEH - IS g AT INER
FEELHERNBRAERER - TXH
MEFTEMBRFREcEERBERE
EEERABNEARR 2 A5 RR&

(a) PEERE
AEEELBFERBEAEHIER
BAE - I FHEBELERBREEER
FREE A AR R s EER DR
B - Al el & AR EE B EEE X
R FEBEERAET - WEFFTHE
SER A R AAET -

EEEANEERET MERALE - L
HREFE  (VREEE—FREMMmAl L8
THREEEBENEERIRD : (VEE
AREESFRED X EEZRAEE - /A
BE 2 N FERHEE KA ZIRE R R
FREERAZEEMBEZRKREDR
BZFRAEZESE RN EFRS
RERANMEACAEIERR &
RZEReRERARECRAAEN
REE - NAHARERSFERENE
EEERMNZME - BREMEANERRE
SREFABRRBE - JBEEFE
BRI S PERZFEE  MEALEE
REE 2 RN R E LA - BT
REREMBZARRERERMNEE
RN EEE - AT AR & A W R T
EREER BRanEBAFROETE
R R ARS8
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4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT’D)

(b) Fair value of available-for-sale financial asset

The fair value of available-for-sale financial asset that is not traded
in an active market is determined using valuation techniques. The
Group uses its judgement to select a variety of methods and make
assumptions that are mainly based on market conditions existing
at the end of each reporting period. These calculations require
the use of judgements and estimates. Management's judgement
is required in the area of asset impairment particular in assessing
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in the valuation.
Specific assumptions and estimates involved are set out in Note
27.

To determine if an available-for-sale financial asset is impaired, the
Group evaluates the duration and extent to which the fair value
of the asset is less than its cost, and the financial health of and
short-term business outlook for the investee (including factors
such as industry and sector performance, changes in technology
and operational and financing cash flows). While the fair value of
available for sale financial asset had initially fallen below cost by
approximately RMB11,000,000, being approximately 4% of the
original cost as at 31 December 2017, the Group determined that
such decline in fair value was not expected to be significant or
prolonged and hence no impairment needed to be recognised.

If the declines in fair value below cost had been significant or
prolonged, the Group would have suffered an additional loss
of approximately RMB11,000,000 in its consolidated financial
statement, being the reclassification of the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity on the impaired available-for-
sale financial asset to profit or loss.

4  EEREFHEF R (E)

(b) AMLESEMEEZRFE
WENERTSRZZAHEESHE
EZ RN FEAMEERNET - AEERE
HABREZBH AL ELTEERSE
BEFREFMRZBR - LFFHA
BERAE R -  BEEBANREERE
SEER A - CHE R GEEMRA
ZHERBRELREZR - PR
FE R AT BRPRE27 -

AETAHIECREESDSRE &
SEFHEBEEEZ A TFEEREXAE
ZREREE ARWERE QR 2B
REAAEEHESI=(RETERD
R - RITBEUAREERBERS
MESERZE) BEUHLESRHEE
2 A ERREAL AR 11,000,000
TT(EIR2017F 12 A3 BRBE K A 2
4%) WAREBERE A FEBEHTE
RNIESkREFT L - WIBARRBE °

WAFEAEIRARESERRERAK
AR BB R EA SRR P AT
SNETHR 4 AR 11,000,0007T © BN A5 5L
EREAEHIESHEENERTER
2R AT EABREFHERELS -
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e M HRRM

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONT'D)

() Useful lives and residual values of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for the
Group's property, plant and equipment, other than construction
in progress. This estimate is based on the historical experience
of the actual useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could change
significantly as a result of technological advancement and
innovations in the power industry. Management will adjust the
depreciation charge where useful lives or residual values vary with
previously estimated, or it will write-off or write-down technically
obsolete or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or
sold. Actual economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives
and actual residual values may differ from estimated residual
values. Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and residual values and therefore depreciation expense in the
future periods.

(d) Deferred income tax

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Deferred income tax liabilities of the Group mainly arise from the
unremitted earnings of its PRC subsidiaries. The reliability of the
deferred income tax liabilities mainly depend on its subsidiary’s
dividend pay-out ratio. When the expectation is different from
the original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred tax and taxation charges in the period in which such
estimate is changed.

4 EEREFHEERME(E)

(0 ¥ BERRBZUEAFHR
FIerEE

AEBEEBEEAKEME  BER
RiB(ERIRERIN) 2EHAEBE
B RfRBERBEINEER - %fhat
REELUME RN DE - BB ERE
ZBAEBRAERFHENGEESE
% BERENITEZRMBCE R AF
MmEaZEt - EREMNAERFHRK
MHpEBEEEEANGHATRAKHBTESR
R SR SOOR ST B R S E R E
HEZIFRBIEEE - BREHEFHHL
gHREGTAIEAFEHIR - BRFSE
Egl A RBEETR - EHEE
e EFHLRBREERE  #®
My ERRMEZITEER -

(d) IEFEFTEH
BIEERARATBEA R RERB G A 7]
AR HE b £ RGBS EIRE - KiE
REAETEREERBRGEBERL
MABE - AEENEEMEHAEE
EREETEMBARNKELAF -
EXFBHRARNASEEEERURNE
P /B8 X B AR B LL R o e TELHA B SRR A
TR AIZEERG T EMETES
A Z IR AL IR S B IR S 2 TR
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A MR

5  REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT 5 WA -SEERERSEER
INFORMATION
(a) Revenue and tariff adjustment (a) WAREEFAER
Revenue and tariff adjustment recognised during the year are as FHRNERRMALEEFENT :
follows:
2017 2016
20174 201645
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETIT ARETIT
Sales of electricity to provincial power MERENRARLESR
grid companies (Note (i)) (B=EG) 4,582,384 4,559,335
Heat supply by thermal power plants HBERRAEM A A
to other companies 104,250 82,921
Rubbish handling income SR ERIB A 88,831 84,323
Rental income from investment properties HEMERS WA 45,510 26,833
Total revenue N CLE 4,820,975 4,753,412
Tariff adjustment (Note (i) BB P (P REi) - (26,820)
4,820,975 4,726,592
Notes: BiaE -

(ii)

Majority of the sales of electricity to provincial power grid companies are
pursuant to the power purchase agreements entered into between the
Group and the respective provincial power grid companies, the Group’s
sales of electric power were made to these power grid companies at the
tariff rates agreed with the respective provincial power grid companies as
approved by the relevant government authorities.

The amount represents tariff received and receivable from the relevant
local government authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2016
the Group had revised the estimation of tariff adjustment in respect of
the period from January to September 2015 with reference to the actual
notice received from the relevant local government authorities resulting
in an one-off reduction in tariff adjustment amounted to approximately
RMB26,820,000 in 2016.

() MAERERARHEZRIAIENDRE
AEFEBEEREERATLZEEW
#o ARBEREAEEREARTBER
SR #ELE EERNZEEH

ARET -

(i) ZEFEDWREBEBD S BUITHE 2
BE - HE20165F128310IHFE - A&
EC2RER S BTHEEL 2 ERE
A B201551 AE9 A HIRET S B R
fhat o AMR2016FEA—NEEERARE
R # AR #526,820,0007T °
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5 REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segment information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the
executive directors and certain senior management of the Group
(together, the "CODM") that makes strategic decisions. The
CODM reviews the internal reporting of the Group in order to
assess performance and allocate resources. Management has
determined the operating segments based on these reports.

The CODM assesses the performance of the operating segments
based on each segment’s profit/(loss) before tax and share of
profits of associates and joint ventures (“segment results”).

The Group has the following major segments: power generation,
property investments and securities investments.

The Group is principally engaged in the development,
construction, ownership and management of clean energy power
plants in the PRC. The power generation business is further
evaluated based on the types of energy generation (natural gas
power generation business, wind power generation business,
hydro power generation business, waste-to-energy power
generation business, photovoltaic power generation business and
other power generation business).

The property investments segment is engaged in the leasing of
properties to generate rental income. The securities investments
segment is engaged in securities trading. These segments do not
meet the quantitative thresholds required by HKFRS 8 “Operating
Segments” for reportable segments and are grouped together
under “others”.

No sales between operating segments are undertaken.

Unallocated income mainly refers to interest income earned from
cash and cash equivalents held at corporate level. Unallocated
expenses mainly refer to general and administrative expenses
incurred at corporate level.

Segment assets exclude interests in associates, interests in joint
ventures, deferred income tax assets, available-for-sale financial
asset and corporate assets, all of which are managed on a central
basis.

Other unallocated assets mainly comprise property, plant and
equipment, prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and cash
and cash equivalents held at corporate level.

5 WA - SERERSEEHR
(&)

(b) ZEEHR

ITERLERREBRERELRBARTE
ZARERNTEERETRREEASR
(R TBLERKE]) - TBERER
REBEANRE R HRE A RIRAM
DEER - EREERERBUETRE

s oo g7 MK A\
EBELENE -

FELERAREBERES B 2BB AR
F(BE)AREEBEEARAREED
2R ([ EEE D THEE B R
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AREEHREUTEIBEDHR  BE - WX
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HE— Y -

MERED RSN EHENERE
TWA - BEFRESHEERFERSFE
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5 REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT 5 WA -SEAERRIEBEEH
INFORMATION (CONT’D) (&)

(b) Segment information (Cont'd) (b) DEER(E)

RREDFHIRETFTEBLEERREZH
Z2017F K2016F12A31HIEFEEZ 5

The segment information provided to the CODM for the
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2017 and

2016 is as follows: BERWT
Waste-to-
Natural Wind Hydro  energy Photovoltaic Other
gaspower  power  power  power power  power
generation generation generation generation ~generation generation
business  business  business  business  business  business
P t-) ] 09| iR i Eft  Others Unallocated Total
BELE REEE  REERK  BEEE  REEE  BEEE £y AR @
RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETL
For the year ended HEW17512A318
31 December 2017 IR
Segment revenue and tariff  PEUARTEFZ
adjustment 2742734 870,029 430737 320953 317,579 100,083 38,860 - 4820975
Results of reportable segments 5% 2% 291,627 168,551 60,353 88,510 106,411 (9361)  (39512) - 666,579
Areconciiation of results of  BEHELERER
reportable segments to profit  &F 2 HEMT -
for the yearis as follows:
Results of reportable seqments & HE%E 666,579
Unallocated income AARMA 351
Unallocated expenses FOEFY (138,922)
Share of profits of associates  FEIEBE AR 1275
Share of profits of joint ventures E{5 4 B &7 19,946
Profit before tax BRAET 560,706
Income tax expense FEHER (156,860)
Profit for the year ERgt 403,846
Segment resultsindluded:  HEZEAE -
Depreciation and amortisation 478 [ 1 (119,040)  (429414)  (129129)  (63,699)  (129,666) (7,946) (3379 (2229 (884,502)
Finance income SBIA 6,19 766 353 8 17 19 17 3714 11,367
Finance costs BIEER (106,902)  (184378)  (88,033)  (29,603) (45219 (2,575) (4583  (65229)  (526,522)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A MR

5 REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT 5 WA -SEAERRIEEHR
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segment information (Cont'd)
The segment information provided to the CODM for the HHRESHRBTFETELERAREZE
reportable segments for the year ended 31 December 2017 and E2017F R2016F12A31BIEFEZ S
2016 is as follows: (Cont'd)

(&)

(b) ZEERE)

BERWT - (8)

Waste-to-
Natural Wind Hydro  energy Photovoltaic Other
gaspower  power  pOwer  power  power  power
generation generation generation generation ~generation generation
business  business  business  business  business  business
AR i) 9] b ER Efh  Others Unallocated Total
REXH HERY RERY  RERY  RERE  RERE M R9E @it
RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARET ARETT ARETT ARETn ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
For the year ended HE16512A318
31 December 2016 IEER
Segment revenue and tariff PERAREEER
adjustment 2959194 663,173 501,742 293874 209,716 72,060 26,833 - 4726592
Results of reportable segments & HHEE 560,431 60068 131,799 80,518 74914 (45,483) 3,066 - 865913
Arecondliation of results of ~ BE5AELER
reportable seqments toprofit £
for the yearis as follows: ZHENT
Results of reportable segments & 865913
Unallocated income FABMA 24,258
Unallocated expenses AOERR (270,779)
Share of profts of assocates  FEfEBEEAAER 9366
Share of profits of joint ventures  JEEA BAERT 36,396
Profit hefore tax BRRTET 665,154
Income tax expense FERREY (264,504)
Profit for the year EREH 400,650
Segment results included: PEFENE
Depreciation and amortisation ~ #7E & (130,196)  (417670)  (13385) (52249  (86,388)  (10.447) (3,282) (1,892)  (835,980)
Finance income 157008 15,686 1,844 4730 786 2398 25 4 21,005 46,515
Finance costs BIBBE (93,787)  (186,587)  (84867)  (26,056)  (28,417) (33874) (3408)  (123326)  (550,322)
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5 REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT 5 WA -SEAERRIEBEEH
INFORMATION (CONT’D) (&)

(b) Segment information (Cont'd) (b) DEER(E)

Waste-to-

Natural Wind Hydro  energy Photovoltaic Other
gaspower  pOWer  pOWer  power power  power
generation generation generation generation ~generation generation

business  business  hbusiness  business  business business

KRR A5 9] Iy EAR Hft  Others Unallocated Total
REER BERR  BEREE  HEER BERE  YERR A &98 &3t
RMB'000  RVMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR

As at 31 December 2017 R2017512A318

Segment assets NEEE 4039079 8755215 3558462 3466035 2816438 305767 407,465 - 23,348,461
Interests in associates REBNT R 153569 153,569
Interests in joint ventures REBRE R 31912 231912
Deferred income tax assets ERMEHEE 27,780 27,180
Available-for-sale financial asset [ ESREE 244,000 244,000
Other unallocated assets EEAREE 582435 582,435
Total assets per consolidated ~~ FABEBER

balance sheet 25|y EEtE 24,587,557
Additions to non-current assets KB EFEEE 99,074 501,949 80326 862538 562,129 85,827 3,08 6916 2201857
As at 31 December 2016 72016812431
Segment assets NEBE 4008724 8610955 3643722 2694618 2,212,652 164520 413,258 - 21,748,449
Interests in associates RBELAZES 136,891 136,891
Interests in joint ventures REBPEZES 49319 249319
Deferred income tax assets ERAMEHEE 2458 24,586
Non-current asset classified NEBRFLE

s held for sale LERBEE 255000 255,000
Qther unallocated assets HWAPLEE 1445113 1,445,113
Total assets per consolidated ~ FABEEBRE

balance sheet 2y BEEE 23,859,358

Additions to non-curent assets  FEFEREAE 608428 178838 106759 900329 796987 30,155 1,860 391 2,623,747
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5 REVENUE, TARIFF ADJUSTMENT AND SEGMENT
INFORMATION (CONT’D)

(b) Segment information (Cont'd)

Substantially all of the Group's revenue and assets are generated
or located in the PRC except that bank and cash balances held at
corporate level in the amount of approximately RMB47,020,000
(2016: RMB919,297,000) were deposited in Hong Kong, an
investment property of approximately RMB26,496,000 (2016:
RMB26,496,000) is situated in Hong Kong, financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss in the current assets of approximately
RMB7,140,000 (2016: RMB7,216,000) relating to equity
securities listed in Hong Kong and total assets of approximately
RMB22,111,000 (2016: RMB21,509,000) relating to wind power
generation business in Germany.

For the year ended 31 December 2017, external revenue of
approximately RMB2,727,063,000, and RMB693,783,000 are
generated from 2 major customers, each of which accounts for
10% or more of the Group’s external revenue. The revenue is
attributable to the natural gas power generation business, wind
power generation business and photovoltaic power generation
business segments. For the year ended 31 December 2016,
external revenue of approximately RMB2,966,853,000 and
RMB527,271,000 are generated from 2 major customers, each of
which accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue.
The revenue is attributable to the natural gas power generation
business, wind power generation business and photovoltaic power
generation business segments.

5 WA - SERERSEEHR
(&)

(b) DEER(E)
REBMETHRBRAREETIRA KA
R EAFEEFE 2RITRRS
4R 49 A R #547,020,0007T (2016 4F -
A R #919,297,000 7T ) R & EF K -
— IR E W EH AR 26,496,000 7T
(20164 : A R # 26,496,000 7T ) {22 1
EERTHEEFERBEUATE
IR BB EH AR7,140,0007T
(20164 : AR#7,216,00070) BBEH
BEMBRAFELFER  MEELED
AR #22,111,0007T (2016 5F + AR
21,509,0007T) B2 AR 2 B 1B B
T5HERE -

HZE2017F12A31BILFE » shEflk
ANH N R #2,727,063,000 7T} A R &
693,783,000 TR BB EERF ¥
EZMEAREEINBRAZ10% A E ©
WATIREBRARBEEER BNESE
EBRAREEEBHE - HE20167F
12A3MBILEFE  WIFRAHARE
2,966,853,0007T & A R #527,271,0007T
TRE2RFERF  HESMEAEEIN
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A MR

6 OTHER INCOME 6 HflA
2017 2016
20175 201645
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETIT AREFIT
Refund of value added taxes (Note) EEFRE (MIsE) 32,743 33,950
Government grants BB E 15,282 13,268
Others EHih 17,433 18,912
65,458 66,130
Note: BfaE -
It represents the value added taxes refunded from the relevant government It AR BB ABUTSHPFIE AREE L ELS TEEN
authorities as an incentive for the Group's operation. EEFR o
7  OTHER GAINS, NET 7 Hftlzs o FE
2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREFIT AREFIT
Fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets BIBBRAANTETRZ

at fair value through profit or loss TRIEEATE
(E518) M (78) 1,397
Write-back of construction costs ol e iR EER AN (P3E)
payable (Note) - 70,000
Gain on disposal on interest in a joint venture HERAE ML Y 2SS 10,683 -
Others Hith 2,083 1,517
12,688 72,914
Note: PiisE
It represented the write-back of construction costs payable from a contractor as It AR AR R E 2 BT ERERA - EAKR2016

a compensation for the breach of a contract in 2016. FEAEEE o
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8 OPERATING PROFIT 8 K RF
Operating profit is stated after charging/(crediting) the following: Fr 25| M &5 72k, (5t A) T3
FIE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBTT
Amortisation of lease prepayments METENRIE 2 HH 6,486 4,052
Amortisation of intangible assets B A E 7B 3,954 3,620
Auditor’s remuneration ZE AN & 5,782 5,035
Depreciation of property, W WERERETE
plant and equipment 874,062 828,308
(Gains)/losses on disposals of property, HEYWE  BENEKE
plant and equipment Z (W) /B (207) 43,817
Operating lease rental in respect of leasehold B RS+ NIETF
land and buildings S Vitkn 16,772 18,192

Staff costs including directors’ emoluments EBERAN(BREEEHE)
(Note 11) (B&E11) 252,130 239,938
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A M mERME
9  FINANCE COSTS, NET 9 HKEAR  FH
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETTT AREBTT
Interest income from bank deposits REIBITFIRFNBUA 11,367 46,515
Interest expense on FERE
— bank borrowings wholly repayable within ~ — ZBR R E RN EEEE
five years RITEE (193,068) (135,263)
— bank borrowings not wholly repayable BERAFREEEE Y
within five years RITEE (277,074) (272,373)
— other borrowings wholly repayable within ~ — ZBER A FREHEER 2
five years EmEE (66,967) (71,639)
— other borrowings not wholly repayable BERAFRNEHEEREY
within five years HEE (25,132) (58,712)
— corporate bond wholly repayable within five — ZBR A FRNEBEEER 2
years TEES (26,954) (54,184)
(589,195) (592,171)
Less: Amounts capitalised in property, B BEREEZ
plant and equipment BERNbeHE 62,673 41,849
(526,522) (550,322)
Finance costs, net VIXER - F5E (515,155) (503,807)

The weighted average interest rate on capitalised borrowing costs B 2 B E R AN INFE T F R R L
is approximately 4.48% (2016: 4.34%) per annum. 4.48%(2016%F : 4.34%)5H8 o
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year (2016:
Nil).

The provision for PRC current income tax is calculated based on
the statutory tax rate of 25% (2016: 25%) on the estimated
assessable income for the year.

Certain subsidiaries of the Group located in the western regions
of the PRC, are entitled to a preferential income tax rate of 15%
(2016: 15%).

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

PRC current income tax R EBIRNERATIS TR

Deferred income tax (Note 32) EIEATS T (MI5E32)

10 FREHAX

HRASKEFAESTEIL BT ERK
A - A EAE R BB ST (2016
FoE)

REBEAT SR B E S B A F R
JERTUABELE - $25% (20164
25%) 2R ERTE -

AREBMRPEALHE THEAR =
B15%(2016%F :15% ) HBEEFHE o

BiRA KRR BB RS

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETIT
193,735 233,425
(36,875) 31,079

156,860 264,504
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10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONT'D) 10 Fr8BiR (M)

The taxation on the Group's profit before tax differs from the BRBAEBBRT G2 FIEA RN
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average BAAaHERGEHNEER 2 MEFHFRE
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities as FriSHmERESELOT ¢

follows:

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AREEFTT ARETTT
Profit before tax BRIERTR A 560,706 665,154
Less: Share of profits of associates W FE(REE A AR (12,752) (9,366)
Less: Share of profits of joint ventures B EIEAEEREESR (19,946) (36,396)
528,008 619,392
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REANG AR 2
applicable to profits in respective BN R E 21
jurisdictions 187,204 229,644
Effect of lower tax rate for companies RERGEPRBRNER
under tax holiday BRIERE 222 (59,822) (22,551)
Income not subject to taxation BRGH 2 WA (18,527) (27,095)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes “~A]#1%% 2 37 28,373 23,591
Tax losses for which no deferred income WRERBEILEFSHEE
tax assets were recognised TiIAEE 5,243 28,065
Withholding tax arising on BB N AR BE &R
unremitted earnings of subsidiaries EEZTEH 14,389 32,850
Income tax expense FrisfiA X 156,860 264,504

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended 31 HZE2017F12831 B IFEE 2 ii#EFEY
December 2017 is 35.5% (2016: 37.1%). The decrease is caused BAMEA355% (20164 : 37.1%) °
by a change in the profitability of the Group's subsidiaries. HIE TR AEEWEB AT F 5L
Share of taxation attributable to associates and joint ventures HZE2017F12A31HILFEBME AR K&
for the year ended 31 December 2017 of approximately SEEBADEELBRBAHAREAL679,000
RMB4,679,000 (2016: RMB15,639,000) are included in the T(20164F : AR¥15,639,0007T) © &
Group's share of profits of associates and joint ventures for the SFTAFARNEEEEBENTNEED
year. R o
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11 STAFF COSTS 11 EERF
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETIT
Wages, salaries and bonuses TI& - HaeMIEA 159,729 154,815
Pension costs — defined contribution plans BIRE KA — AT HIRETE 6,559 6,115
Staff welfare EER=EH 85,842 79,008
252,130 239,938
12 EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 SREF
(a) Basic (a) EZX

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit GRERZRN IR N BIEZITE ALE
attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted BTGB AERNE BZITRD Z NEEY

average number of shares in issue during the year. BEE o
2017 2016
20175 20164
Profit attributable to equity holders of RATERFEB ARG
the Company (RMB’000) BEMARETIT) 401,702 404,536
Weighted average number of ordinary EETEBER
shares in issue (shares in thousands) (Note ¢)  JN#EF & (FAL) (MizEc) 1,186,633 1,186,633

Basic earnings per share (RMB) EREXREZFN(ARET) 0.3385 0.3409
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12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONT’D) 12 BRERGE)
(b) Diluted (b) #8
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted BB EEMNDDRBRAEEB ST E
average number of ordinary shares outstanding shares to assume ZEELRREEBRNBELT  BEH
conversion of all diluted potential ordinary shares. The Company'’s BENDBRITETBRMEFLOREET
potentially dilutive ordinary shares comprised of share options. o ARAMBEEELRAREIEERK
o
2017 2016
20175 201645
Profit attributable to equity holders RARERFEE AEG
of the Company (RMB’000) aiARESfT) 401,702 404,536
Weighted average number of ordinary BTSRRI
shares in issue (shares in thousands) (Note ¢)  FEH&(F8%) (Mizkc) 1,186,633 1,186,633
Adjustments for share options R R (TR)
(shares in thousands) - 78
Weighted average number of ordinary FlR#ERN 2 LBk
shares for diluted earnings I E(FRR)
per share (shares in thousands) 1,186,633 1,186,711
Diluted earnings per share (RMB) SR#EsRN(ARET) 0.3385 0.3409

(c)  As aresult of the share consolidation, the weighted average () MmRERHBEF  EZE2016F12A8

number of ordinary shares and share options adopted in the BMBLEFEZERAREEGRET
calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share for H TR K B R B AR S 8 e

the year ended 31 December 2016 have been adjusted. IR o
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13 DIVIDEND

Proposed final dividend of RMB0.1185
(2016: RMB0.1193) per ordinary share

BERAREERE AR
AR#0.118570(20164F :
AER¥0.11937T)

13 RKRE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
140,616 141,588

At the Board meeting held on 16 March 2018, the Board
recommended the payment of a final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2017 of approximately RMBO0.1185 (equivalent
to HK$0.1467 at the exchange rate announced by the People’s
Bank of China on 16 March 2018) per ordinary share (2016:
RMBO0.1193 (equivalent to HK$0.1346 at the exchange rate
announced by the People’s Bank of China on 23 March 2017)),
totalling of approximately RMB140,616,000 (equivalent to
HK$174,079,000) (2016: RMB141,588,000 (equivalent to
HK$159,715,000)), which is based on 1,186,633,418 shares in
issue on 16 March 2018. This proposed dividend is not reflected as
dividend payable in these consolidated financial statements, but
will be reflected as a distribution out of the retained profit for the
year ending 31 December 2017.

MR2018F316HRITZEET T E
F - EEEERIREEE2017F12831
BIEFERPBRESGRETBRHOARE
0.1185 0 (FHER0.146778 7T » IRFPEA
RER1TMA20184F 3 A 16 B A f[E X
E)(2016%F + AR®0.119370) (SR
0.13468 7 » P B ARRITH20174F
SAHAMMEXRRE) GHHAR
#£140,616,0007T (FH 72 174,079,000/
75) (20164 : AR#141,588,0007T (48
£1159,715,00087C)) * I TIiRE2018
F3H16H1,186,633,418A% 2 317 M 1D
MmiEd o WHEUR S W AR AL E B
BRERZEMKRES R - Bi5E xR
EEZE2017F12 A31B It FERB T
FRIDIR
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A M mERME
14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14 EBESERIVESHFMALZMH
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS &
(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) ESEE
The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the RANREEENEE2017F128318 1F
year ended 31 December 2017 is set out below: FEZHERT
Basic salary,
housing
allowance, other ~ Share-based Employer's
allowancesand  compensation contributions
benefits in kind expenses to pension
BAge iR YRGAFR  Discretionary scheme
Fees  fRh HfbHA Xfie bonuses  EEXHEAS Total
ik REMHE HEm% ML HE @t
Name of director 32 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTT ANEEBTT ARETT
Chairman K
Mr. Wang Binghua IhELE - - - - - -
Executive directors YrES

Mr. Wang Zhongtang (Note ()~ T 54 (fitzH()
Mr. Wang Fengxue (Note (i) TREEE(HE

Mr. Zhao Xinyan HEAEE - - - - _ _
Mr. He Hongsin (Note (i) AT (B3 ) - 781 - - - 781
Mr. Qi Tengyun ERZrE - 638 - - - 638
Non-executive directors HTER

Mr. Bi Yaxiong BTRLE - - - - _ _

MIr. Wu Hanming (Note (i) Do (ki) - - - - - -
M. Zhou Jiong (Note (i) R (B i)

Independent non-executive B FHTES

directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing REREE 106 - - _ _ 106
Dr. Liang £l 106 - - - - 106
Mr. Wong Kwok Tai AERLE 106 - - _ _ 106
Ms. Ng Yi Kum E&ERt 106 - - - - 106

Total & 424 1419 - - - 1843
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14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE 14 EBERANRESEHHA L ZH

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT’'D) & (48)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont’d) (a) EEBE(E)

The remuneration of each of the directors of the Company for the RAREEENEZE2016F12 A31H 1k

year ended 31 December 2016 is set out below: FEZMSIT

Basic salary,
housing
allowance, other ~ Share-based Employer's
allowancesand  compensation contributions
benefits in kind expenses to pension
BAge fiF DRGOFR  Discretionary scheme
Fees fB- HtRA 57 bonuses  EEHEASE Total
fie RERIE R Bisa HE [R5 st
Name of director £ i3] RVB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
NS ARSI ARBTT ARBFT ARETT AREFT
Chairman £
Mr. Wang Binghua IhERE - - - - - -
Executive directors HiTEE
Mr.Wang Zhongtang (Note ()~ Ef¥ %4 (k) - - - - - -
Mr. Zhao Xinyan BaRGE - - - - - -
Mr. He Hongiin (Note i) AL A (REE) - 562 - - - 562
Mr. Qi Tengyun ERZns - 81 - - - 41
Non-executive directors orEs
Mr. An Luming (Note (i) TIRIR A (i) - - - - - -
Mr. Bi Yaxiong EDHEE - - - - - -
Mr. Wu Hanming (Note (i) ERER S (BiHi)) - - - - - -
Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTES
directors
Mr. Chu Kar Wing RERRE % - - - - %
Dr. Li Fang Fhft % - - - - %
Mr. Wong Kok Tai BERLE % - - - - %
Ms. Ng Yi Kum e % - - - - %
Total it 384 993 - - - 1377

Notes: MIEE -

(i) Mr. Wang Zhongtang has resigned and Mr. Wang Fengxue was 0) ThEEAEDERT  MIBESLELEERT
appointed as an executive director of the Company with effect from 22 ABRNTHITES  B2017F28228#
February 2017. AR o

(i) Mr. He Hongxin is also the chief executive of the Group. (i) AT R A EBITHES, -

(i) Mr. An Luming has resigned and Mr. Wu Hanming was appointed as a (i) ZHRBAEADEHT  MEDERRLEEST

non-executive director of the Company with effective from 23 March
2016. Mr. Wu Hanming has resigned and Mr. Zhou Jiong was appointed
as a non-executive director of the Company with effective from 18
August 2017.

BARRRENITES - B2016F3A23H
HBAEAK o BUEBASCAERHT - MAMEAE
BEERRNATENITES - B2017F8
A18B 4R »
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14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (Cont'd)
None of the directors of the Company waived any emoluments
during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2016:
Nil). No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2016: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour of
directors, their controlled bodies corporate and connected entities
with such directors (2016: Nil).

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation
to the Group'’s business to which the Company was a party and in
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2016: Nil).

14 EBEERANVESEHFMA LM
& (#8)

(a) E=B£(E)
HZE2017FK2016F12A31BILFE -
AARIESHMERETAME -

FAR - BEERXERAESRARNK
BA - BRI E SRR A RS R M
RN EHERFRIR (20164 © &) »
EREEFREREMGE TE=00K
Bk 26 =5 Al SLIR 2 5 AR A5 W AN A
REBE(20165 « #&) -

MEFRAES - AXEFAAEER
ZEEENEWEERELNER B
MERSERZEALHEMEZ 5 (2016
FE) o

IRZR 4R 2 R A I SN R R AR B )
RABRER AR BRG] LEART]
EEERNHBRBEEARGCEER
5 R RA#(20165 : &) -
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14 EMOLUMENTS FOR DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS (CONT'D)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group for the year include 2 (2016: 1) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. The
emoluments payable to the remaining 3 (2016: 4) individuals
during the year are as follows:

Basic salary, housing allowance, other
allowances and benefits in kind

Employer’s contributions to pension
scheme

14 EBERANRESEHHA L ZH
& (&)

(b) ENNBREHFMAL

FR - AEERRUESFHALEER
(20165 «+ —(1)E= - HP & RPN
EXZ2HZAHA - FREMESG=A
(20164 : A AL 2B T

HEAFT  EFHRE - Bt
fHas R B
BEERIRE B

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETIT
2,485 3,416

28 29

2,513 3,445

The emoluments fell within the following bands:

Below RMB 1,000,001
RMB1,000,001 to RMB2,000,000

AE#1,000,0017TLAR
AE#1,000,001TE
AE#2,000,0007T

T3 NF T E :

Number of individuals

A
2017 2016
20175 20165
2 3

During the year, no emoluments have been paid by the Group
to the directors or any of the five highest paid individuals as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office (2016: Nil).

FR - ARERERNEEHAENRUER
= A T B (R BRI AN
AREE 7 BB E (20165 -
&) -
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15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15 Y% BERRKRE
Power
generators
and Construction
Buildings Dam  equipment Others in progress Total
BF K BRERRRE At ERIR f@it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2017 201751 A1H 1,542,828 2,460,424 15,089,665 316,073 1,466,215 20,875,205
Additions nE 1,927 16,921 25336 23,151 1,715,714 1,783,049
Disposals i (3,122) - (20,027) (3,803) (4,845) (31,797)
Transfers = 226,831 8,723 1,455,169 10,931 (1,701,654) -
At 31 December 2017 720175128318 1,768,464 2,486,068 16,550,143 346,352 1,475430 22,626,457

Accumulated depreciationand ~ BEITERFEEE
impairment losses

At 1 January 2017 201751818 320,113 277,663 2,800,349 147,306 - 3,545,431

Depreciation charge for the year  FRITER Y 62,233 62,168 725,819 23,842 - 874,062

Written back on disposals HEKD - - (747) (2,305) - (3,052)

At 31 December 2017 2017124318 382,346 339,831 3,525,421 168,843 - 4.416,441
Net book value EHFE

At 1 January 2017 2017F1 716 1,222,715 2,182,761 12,289,316 168,767 1,466,215 17,329,774

At 31 December 2017 #2017%12A31H 1,386,118 2,146,237 13,024,722 177,509 1475430 18,210,016
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e M mRME
15 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’D) 15 Y% MERKRE(E)
Power
generators
and Construction
Buildings Dam  equipment Others in progress Total
BF X RERRRHE At ERIR o
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AREBTT AR®TR ARETT ARETT ARETR
Cost KA
At 1 January 2016 RR2016F1A1H 1,384,393 2431790 11,902,448 303,082 2,556,082 18,577,795
Additions NE 6,111 1,466 65,994 6,564 2,407,399 2,487,534
Disposals it (22,430) - (164,837) (2,857) - (190,124)
Transfers B 174,754 27,168 3,286,060 9,284 (3,497,266) -
At 31 December 2016 72016128318 1,542,828 2,460,424 15,089,665 316,073 1,466,215 20,875,205

Accumulated depreciationand ~ Z3HTE REER
impairment losses

At 1 January 2016 7201651 71H 275,997 219,946 2,220,804 125,489 - 2,842,236

Depreciation charge for the year — ERITER S 55,224 57,717 691,952 23,415 - 828,308

Written back on disposals HERE (11,108) - (112,407) (1,598) - (125,113)

At 31 December 2016 2016128318 320,113 277,663 2,800,349 147,306 - 3,545,431
Net book value REFE

At 1 January 2016 12016F1A1H 1,108,39% 2,211,844 9,681,644 177,593 2,556,082 15,735,559

At 31 December 2016 20165124318 1,222,115 2,182,761 12,289,316 168,767 1466215 17,329,774
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15

Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONT’'D)

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group's property, plant and
equipment with carrying values of approximately RMB11,835,786,000
(2016: RMB11,315,437,000) were situated on leasehold land in the
PRC leased from a subsidiary of a Member which held the rights on
the leasehold land under long-term leases. The remaining period of the
Group's rights on the leasehold land as at 31 December 2017 was 38
years (2016: 39 years).

As at 31 December 2017, certain of the Group’s property, plant
and equipment with approximately RMB579,943,000 (2016:
RMB412,749,000) were situated on lands for which the legal titles had
not been transferred to the Group subject to certain administrative
procedures to be completed by the relevant local government
authorities. However, the directors are of the opinion that the risks and
rewards of using these assets have been transferred to the Group.

As at 31 December 2017, property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB5,840,789,000 (2016: RMB3,218,493,000) were
pledged as securities for certain bank and other borrowings of the
Group (Note 30(a)).

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group entered into
certain sale and leaseback arrangements with certain financial institutions
which the Group sold its property, plant and equipment amounting
to approximately RMB1,396,500,000 (2016: RMB715,000,000) to
these financial institutions and immediately leased these assets back.
Management regards these arrangements as finance leases. As a result,
the assets have not been derecognised while the proceeds received from
financial institutions have been recognised as borrowings.

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

W~ BERRE (&)

MR2017F 128318 » AEBREEHA
R #11,835,786,0007C (20164 : AR
11,315,437,00070) 2 & TY % - BFE R
BB R —ZREANE A REARS
Bl E i k- ZRRIRERAIFA L
BZEHE T HAER] - 7R2017F12 431
A AEERE L tEN 2 g FE A3
F(20165F : B39%F) °

R2017F 128318 » AEEHAR
# 579,943,000 7T ( 2016 F : A R #
412,749,00070) 2 & TH% » WE R&E
Frfe Ltz B EERENRERERER -
AR S BRT BT A B TITERTF
BoRM EERA - FHZSTEEZR
B RERMOEREARER -

R2017912A318 W% - BEEERED
AR H5,840,789,0007T(20164F + ARHE
3,218,493,0007T) EARIBIE AR EEE T
SRITREAMIER 2 ER(HFE30@))

HE2017F12831BILFE - AEEH
ETERMET I SENE AR T
BRAAEELEEYE  BERRBEHA
R % 1,396,500,000 7T (2016 F : AR
715,000,0007C ) F#%2 5 & g # #3037 BD
TAEZESEE - ERERLZHARER
& AW ERIEERZEEE - M
B REEZ ISHUERRBEE -
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16 LEASE PREPAYMENTS 16 HAERMNRE
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBTTT
Cost A A
At 1 January W1 ATHE 232,676 173,751
Additions NE 99,535 58,925
At 31 December »12H31H 332,211 232,676
Accumulated amortisation RETHEHE
At 1 January W1 A1H 21,954 17,902
Amortisation for the year FN 2 6,486 4,052
At 31 December M12A31H 28,440 21,954
Net book value REFE
At 31 December M12A31H 303,771 210,722
Notes: BEE
(i) Lease prepayments represent costs of the land use rights and coast use (i) HEERMNRBEELIEBETYE  BER
rights in respect of land and coast located in the PRC where certain BABEER R B L3 N ) i R &
of the Group's property, plant and equipment are built on. As at 31 EEEAEZ KA - B20176F128318 -
December 2017, the remaining period of the land use rights and coast T b {sE R ROB R AN RIS E IR 14

use right ranged from 14 to 63 years (2016: 15 to 64 years). Z63F (20164 : 152644 ) ©
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

At 1 January and 31 December M1TA1TEX12A31H

17 REYHE
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
308,496 308,496

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had no unprovided
contractual obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2016:
Nil).

The Group's investment properties held within a business
model objective is to consume substantially all of the economic
benefits embodied in the investment properties through sale. The
Group has measured the deferred tax relating to the temporary
differences of these investment properties, if any, using the tax
rates and the tax bases that are consistent with the expected
manner of these investment properties.

MR20179F128318 » AEERBERNS
ERERTERBENSEHSE016
Fom|E) o

AEEREMEDREAXBEAZBH
A WERBHEERREMETHAE
MBAMORERS - AEBECAHER
ZEREMEEHLEZE(NB)BRAN
ELERTE - EPERANRERHEEZ
SREMENERTA K -
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at

fair value by valuation method.

Recurring fair value measurement
Investment properties

— Mainland China

— Hong Kong

17 BEWHEGE)

TERAMAEEERERFEIRZRE
YES

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2017 using

720175128318
BAZATEFERR
Quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEE HthEE
EERmS GIf -k BELH
KR (E WARE HR@ARE
(5—18) (6=/8) (=)
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AR¥ETTT ARETTT
LEENFERE
wEME
— AR B RE - - 282,000
— & - - 26,496

308,496
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17 REYHE)

Fair value measurement
as at 31 December 2016 using

720165 12A31H
RAZATEFERR
Quoted
prices in
active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEE HthEE
EERMS GIf -k BEEFRA

3R & BARE BEBARE
(®—8) (=) (5=8)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT ARETRT

Recurring fair value measurement L A R ==

Investment properties B
— Mainland China — A B - - 282,000
— Hong Kong — BB - - 26,496

- - 308,496
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’'D) 17 BEWHEGE)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable FRAEZETAHBEBABEZATES
inputs (Level 3) EFN(E=ZE)

31 December 2017

R2017%12A31H
Mainland
China Hong Kong Total
Fp B K P &E st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT AREBTT
Opening balance F LR 282,000 26,496 308,496
Fair value gain recognised in the RIF A WS RIERH
consolidated income statement A EW R - - -
Capitalised subsequent expenditure E &S B FE KR - - -
Closing balance FoRER 282,000 26,496 308,496

Total gains or losses for the year H ARSI E R TS
included in profit or loss for assets & E R FE B UG

held at the end of the year, B8 - PRI b

under “Other gains — net” — %] - - -
Change in unrealised gains or FFABETWFE RATH

losses for the year included BEMNFEARER

in profit or loss for assets held WSk BB E )

at the end of the year - - -
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D) 17 BREWE(E)

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable RAEETAEERAEEZ AT ES
inputs (Level 3) (Cont'd) 2HXN(E=ZE) (E)

31 December 2016

72016512 A31H
Mainland
China  Hong Kong Total
FR B KR B8 st
RMB’'000 RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARETIT ARETIT AREETIT
Opening balance FYEEH 282,000 26,496 308,496
Fair value gain recognised in the REEE WS RIEZRN
consolidated income statement NFEEW S - - -
Capitalised subsequent expenditure  E &S B FE K - - -
Closing balance FREH 282,000 26,496 308,496

Total gains or losses for the year H AR E R TS
included in profit or loss for assets B EA)FE B UK

held at the end of the year, &8 - PIVEN b e

under “Other gains — net” —F%] - - -
Change in unrealised gains or FTABImTWFE R

losses for the year included BEMTERERI

in profit or loss for assets held mEENES

at the end of the year - - _
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

The Group's policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the
year.

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 December
2017 by an independent professionally qualified valuer who holds
a recognised relevant professional qualification and has recent
experience in the locations and segments of the investment
properties valued. For all investment properties, their current use
equates to the highest and best use.

The Group's finance department includes a team that review
the valuations performed by the independent valuer for financial
reporting purposes. This team reports directly to the chief financial
officer (CFO). Discussions of valuation processes and results are
held between the CFO, the valuation team and valuer at least
once every six months, in line with the Group’s interim and annual
reporting dates. As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, the fair
values of the properties have been determined by Roma Appraisals
Limited.

At each financial year end the finance department:

o Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

o Assesses property valuations movements when compared to
the prior year valuation report;

o Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

17 BEWHEGE)

AEEZBREREHER 2 EHHIE
MEBREZ AERARFERBERZ
EAREL -

RERN - E— ZR=BIWEE -

REBZIHEYHER2017F12A31HH
B BELERGEMERGEE - Z&E
EMFERUEBEEERREOLNE
HELEMEZWREOH A EER K
B ATAREMEMNS  REHEES

eSS MREER -

NEB B IE— X HBLAHERM
M RRE M ETHEZMENER -
BB EERM S REER - B 548
B [HERKRGEEMEDENEA (B8
AEEFHEFERSEBH—BOETE
BERFRERNF® o BR2017F %2016
F12A318  MEZAFETHETE
BEEBRARETE °

REFREFEER - BH5EFT -

s REBVMHERETAMBIZHA
g

o  HEFVMHEMERRNW®
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’D)

Changes in Level 3 fair values are analysed at each reporting date
during the bi-annual valuation discussions between the CFO, and
the valuation team. As part of this discussion, the team presents a
report that explains the reasons for the fair value movements.

Fair value measurements using significant observable inputs
Fair values of properties held by the Group in Hong Kong
for investment purpose are generally derived using the direct
comparison method. This valuation method is based on comparing
the property to be valued directly with other comparable
properties, which have recently transacted. However, given the
heterogeneous nature of real estate properties, appropriate
adjustments are usually required to allow for any qualitative
differences that may affect the price likely to be achieved by the
property under consideration.

Fair values of properties held by the Group for investment purpose
in the Mainland China are generally derived using the income
capitalisation method. This valuation method is based on the
capitalisation of the net income and reversionary income potential
by adopting appropriate capitalisation rates, which are derived
from analysis of sale transactions and valuers’ interpretation of
prevailing investor requirements or expectations. The prevailing
market rents adopted in the valuation have reference to recent
lettings, within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the
year.

17 BREWE(E)

FZEBATENEHHVBEEEMKE
BN FEMBETR S HRE B HE
B - ERF RN —BD - ZEKER
E-BBELAFEEPRREAZH®E

ERAEEUBRERABB A FERE
AEERBERBIERERENYNRZ
R E—REAERLEEETE o thih
BEREERGEENYREEMITHEE
HRZBZ AL EMELEITLER - A
ENEFHENEIEEETHER - &
BRAELEEPHBARRAEZEME
B ERERZEHEER -

AEBRTBERERBEREREME
Z R FE-REABRAERNOETES
He WHETENENRAEE ZER
e - RN FEREFRAZENDT
NEARE - MEAELRTEBEHE
REPMEEEMREERREEZE
KEMEMEH - EREPRABOEE
mSHEEN2ZBRMEREMBELUY
EHPTHEBBEAMETE -

FA - MEELBEAEE) -
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17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONT’'D) 17 BEWHEGE)

FRE=EAVEFEZER

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

Relationship of
unobservable inputs

Valuation Unobservable to fair value
Investment properties technique inputs Rate AuBEg AYE
REME HELE  FUBRERARE i3 HATEZEE
Properties held in Direct comparison Unit rate RMB 19,000 The higher the unit rate,
— Hong Kong approach /sq ft the higher the fair value
BEZME EELEE BiEE  AR¥19,000m,/  BUBREAFEMIEL
— BB FAR
Properties held in Income capitalisation Market yield 4.48% - 4.99% The higher the yield,
— Mainland China approach the lower the fair value
BEZME ThON-V.N |7 i % 4.48%-4.99% Wras R BN FER R
— B RRE
Monthly gross RMB39,608  The higher the rental value,
market rent to RMB64,066 the higher the fair value
BAMSHERE AR #39,6087T HeBEENTERIEL
2 AR#64,0667T

The Group's interests in investment properties at their carrying

AEBLEEEIRNREY R 2 #a

values are analysed as follows: DT :
2017 2016
201745 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREETTT ARBFIT
In Hong Kong, held on leases of less than 50 years ;A & 15 B 4 (505 LA T) 26,496 26,496
In the PRC, held on leases of over 50 years RAPEFEEL(50FE E) 282,000 282,000
308,496 308,496

As at 31 December 2017, the investment properties amounting to
approximately RMB308,496,000 (2016: RMB308,496,000) were R ¥ 308,496,000 T (2016 : AR
pledged as security for certain bank borrowings of the Group (Note 308,496,0007T ) B K IR VE AN &£ [F & F 45
30(a)). TTEEZ R (FEE30(@))

M2017F 128318 » 8EWEY A
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18 ELEE

Franchise right
and computer

Goodwill software Total
BrREER
5k B #et
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT
Cost AR
At 1 January 2017 M2017%1818 1,052,346 73,907 1,126,253
Additions NE - 4,532 4,532
At 31 December 2017 20174128318 1,052,346 78,439 1,130,785
Accumulated amortisation and ZETEHE R ESE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2017 MW2017%1818 28,654 42,985 71,639
Amortisation charge for the year FREHET - 3,954 3,954
At 31 December 2017 K2017%12A31H 28,654 46,939 75,593
Net book value FHEFE
At 31 December 2017 12017412318 1,023,692 31,500 1,055,192
Cost DN
At 1 January 2016 201651 A1H 1,052,346 71,743 1,124,089
Additions NE - 2,164 2,164
At 31 December 2016 2016512 A831H 1,052,346 73,907 1,126,253
Accumulated amortisation and 2B NREEE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2016 M20165F1 818 28,654 39,365 68,019
Amortisation charge for the year FER#EETH - 3,620 3,620
At 31 December 2016 72016912 831H 28,654 42,985 71,639
Net book value RHEFE
At 31 December 2016 2016412 A31H 1,023,692 30,922 1,054,614
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18 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT’'D)
Note:

A segment-level summary of goodwill allocation at cost less impairment is
presented below:

18 EREE(HE)
GER

AR AHBRBES IR BED R 2 BHEZ25
L

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB'000 RMB’'000

ARKETTT ARETT

Natural gas power generation RAREE 521,398 521,398
Wind power generation B EEE 502,294 502,294
1,023,692 1,023,692

For the purposes of impairment reviews, the recoverable amount of goodwill
is determined based on value-in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculations
use pre-tax cash flow projections based on financial budgets approved by
management for the purposes of impairment reviews.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved in the preparation
of cash flow projections for the period covered by the approved budget.
Management prepared the financial budgets taking into account actual and
prior year performance and market development expectations. The revenue
growth rate in electricity output and pre-tax discount rate used for value-in-
use calculations for goodwill is from 0%-6% (2016: 0% — 6%) and 10%-12%
(2016: 10% — 12%) respectively.

Management estimates the growth rate in electricity output by reference to
the expected demand for electricity in the region where the power plants are
located. Management estimates the discount rate using pre-tax rates that
reflect market assessments of the time value of money and the specific risks
relating to the cash-generating unit.

At 31 December 2017, the recoverable amount of goodwill determined based
on value-in-use calculated exceeded the carrying amount of goodwill by
approximately RMB946,577,000 (2016: RMB757,291,000).

At 31 December 2017, if the budgeted growth rate in electricity output applied
to the discounted cash flows had been 2% lower (2016: 2% lower), with
all other variables held constant, goodwill will be impaired by approximately
RMB27,498,000 (2016: RMB71,461,000) or otherwise no additional
impairment charge will be required.

At 31 December 2017, if the pre-tax discount rate applied to the discounted
cash flows had been 1% higher (2016: 1% higher) , with all other variables
held constant, goodwill will be impaired by approximately RMB2,430,000
(2016: RMB103,548,000) or otherwise no additional impairment charge will be
required.

BRERME - B2 R E SR IREE S
BEFE - EREAEDIZRERE SR ERT T
B2 BIGTREEE 2 MATR S RETRRFTE -

mEENBERSHEC RS RERANS RZE
B st - ﬁqﬁ,‘s&e%f/%&ﬁiﬁfﬁu&
MEHERBEFEIMRESE - HEEEFER
BEZEHHBRAEBRER LA ES
H0%ZE6%(2016%F : 0% %E6%) M10%ZE12%
(20164 : 10%E12%) °

ERESREEHMAEMRIEINENFRMAS
NEHIERE - EREARRETS Tif%ﬁvfﬁ
BEzHE R EREREE ST ERR 2R
AL RAGFTRLIR K o

M2017F12A831H - IREREEAEmMET
NEEKEcEREAERAENARYE
946,577,000 7t (2016 £ : A R # 757,291,000
JT) e

M2017F12A318 » WAIRESREMERZE
ﬁiﬁﬁ?ﬁigi“ETTF¢2°An(2016¢ C T #2%)
MATEEMEERBFTLE  BEKSREHA
R#27,498, 0007z(zo16¢ C ANR#71,461,000
70) + BRIBEELEINRES S

H2017F128318 - WERBESREMEAZ
FRATEBRI R FF1%(20164F © EF1%) » mHAT
EHEMESRETE  HEESRENARE
2,430,0007C(20164F = AR#103,548,0007T) *
GRIBBEELEINRESHE
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19 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

19 REBEQTzERE

2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
Share of net assets PMEEEFE 153,569 136,891
Movements in interests in associates during the year: FARREE R RINEREZEINT
2017 2016
201745 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFIT ARBFT
At 1 January W1 ATHE 136,891 127,525
Share of profits FE(S A 12,752 9,366
Capital injection TE 9,200 -
Dividend [ ds (5,274) -
At 31 December »12H31H 153,569 136,891
Notes: Bt s
(i) The following are the details of the associates as at 31 December 2017: 0] T AR2017F12 A31H 2B & Q[
"
Place of Equity interest
establishment attributable to
Name of company and operation Paid up capital the Group  Type of legal entity Principal activities
AEEEN
ARER RIREE BEHRRE RARR AEARER TEER
Interests held indirectly:
B EER
Shanghai Dong Hai Wind Power Electricity PRC RMB861,000,000 13.18%  Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
Generating Company Limited (Note) venture electricity
DERERNEEERAF () H AR#861,000,0007T 13.18% HHEELE BHERHEEN
Dongguan China Power Xinao Heat Energy PRC RMB48,000,000 46%  Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
Company Limited venture heat
REREHRRNBRAA HE AK#48,000,0007T 46% FHRERE BERRBERN
Note: M3E

In accordance with the relevant terms as stipulated in the Articles of
Association, the Group has attained a significant influence over the
financial and operating policies of the company. Consequently, the
company is accounted for as an associate of the Group.

BEATSRAT 2 BMER - ALED
REAAPEREERE LAESYE
h e Btk - RARABAREENBEA

7o
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(ii)

Set out below is the aggregated financial information of the Group’s
share of the associates:

195

T AR R B (B A 72 ERR A

2017 2016

20174 20164

RMB'000 RMB’'000

AREETTT ARETT

Profit for the year FREF 12,752 9,366
Other comprehensive income H b2 mUEs - -
Total comprehensive income el G e 12,752 9,366

(iy  Dividend income of approximately RMB5,274,000 was received from the (i) FAKIBEQARBERANARE
associates for the year (2016: Nil). 5,274,00070(20164F : ££) o
(iv)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (v) BIEGERNEEREE AT ZEEIIA
associates. afg -
(v Theinvestment in the associates is considered immaterial individually. v) REERRZEEERNME ERATEK -
20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 20 RE&LFzEHS
2017 2016
201745 20165
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETIT AREFIT
Share of net assets DHBEFE 231,434 248,841
Goodwill [ 478 478
231,912 249,319
Movements in interests in joint ventures during the year: FARGECEZEREHNT
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
At 1 January ®1A1H 249,319 233,479
Acquisition (Note (ii)) LB (B=EG)) 10,500 -
Disposal (Note (iii)) o & (B R (15,737) -
Share of profits 4G 5 A 19,946 36,396
Dividend Bz 2 (32,116) (20,556)
At 31 December »12H31H 231,912 249,319
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REeBEhFE s (&)

AT AR2017F12A31A 2 A B %

%

Type of legal entity

Principal activities

20 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES (CONT’D) 20
Notes: BEE
i) The following are the details of the joint ventures as at 31 December (i)
2017:
Place of Equity interest
establishment attributable to
Name of companies and operation Paid up capital the Group
KEEEL
AL AYREERE BHREA B
Fujian Shouning Niutoushan Hydropower ~ PRC RMB130,000,000 52%
Company Limited
BREETRLKERRAT e ARH130,000,0007C 52%
Shanghai Chongming Beiyan Wind Power  PRC RMB186,074,000 20%
Generation Company Limited
BRI ERNEEERAF e ARH186,074,0007C 20%
Dongguan Humen Port Lifengyuen PRC RMB33,748,000 42%
Underground Pipe Gallery Company
Limited
RERMELERARERBRAR e AR 33,748,000 4%

EELTER TERK
Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
venture electricity
THRERE ERHEESN
Sino-foreign equity joint  Generation and sales of
venture electricity
THRERE HERHEEN
Sino-foreign equity joint  Manufacturing of
venture equipment
RHEELE BERE

In accordance with the relevant terms as stipulated in the shareholders’
agreements, the Group has attained a joint control over the financial
and operating policies of the above companies. Consequently, these
companies are accounted for as joint ventures of the Group.

(ii) During the year, the Group acquired 42% equity interest in Dongguang
Humen Port Lifengyuan Underground Pipe Gallery Company Limited
(“Lifengyuan”) at a consideration of approximately R\MB10,500,000.

(i) During the year, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group entered into an
equity transfer agreement to dispose of the entire 15% equity interest
in Beijing Longyuan Cooling Technology Company Limited at a cash
consideration of approximately RMB26,420,000 resulting in a gain of
approximately RMB10,683,000 recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2017.

(i)

(iii)

RIBBER B FTa] 2 BB IRSR - ARED
S Bt AR B RS B R 2 KRR
HHE o FIt - ZELRARINBAEEZ
BERE-

FA - AEEWBEREZEPELERA K
EBARAT(ZER])42%MHE - KRB
A AE#10,500,0007T °

FR - AEE—HE2ENBARGREEL
FURL AT B BR R B 15%PRAE 2T ST AR 4
R - REAARK26,420,0007T -
EHREHE2017F12A31B L FE 24546
Uz 2% Hr AR S 49 A R 5 10,683,0007T °

(iv)  Set out below is the aggregated financial information of the Group’s (v, UTAREERERGEEECEZEMMBGE
share of the joint ventures: #}
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AREBFT AREBFIT
Profit for the year FRE A 19,946 36,396
Other comprehensive income Hib 2 mEk _ _
Total comprehensive income EMELEEE 19,946 36,396
(v Dividend income of approximately RMB32,116,000 was received from v FARDZEEECERBEBALHA
the joint ventures for the year (2016: RMB20,556,000). R % 32,116,000 7t (2016 &F : AR ¥
20,556,0007T) °
(vi)  There are no contingent liabilities relating to the Group's interests in the (viy BIEEHEASEREGELEEEIHAR
joint ventures. f& o
(viy  The investments in the joint ventures are considered immaterial (i) RABTCEZEEBERMSHRATEK -

individually.
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 21 RERESHNERTIA
Financial assets
Financial assets at fair value
atfairvalue  through other
Loans and through the  comprehensive
receivables profit or loss income Total
RATE
AR
EXR ZEBRBERATE gElE
EWFE SRz eRER SREE by
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARETT

Assets as per consolidated balance sheet A EEBERFTEE

As at 31 December 2017 20176124318
Accounts receivable (Note 24) RSB (MzE24) 1,322,038 - - 1,322,038
Deposits and other receivables excluding 124 R E- EUTEIE

prepayments and value added tax (TREEAFER

receivables JEUEER) 297,985 - - 297,985
Available-for-sale financial asset HEHESHEE - - 244,000 244,000
Financial assets at fair value through profit or EBEHNUAFETIE

loss (Note 25) 2R (HE25) - 7,140 - 7,140
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) BHERELZEER (Mi:526) 775,703 - - 775,703

2,395,726 7,140 244,000 2,646,866

As at 31 December 2016 120165124318
Accounts receivable (Note 24) [EURBRSR (FizE24) 939,712 - - 939,712
Deposits and other receivables excluding %% B E A UGB

prepayments and value added tax (MBERNTER

receivables TEULER) 242,142 - - 242,142
Financial assets at fair value through BREEUNTENE

profit or loss (Note 25) SREE(M25) - 7,216 - 7,216
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 26) BERBELSEER (1:26) 1,816,761 - - 1,816,761

2,998,615 7,216 - 3,005,831
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21 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

21 RERESHERMTAE)

(CONT'D)
Other financial liabilities
HiremBE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBTT
Liabilities as per consolidated balance sheet  {F&BERBBEXRMTAE
Bank and other borrowings (Note 30) HRITREMEE(MFE30) 12,880,927 12,320,887
Corporate bond (Note 31) EESH(KIFE3) 799,363 799,343
Accounts payable (Note 33) FERTBR R (P3E33) 46,639 34,753
Construction costs payable, other payables JERHIREERAR - BN
and accrued charges (Note 34) B RETE R (FiFE34) 2,188,780 2,255,474
15,915,709 15,410,457
22 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 22 FEMEIE - BERHE MRS
RECEIVABLES 15
2017 2016
201745 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT
Prepayments for construction of 722 2% 5B R TE A< R TE SR Bt
power plants and others 725,109 448,040
Value added tax receivable FEUR IS (B R 777,813 771,255
Consideration receivable relating to disposal & —FEA&EDEEWRRE
of a joint venture (Note 20 (iii) (FfFsE200ii)) 21,140 -
Others (Note) HAb () 298,960 201,807
1,823,022 1,421,102
Less: Non-current portion B FEBNHERER (891,651) (609,833)
Current portion BIHEAER > 931,371 811,269

Note:

As at 31 December 2017, certain long-term deposits amounting to
approximately RMB137,171,000 (2016: RMB133,742,000) were pledged as
securities for certain obligation under finance leases of the Group (Note 30(d)).

Wi

R2017F12A318 » EFTRBESOHARE
137,171,00070 (20164 : A% 133,742,0007T)
EEREAASEESE TRIEMEAE 2 IR (I
30(d)) °
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23 INVENTORIES 23 FE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT
Raw materials R R 8,104 6,789
Spare parts and consumables ZHNSER 117,414 98,376
125,518 105,165

24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

24 FEUWERRR

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT

Accounts receivable from provincial power JEWE A BN FIERR
grid companies 1,192,804 848,264
Accounts receivable from other companies FEWE A N RIBRRX 78,154 69,757
1,270,958 918,021
Notes receivable (Note (i) e = (BREx)) 51,080 21,691
1,322,038 939,712

The carrying values of accounts receivable approximate their fair
values due to their short maturities. All the above receivables are
denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2017, accounts receivable amounting to
approximately RMB692,354,000 (2016: RMB448,365,000) are
pledged as securities for certain bank borrowings of the Group
(Note 30(a)).

MR BN BIE - SR R R 2 B B
HRFHERSE - A L EeGRIRE A
AREEHE -

M2017F12 8318 » —FEHARE
692,354,000 7T ( 2016 £ : A R &
448,365,0007T ) K B W AR SR B K IR1E B
AEEETRITEENER(HE30E)
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24 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE (CONT'D)

The Group normally grants 30 to 60 days credit period to
customers from the end of the month in which the sales are
made. The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

24 RUWARM(E)

AEE-RETEPEELEREEZ
AREE30E60H ZEEH - BUSRHK
ZERER DT

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETIT AREFIT

Less than 3 months 3MEALT 625,509 637,263
4 to 6 months 4268 H 260,598 177,865
7 to 12 months 721218 A 208,808 74,107
Over 1 year 194 176,043 28,786
1,270,958 918,021

The credit quality of accounts receivable that are neither past due
nor impaired is assessed by reference to the historical information
about counterparty default rates. The existing counterparties do
not have significant default in the past.

As of 31 December 2017, receivables of approximately
RMB746,372,000 (2016: RMB400,698,000) were past due but
not considered to be impaired because the relevant debtors have
no recent history of default.

RBHRTFERECBREERZEEEER
D2EHFTRERIIKAZER T A
ah - MAHFHIRBELEERER

R2017F12A831H » BUWHIEBLH A
R 746,372,0007C (2016 F : AR¥
400,698,000 7t ) E 1 H3 18 3 £ 1% 1B 5
B RESEBES AL &
IRECEE ©

2017 2016
201745 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT AREFIT
Over due 160 HA

Less than 3 months AT 361,521 280,685
4 to 6 months 45 61# H 114,255 77,298
7 to 12 months 721218 A 215,356 28,899
Over 1 year 19604 E 55,240 13,816
746,372 400,698

Notes: BfaE -

(i) As at 31 December 2017 and 2016, notes receivable represent
commercial acceptance notes and are with maturity period of 180 to
360 days.

(ii) During the year, no provision for impairment of accounts receivable was
made by the Group (2016: Nil) and there was no write-off of accounts
receivable during the year (2016: Nil). The directors consider that there
has not been a significant change in credit quality and there was no
provision for impairment in view of the creditability of the debtors and
the continuing repayment from those debtors.

0) R20174F K%20165F12 8318 » EREE
EREARZEE - WHN180E360H N E
g,q °

iy  HFA - AEE IR PR R R E
#(20164F : &) + JNERF A EE FE U AR
F (20165 : &) - EERAEEERTLE
EAREE  BRRNEBAZAEEREZS
BERAZFHEER BRI ERRE -
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25 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

2071

25 ZEBBERUNFEIIRZERM

PROFIT OR LOSS BE
2017 2016
20174 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETTT
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong RS LTIRAES 7,140 7,216
26 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 26 RERRELEHEER
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFTT
Cash at bank and in hand RITNFER® 760,653 923,865
Time deposits with initial terms of less than REHBRIHR=M(EAZ
three months TEBATE R 15,050 892,896
Cash and cash equivalents He NIESEEER 775,703 1,816,761
Denominated in: AT EHEEEHE
RMB AR 758,012 1,803,971
Others Hib 17,691 12,790
775,703 1,816,761
Note: MH5E

AEEAAREHEZRE MRS EFEBABTIE
EFENHPEEART - BREAREEHRILIAS
SNEARBRBIERES  HEETPEBNR
frE)SNE & B3R B FOER -

The Group's cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB are mainly
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of these RMB denominated
balances into foreign currencies and the remittance of funds out of the PRC is
subject to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated
by the PRC government.
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27 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSET/NON-
CURRENT ASSET CLASSIFIED AS HELD FOR SALE

FEEMBHERE

Unlisted equity interest investment

27 THHESHREE SEAR

EHEZRBEE
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETTT
244,000 255,000

The above available-for-sale financial asset/non-current asset
classified as held for sale represented a 20% equity interest
investment. Management considers the land development right
to be the major asset of the equity interest investment. The Group
entered into a Share Transfer Memorandum with the controlling
shareholder of the equity interest investment, an independent
third party (the “Independent Third Party”), on 13 February
2015 to dispose of its entire equity interest at a consideration of
RMB255,000,000. A Framework Agreement has been signed on
29 May 2015 and followed by a further Supplementary Framework
Agreement on 22 August 2016 for the implementation of share
transfer details.

During 2017, the Independent Third Party has submitted a revised
development plan of the project upon the request from the local
government. Up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements, the revised development plan is yet to be
approved by the local government. Both parties agreed to extend
the Supplementary Framework Agreement on 12 September
2017 for the implementation of share transfer details. As at 31
December 2017, the equity investment was reclassified from
non-current asset classified as held for sale to an available-for-
sale financial asset following the management’s reassessment
on the likelihood of the completion of the disposal transaction
with the Independent Third Party that the share transfer may not
be completed within the next twelve months from the balance
sheet date. The Group and the Independent Third Party kept
on negotiating specific details of the plan for implementing the
share transfer of the equity interest, subject to the finalisation
and approval by the local government of the revised development
plan.

For the purposes of fair value assessment, the fair value less
costs to sell of the available-for-sale financial asset is determined
using the asset-based approach. Management considers the land
development right to be the major asset of the investment and the
fair value less costs to sell is determined based on market value
of the comparable development less the cost to completion for
the purpose of impairment review. During the year, the decrease
in fair value of approximately RMB11,000,000 (2016: Nil) was
recognised in other comprehensive income.

There are a number of assumptions and estimates involved in
the valuation. Management performed valuation taking into
account of comparable development where the project is located
in assessing the achievable gross development value, related
construction cost and resettlement cost.

FaiaHHEEmEE, HEABER
EZIERBDEERK20%BHERE -
FEERA  THRAREAREREZ
FTEEE - R2015F2H138 A& H
HREREZIERBRR(—RBYE=
FoIBYE=ZFDIIYRNEEER
B M EE2BRE  REAARE
255,000,0007T ° 201595 A29H %5
EZR W2 HEN20165F8 422 HE—
SN TEIEZRE  WEERMHEERN

g o

N20175 - BIYE=ZF O EEHBITE
KRR ZEE 2SR FREETE - 5EE
ZEGAPBERREEBDE - &BE]
PAESET R R EE IR THE & - STHE
FH201799 A 12 B R B K /e iEZR
& VBB RMEEE - K2017F12
A318  RNEEBEHTEEBTE=
FHERHEER S Z A RE 1 (BIRR(h 88 sk
“EREEREI1I2EARTR)E IR
RECEIP AR EHEZERBEE
EFOBAAHEHESREE - ~&H
BB HBERTHEIRE RN E
BB ERSHITERE HAFED
BT B 40 T R B S 5T R B 5T 214
FAIEE °

MATFEFEMS © AFEMNBAHRE
ECRMEENHEEXRANIZEERT A
ANEFE -THEERAS  THHABERE
BRNTELE  MAFENREERR
RIBEA L RAZEREATISEENKRTIK
REF  WEEFTRERS - £/ A
FER A4 AR 11,000,0007T (2016
F ) REM2EIREPER -

PMEETE METRRMET - BEEE
TR ERZ BIR B Pt a] L F %%
BE - AFHEAESINEREE - 1B
R R LB
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM 28 BARBRBEE
(a) Share capital (a) B’&
Number of
shares  Share capital
K EE L5
RMB'000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2016 — CPNE 201651 H18
—HhEIELIR 11,866,334,172 1,077,101
Issue of ordinary shares (Note (i)) BT ERAR (KMEE()) 8 -
Share consolidation (Note (ii)) B&tn & OF (ki) (10,679,700,762) -
At 31 December 2016 and 7201612 A31H %2017
1 January 2017 — CPNE F1AVA - EFER 1,186,633,418 1,077,101
Cancellation of the shares of CPNE BIEEAHRTHETE
pursuant to the Reorganisation HTeIR 2 B% o (M % (Gii))
Proposal (Note (iii)) (1,186,633,418) (1,077,101)
Issue of new CPCE shares (Note (iv)): RUATERZEITHESE
BEIRFNAR 1 (BT 5E(v)) -
On incorporation PAEEM AR ST B 10 -
Pursuant to the Reorganisation Proposal RIFEHF R 1,186,633,408 5,746,012
At 31 December 2017 - CPCE 720175124310 —
FEFZER 1,186,633,418 5,746,012

Notes:

(i) On 6 May 2016, CPNE issued 8 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each to
an employee of CPNE at HK$0.63 per share while the closing price
was HK$0.63 per share as quoted on the Stock Exchange on the last
trading day. The proceeds from the issuance of the shares amounted
to approximately RMB4.23 (equivalent to HK$5.04) resulting in share
premium of approximately RMB3.56. These shares rank pari passu in all
respects with the existing shares. The directors are of the view that the
allotment is in the interests of CPNE and the shareholders as a whole.
The proceeds from the issuance of the shares are expected to be used
by CPNE as its working capital.

HR2016F5 A6 « REIRERIAEAR0.63
BT EHER - GEERITSRER
HE0I0ATTHERE - MARERSH
TEBE X P T U T (B B A% 0.6378 T © B
TR FREHNBARKEA2ITTHEER
5.04%70) - AR EENAARKESS6
TL e ZERMARFTE T EERERNHE
ASHm - EFZRA  EFETEHE
TR R R AR EE RS o BT TSR
TERHERETEF R EEES -
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(a)

Notes:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT'D)

Share capital (Cont’d)
(Cont'd)

By passing an ordinary resolution at the Annual General Meeting of
CPNE held on 12 May 2016, CPNE implemented a share consolidation
on the basis that every ten issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.10 each in the share capital of CPNE be consolidated into one
ordinary share of HK$1.00 each effective on 13 May 2016.

On 14 July 2017, pursuant to the Reorganisation Proposal, all the
1,186,633,418 ordinary shares of CPNE outstanding as at 14 July
2017 were cancelled and extinguished and the issued share capital of
CPNE was reduced accordingly. In consideration of the cancellation
and extinguishment of the 1,186,633,418 ordinary shares of CPNE
outstanding as at 14 July 2017, the holders of these ordinary shares
received ordinary shares of the Company issued and credited as fully
paid, on the basis of one ordinary share of the Company for every one
ordinary share of CPNE then held.

Under the Reorganisation Proposal, the share capital, share premium
and the other reserves accounts were reduced by approximately
RMB1,077,101,000, RMB195,308,000 and RMB4,473,603,000
respectively, totalling RMB5,746,012,000, representing the carrying
value of CPNE shares cancelled, and at the same time the share capital
was increased by approximately RMB5,746,012,000, representing the
value of new CPCE shares issued.

CPCE was incorporated in Hong Kong on 8 May 2017, 10 shares was
issued and allotted at incorporation date. During the year, 1,186,633,408
shares were issued and allotted pursuant to the Reorganisation Proposal.

(a)
g -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

BAR B A RE (&)
R ()
(#)

BEBEREHERER20164E5 12 B &7
MBRREFAG LERBN—EL RIS
- RENREEREAREHRERE
{E0. 1078 TR B 31T RoAR BT L BRSO
A EREEE.00/8 T @k 2 £ &
EITRDED - RIDEHR201655 713
AR -

R20179F78148 - REEHEFE F8F
HAERN 201797 B 14 B BT A 3475
1,186,633,418% & AL 2 5k 85 S fERE - T
FEIERZ B EITRATEER D - 1
BR2017F7 A 148188 RIERER EH B
JREE1TIEIMN,186,633,418 % & 3@ A% 2 &
B ZELRRZFEABRAARDE
TWEARIERMER R L@ - B
AERBRE—RPEMERL BRI E
B—RAARE@EE -

BEEEFIFR BEA - BOEEK
HEHEEREESARDODARE
1,077,101,0007¢C + A R % 195,308,000 7T
M AR#4,473,603,0007T © A& AR
5,746,012,0007T * HHEREFIHFR S
BERGZEEE - R BRRENIOAR
#5,746,012,0007C © HEREETHES
BELRHIRG 2 BE -

REEZEBRNR2017F5ABEEH
AR REEMAKZE B - 108D
BEIREE - -FR - BREEAFER
1,186,633,408% i (7 €35 1T R Bir 2% -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(b) Share premium

28 BARBRMHEEGE)

(b) MKRDEE

2017 2016

20175 20164

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AREBTT AREBTT

At 1 January ®1A1H 195,308 195,308
Cancellation of the share premium of CPNE  #RIFEHRH R TEFE

pursuant to the Reorganisation Proposal LR 2 DR B
(Note 28(a)iii)) (Pt EE28(a)iii)) (195,308) -
At 31 December »12H31H - 195,308

(c) Share option scheme

(i)  Share option scheme of CPCE

On 8 June 2017, CPCE adopted the pre-listing share option
scheme and the post-listing share option scheme which became
effective subsequently on 17 July 2017.

Pre-listing share option scheme

The purpose of the pre-listing share option scheme is to enable
CPCE, in connection with the Reorganisation Proposal, to grant
options to the participants in replacement of share options
granted by CPNE, thereby continuing to provide incentives or
rewards to the participants for their contribution to CPCE and
its subsidiaries (together, the “New Group”) and/or to enable
the New Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and
attract human resources that are valuable to the New Group.

All CPNE’s options held by the option holders were granted
pursuant to the 2002 Share Option Scheme and 2012 Share
Option Scheme of CPNE. Each option granted under the pre-
listing share option scheme was granted in consideration of an
optionholder’s agreement on the cancellation of a corresponding
option granted under the 2002 Share Option Scheme or the 2012
Share Option Scheme. As such, the principal terms (including
the grantee, number of underlying shares, exercise price and
expiry date) of each such CPCE’s option are the same as those of
the corresponding CPNE's option that has been cancelled, save
that (i) the underlying shares are CPCE’s shares and not CPNE's
shares and (ii) the date of grant was the date of grant of the
CPCE's options (i.e. 8 June 2017) and not the date of grant of the
corresponding CPNE’s options that has been cancelled.

() BreEa

(i) HFEEFZEEFZIBREZ
R2017F6 A8H » HEERERERM L
MATEER T8 & E s B RS
WREBE2017F7A17HER

LRI R E]
ErRERES S EES P EBRER
WEASTRET2RERRENKTE
Frae R IR 2 BB - AR s B
REH TR EBRER L EKE QR (G
[FEmDELER 285 Kk, SEH
SEREREMBESREREARTS
HWHEEMEBEEZANER °

BREFEE A2 TP ENERER
RETHIRIE R BHAER 2 2002 F B A =t
BIN2012F BT B - RIZE LT
BIERETERE cBHhERENER
BRERE AR BZHERE2002F B
REETEI 2012 F B IR E AT BIPT I i 2 48
JERIRE 2 RE - Bt - BhEFZR
R, T2 RR(BEARA -
FRHEE « fTEERFIEIA ) EEFFE
ZHEEREIFLIRERE 2 2 KFUE
B - WO)BERD AR EBZERZMDM
FEREFERKRO RNELBBRAETE
BR2RE R ER 1 HHI(B12017F6 A8
H) i FEE sk 88 < HEFE P B 3T ae IR B A i
ZEE A -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont’'d)

(i)  Share option scheme of CPCE (Cont’d)

Pre-listing share option scheme (Cont’d)

The options granted under the pre-listing share option scheme
were non-exercisable when granted and only exercisable when
the Scheme became effective on 17 July 2017. The total value of
options cancelled pursuant to the 2002 Share Option Scheme and
2012 Share Option Scheme and grated under the pre-listing share
option scheme amounting to approximately RMB19,252,000.

Post-listing share option scheme

The purpose of the post-listing share option scheme is to provide
incentives or rewards to the participants thereunder for their
contribution to the New Group and/or to enable the New Group
to recruit and retain high-calibre employees and attract human
resources that are valuable to the New Group.

i) The maximum number of the Shares to be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the pre-listing share option scheme and the
share option scheme and any other share option schemes
of CPCE must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the total
number of the Shares in issue from time to time.

i) The total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options (excluding, for this purpose, options
which lapsed in accordance with the terms of the pre-listing
share option scheme and the share option scheme and any
other share option schemes of CPCE) to be granted under
the pre-listing share option scheme and the share option
scheme and any other share option schemes of CPCE must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the total numbers of the
Shares in issue on the listing date (the “General Scheme
Limit").

28 BRARRMEE(E)

() BREEICE)

() HEEEEEFZIERENZE)
_FTRIRE R 1A E (4E)

RIE - BT B AR A AT B 2 BB AR R
BRI - BN 817E2017F7
R17BERiE 7 ] &7 o IR1%2002F
BT B 2012 F AT 2B 8
MR E AT AR 8 B B 2 B
HEBEEL B ARE19,252,0007T °

Wiyt 3759 F75-1)
EHRBREE S A RE Y
SEEHERZ28BER SEHER
RRERRESRDRE AR THNEH
SEMEBEEZANER -

) ARE_ET A RS AR AT &) K BB AR AT
I NP BB RRERE A H AL BB A
SRR R ERETTE ZPAE B AR
TTRBREETERS THETZR
SROBE - AATBRETED
BTN B EZ230% °

i) ARIE_ET A RS AR AT &) K BB AR AT
B R EFREREMEMEBR
AT B 2 P B R (Bhite T
- IRE_ET AR 8 KB
RT3 R ERRERETEME
PR ST B R B R 2 B AR A T
TEHE) BEITEEA TEHT 2RO
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(0
(i)

Share option scheme (Cont'd)
Share option scheme of CPCE (Cont’d)

Post-listing share option scheme (Continued)

iii)

Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iv) below,
CPCE may seek approval of the Members of CPCE in general
meeting to refresh the General Scheme Limit provided that
the total number of the Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the pre-listing
share option scheme and the share option scheme and
any other share option schemes of CPCE under the limit
as “refreshed” must not exceed 10% of CPCE's shares in
issue as at the date of approval of such limit and for the
purpose of calculating the limit as “refreshed”, options
(including those outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised
in accordance with the terms of the pre-listing share option
scheme and the share option scheme and any other share
option schemes of CPCE) previously granted under the pre-
listing share option scheme and any other share option
schemes of CPCE will not be counted.

Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iii) above,
CPCE may seek separate approval from Members of CPCE
in general meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the limit referred to in (iii)
above to participants specifically identified by CPCE before
such approval is sought.

The post-listing share option scheme shall be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on 8 June 2017, after which
period no further options will be granted but the provisions of
this post-listing share option scheme shall remain in full force and
effect in all other respects. The subscription price in respect of any
particular option shall be such price as determined by the Board
in its absolute discretion at the time of the making of the offer.
The option may be exercised by the participant who accepted the
offer of the grant of any option in accordance with the terms of
the post-listing share option scheme at any time during the option
period.

No option was granted by CPCE under post-listing share option
scheme subsequent to the balance sheet date.
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

() Share option scheme (Cont'd)

(i)  Share option scheme of CPCE (Cont’d)

Post-listing share option scheme (Continued)

Unless the directors of CPCE otherwise determined and stated in
the offer to a participant, there is no minimum period for which
an option granted under the pre-listing share option scheme and
the post-listing share option scheme must be held before it can be
exercised.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or
to vote at Members’ meetings.

(i) Share option scheme of CPNE

Prior to the Reorganisation Proposal, CPNE operated a share
option scheme. The purpose of the Scheme was to enable CPNE
to grant options to eligible participants, thereby as an incentive or
rewards for their contribution to the Group. Eligible participants
of the Scheme included the directors, employees, suppliers,
customers and shareholders of the Group. In accordance with the
resolution passed in the annual general meeting held on 21 May
2012, the share option scheme adopted on 31 October 2002 was
terminated while a new share option scheme (the “Scheme”)
was adopted. Unless otherwise terminated or amended, the 2012
Scheme will remain in force for ten years from date of adoption to
21 May 2022.

28 BRARRMEE(E)
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() FEERERZIEREE(E)
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont’'d)

(ii) Share option scheme of CPNE (Cont’d)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the total number of shares which may
be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Scheme shall not exceed 30% of
the issued share capital of CPNE from time to time. The maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted to each participant in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of CPNE at any time.
Any grant or further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting
of CPNE. In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive directors of CPNE,
or to any of their associates, resulting in the shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding,
to such person, in a 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant in excess of 0.1% of the shares of CPNE in
issue and with an aggregate value (based on the closing price of
CPNE’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5,000,000,
is subjected to shareholders’ approval in advance in a general
meeting. The offer of a grant of options may be accepted within
21 days from the date of the offer with signed acceptance letter
comprising consideration of HK$1.00 received by CPNE. The
exercise period of the share options granted is determinable by
the directors, but no later than 10 years from the date of the
offer. The subscription price for the shares in respect of which
options are granted is determinable by the directors, but in any
case must be not lower than the highest of (i) the closing price of
CPNE's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the date of the grant; (i) the average closing price of
CPNE's shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of CPNE's shares.

All of the options were vested to the option holders on the date
of acceptance of the offer.

28 BARBRMHEEGE)

(c) BRETEGE)

(i) BHEER BRI E ()
RIBFTE - TRFFEIE T M ARITEZRE
REITEBRBERITHERAI 21T 2 RGD
WE - TMEHRBREHER TR BT
B AR 2 30% o PAEf+ 1@ B EAR -
RIBF FTEM28E BRIEETER
EBETEBETRMD 2 E=HE T 58
BREMERAEAREEHITRAZ
1% o AT EkE— PR EBEZR
HoBRE BERESMERRERS
FIERESRELE - I AREE
MeEEHERE L B 1E+ @A B
W BREFEREZRRE B LIEHR
TEBARE 2 E AP AB L ERE
feiE CEHE MMz ATE L 2 25
Aot (BIEEITHE - R ARITE 2 B
)BT M EIT e BT ) B
EHRERE 1T 0.1% KB AT R
At 2 BEGRE L E AR EIMERRG
ZUW M {BETE )5,000,000/8 7T © AELR
BREAE FERGRELE - RERTZ
EREATRIEER TEBRBI21BRE
EZHENE - WA BIRERSZARET.00
PETLIRER o FTIR M ERE 2 1T AR A
EERT  ETSBRARER THER
ET104F - PRI BB IR 2 B 1D SR BB B A
BEET  HEROMAMSENMIR T
—EFZ&EEE - (VPEFERRONED
HHATE B 2 AT A REB R AT BT {E
(NP EFEERBRMREEF L BRI R
EEXBEBIMETARERMB2TF
BUTHE 5 KR BRI 2 FME o

EBERERNEMEZERTERCDRE
TREESEA -
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D) 28 RARRGRE(E)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont'd) () EBRETE(E)

From 1 January 2016 to 7 July 2017, no share options under H2016F 1185201747878 » &
the Scheme was granted. As at 7 July 2017, 8,600,000 share IRIEFT S D E R BEIRE - 10201778
options were outstanding under the Scheme. On 7 July 2017, the 78 - BIE5HE158,600,00017 & & 17
shareholders of CPNE approved the termination of the Scheme. FEAGIE - PEIEER 2 IREN2017F7 B
Upon termination of the Scheme, no further share options can 7EHDELRIERT S o MRTTEIEAREE R
be granted thereunder. The outstanding share options were = Mg EREE -

transferred to the pre-listing share option scheme.

Details of the options granted under the pre-listing share option B FHATERETEI N g B
scheme and the post-listing share option scheme and outstanding sHEIRE BR2017512 A31 B R1T1E
as at 31 December 2017 are as follows: ZEREFBLOT

Number of

shares subject to
the options at

31 December 2017

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price A2017512H31H
E-G=h E L= THEE BRENKROEE

HK$

BIT
Directors
=
8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 800,000
20175F6 H8H 2020F10A31H
8 June 2017 15 January 2023 5.14 1,200,000
20175F6 AH8H 2023F1H15H

2,000,000

Senior management and other employees
SREBAERAMES

8 June 2017 31 October 2020 7.80 2,150,000
201796 A8H 2020F10A831H
8 June 2017 15 January 2023 5.14 4,450,000
20176 A8H 2023F1H15H

6,600,000

8,600,000
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28 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT’D) 28 MARRMRE(E)

(c) Share option scheme (Cont'd) () BRESTEI(E)
Details of the options granted under Scheme and outstanding as REFF S BR20165F 12 A31H A
at 31 December 2016 are as follows: 1T 7 BER SR IB AN T -

Number of

shares subject to
the options at

31 December 2016

Date of grant Expiry date Exercise price 420165F12H31H
E-dl=h F|H A THEE BRENKROEE

HK$

BIT
Directors
S
8 June 2007 7 June 2017 8.36 1,800,000
200746 A8H 20176 H7H
1 November 2010 31 October 2020 7.80 800,000
2010511 A1H 20209108318
16 January 2013 15 January 2023 5.14 1,200,000
2013F1716H 20231 A15H

3,800,000

Senior management and other employees

BREEABREMES

1 November 2010 31 October 2020 7.80 2,750,000
201011 A1H 2020%F10H31H
16 January 2013 15 January 2023 5.14 4,850,000
2013F1H16H 2023%F1H15H

7,600,000

11,400,000
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(9]

Notes:

(iii)

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM (CONT'D)

Share option scheme (Cont’d)

No options were exercised by the senior management and other
employees during the year ended 31 December 2017 and 2016.

2,800,000 options were lapsed during the year ended 31 December
2017. During the year ended 31 December 2016, 74,000,000 options
and 700,000 options (equivalent to 7,000,000 options before the share
consolidation) were lapsed before and after the share consolidation
respectively.

As of 12 May 2016, the Company had a total of 18,000,000,
35,500,000 and 67,500,000 share options outstanding under the
share option scheme granted on 8 June 2007, 1 November 2010 and
16 January 2013 with exercise prices at HK$0.836, HK$0.780 and
HK$0.514 per share respectively. As a result of the share consolidation
effective on 13 May 2016, the total number of share options
outstanding were adjusted, in accordance with the terms of the share
option scheme and Rule 17.03(13) of the Listing Rules, to 1,800,000,
3,550,000 and 6,750,000 consolidated shares and the exercise prices
increased by the same 10-fold factor as the share consolidation, and
accordingly, were adjusted to HK$8.36, HK$7.80 and HK$5.14 per
consolidated share respectively.

(c)
B

(i)

(iii)

IR B 405 8 ()

fERERT 8 ()

HE2017F %2016F12A31BIEFE -
BRERAS MEMIE B WA TEERE -

HZE2017F12 8318 14 F + 2,800,000
DRSS R - EE2016512A318
IEFE - RfD & HHRT1& 5 54 74,000,000
9 B AR 12 700,00017 & AL E (FE & AR (D
APEATHY7,000,00017 BEARAE ) B & 55K »

HE20165E5A 128 * KA EHR200746
Ag8H - 201011 A1HK2013%F1516
AIRBERETER DO RITEERRE
4 #£ 418,000,000 13 + 35,500,000 {5 &
67,500,000 - 1T {E 5 Al /% & % 0.836
IT + 0.780/8 7T 0.514%8 7T » B
AHR20164E5 A 138 £« 1RIFH R
FHEIMEF R ETARRIEE17.03(13) 1K » &
T ER A B A1,800,000 -
3,550,0000% X 6,750,0000% & GF A% 15 + i
TEETERDE G mREE N0
EITEED AEEREEEGRE HIRHD
8.3678 7T  7.80/B T 5. 1478 TT ©
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29 RESERVES 29 fREE

Available-for-
sale  Share-based

Contribution Others revaluation  compensation Exchange Total other Retained
surplus Note (i) reserve reserve reserve reserves earnings Total
Efb e LU Afpfif
4\EH Biz() EftGR i EiiGR &5t REEF &t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT  ARETR  ARMTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2017 R201751518 5,022,672 (166,891) - 2597 (126,566) 4,751,812 2,178,616 6,930,428
Share options forfeited after the FREERE I ERE

end of the vesting period - - - (3,345) - (3,345) 3,345 -
Profit and total comprehensive Rt EREEE

income for the year - - (8,250) - (273) (8,523) 401,702 393,179
Dividend pai Efifs (141,589 - - - RS - e
Cancelation of CPNE shares REEERRTH

pursuant to the Reorganisation HERRR

proposal (Note 28 (i) (BsE281a)i) - A - - - aBey) - A
Transfer (Note (i) SaR(0) (198,384 - - - - (198,384 198,384 -

At 31 December 2017 R017F12A318 4,682,700 (4,640,494) (8,250) 19,252 (126,839) (73,631) 2,782,047 2,708,416
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29 RESERVES (CONT'D)
Share-based
Contribution compensation
surplus Others reserve
R
LN At it

RMBO00  RMBOOO  AMB'00
ABRTT  ARBTR  ARMTR

29 f#EE)
Exchange  Totalother ~ Retained
reserve reserves earnings Total
Afbfts

EXGE i REEA it
RMBO00  RMBOOO  AMBO00  RMB(00O
ARRTT  ARBTR ARMTR  AREBTR

At 1 January 2016 R201651 418 5,060,525 (166,891) 32,522 (128654) 4,797,502 1,764,155 6,561,057
Share options forfeted after the FREILRBINERE

end of the vesting period - - (9,925) - (9,925) 9,925 -
Profit and total comprehensive ERgiR2ENGLE

income for the year - - - 2,088 2,088 404,536 406,624
Dividend paid B (37853) - - - (37853) - (37,853)
At 31 December 2016 #2016F128318 5,022,672 (166,891) 22,597 (126,566) 4,751,812 2,178,616 6,930,428
Notes: Pi%E
[0) Others mainly represent the difference between the value of new (i) B E2REEAREDETHEBZL

CPCE shares issued and the carrying value of CPNE shares cancelled
after the Reorganisation Proposal. It also consists of other reserve
of approximately RMB166,891,000, capital redemption reserve of
approximately RMB3,121,000 and statutory reserves of approximately
RMB446,000.

(ii) The transfer from contribution surplus reserve to retained earnings
represents dividend to the Company amounting to approximately
RMB 198,384,000 declared by CPNE, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company on 27 December 2017.

(i)

R 2 BEED EHPEIHERRGD
EEEZENES - HTaEmHEED
AR #166,891,0007T + AL EE B R & 4
AR #3,121,00070 KA TE @ @ 4 AR E
446,000 TAERK °

ERARRRFBEBREREBINEAR
AEEME QR P EHERR2017F
12A27HAARBERMEMNARYE
198,384,0007T °
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30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Bank and other borrowings are analysed as follows:

30

RITREMEE

RITREMEEITAT

215

2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AREBTT AREBTT
Non-current borrowings JERNHAE R
Long-term bank borrowings, secured ERBRAETEE
(Note (a)) (M¥5E(@)) 2,674,306 2,396,919
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured IR RHIRITEE
(Note (b)) (M4 (b)) 7,141,865 6,485,459
Long-term other borrowings, EERRHEMES
unsecured (Note (c)) (FF7E()) 1,404,160 1,513,883
Obligation under finance lease (Note (d)) B TR EAYE (MIFE(d)) 1,170,657 1,209,038
12,390,988 11,605,299
Less: Current portion of long-term borrowings 3 : R EIfEE  BNEIEE S
— secured bank borrowings — BEBIRITEE (282,941) (242,683)
— unsecured bank borrowings — EIERIRITEE (1,155,755) (1,384,126)
— unsecured other borrowings — B EMEE (1,330,160) (4,160)
— obligation under finance lease — BB E A (258,275) (225,514)
(3,027,131) (1,856,483)
Non-current portion FERNERER 9,363,857 9,748,816
Current BNER
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured AR ARRITEE 489,939 485,588
Short-term other borrowings, unsecured EI R EMEE
(Note (0)) (M) - 230,000
489,939 715,588
Current portion of long-term borrowings REIEEZBIHES 3,027,131 1,856,483
Current portion BIHAER > 3,517,070 2,572,071
Total borrowings BEMEE 12,880,927 12,320,887
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30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D) 30 SRITREMEBE(E)
The repayment terms of the non-current borrowings are analysed JERNEAEE 2 B EOMTT ¢
as follows:
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREBTT
Wholly repayable within five years AR AFREHEE 4,141,356 4,804,980
Not wholly repayable within five years BARTFERNEHRER 8,249,632 6,800,319
12,390,988 11,605,299

The Group’s non-current borrowings were repayable as follows:

REEZIANHEEAN T HREER

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETIT

Within one year —FR 3,027,131 1,856,483
In the second year FE_F 1,097,883 2,669,692
In the third to fifth year FEZEFERF 3,796,964 3,311,283
After the fifth year AF% 4,469,010 3,767,841
12,390,988 11,605,299

AEERTEAEMEBEZRAMEE
ZUARENE 6O ARE
12,856,662,000 7t (2016 F : A R ¥
11,882,240,0007T) ° 2 TIRTT R EH MG
B ARMB24,265,0007T(2016%F : AR
#438,647,0007T) Jh AR T KRB TTEHE ©

The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other borrowings
are mainly denominated in RMB, totalling of approximately
RMB12,856,662,000 (2016: RMB11,882,240,000). The remaining
bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB24,265,000
(2016: RMB438,647,000) are denominated in EURO and HK$.

The fair value of current borrowings equals their carrying amount, RRER B TEAXR - FIL B AE
as the impact of discounting is not significant. The fair values “‘“E’] A EEREEERSE - AFETD
are based on cash flows discounted using a rate based on the LAEEFI % 4.48% (20164 : 4.39% ) Bh
borrowing rate of 4.48% (2016: 4.39%) and are within level 2 of BHSRERTESE  ERATER
the fair value hierarchy. THE_BHRA -
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30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

All of the bank and other borrowings, other than the obligation
under finance lease, are interest bearing at floating rates. The
effective interest rates of the Group’s HK$-denominated, EURO-
denominated and USD-denominated long-term bank borrowings
are 0.74% per annum (2016: 0.74% per annum), 4.66% per
annum (2016: 4.66%) and nil (2016: 2.66%) respectively. The
effective interest rates of the Group’s RMB-denominated bank
and other borrowings are as follows:

30 RITRHEMEE(ER)

2R/ REMEE (HEREFRER
INBELOF BB R B - AEEETT
BT hkELHEZEHRITEEZE
BREFE DR A0.74% (2016 4F : F 7|
E0.74% ) ~ 4.66% (2016 F : F F| K
4.66% ) Z (2016 : FHR2.66%) o A
EBEMUARBHEZFBITREMERZ
ERFIRNT

2017 2016

20175 20165

Long-term bank borrowings REARITEE 4.73% 4.66%

Long-term other borrowings REHEMEES 2.894% 3.11%

Short-term bank borrowings EAERITEE 4.23% 3.42%

Short-term other borrowings HIEMEE - 4.30%

Obligation under finance lease RhETHEAE 4.42% 4.47%
Notes:

(a) Secured long-term bank borrowings are secured by:
- all investment properties of the Group with carrying amounts of

approximately RMB308,496,000 (2016: RMB308,496,000);

- certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with
carrying amounts of approximately RMB5,840,789,000 (2016:
RMB3,218,493,000);

- accounts receivable with carrying amounts of approximately
RMB692,354,000 (2016: RMB448,365,000); and

- corporate guarantee given by a Member.

(@) BEARBARITEEATIIIAE (R :

- A EBEBEBEBEHARE
308,496,000 7T (2016 4F : AR
308,496,0007T) Z TR E Y%

- A EBEBEBEAHARE
5,840,789,0007T (20164 : ARM
3,218,493,00070) 2 & THE - K
B Rk

-  HEMEEDH AR 692,354,000 7T
) EWBR (2016 4F « AR
448,365,0007T) ¢+ &

- —RBRERREHIARER-
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30 BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (CONT'D)

Notes: (Cont'd)

(b)

(0

(d)

Unsecured long-term bank borrowings amounting to approximately
RMB658,000,000 (2016: RMB738,000,000) are guaranteed by a
Member.

The balance represents entrusted loans amounted to approximately
RMB1,344,160,000 (2016: RMB1,663,883,000) from subsidiaries of a
Member and approximately RMB60,000,000 (2016: RMB60,000,000)
from a joint venture.

As at 31 December 2017, the cost and accumulated depreciation
of property, plant and equipment held by the Group under finance
lease amounted to approximately RMB1,692,773,000 (2016:
RMB1,771,128,000) and RMB417,504,000 (2016: RMB395,635,000)
respectively (Note 15(iv)). The obligation under finance lease is
secured by long-term deposits with carrying amount of approximately
RMB137,171,000 (2016: RMB133,742,000) (Note 22). Included in
the balance was an obligation under finance lease from a subsidiary
of a Member amounted to approximately RMB180,000,000 as at 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB190,000,000).

The rights to the leased assets are reverted to the lessor in the event of
default of the lease liabilities by the Group.

The Group's obligation under finance lease is repayable as follows:

30

Wi

()

RITREMEE (R

ERHARBETEBEOARE
658,000,000 7t ( 2016 &£ : A R ¥
738,000,0007T) J5F — B IR IR AR -

ZERIEREA —BRENHBRARINER
EX - @84 B ARK1,344,160,000 7T
(20164 : AR¥1,663,883,0007T) ¢ BA
LRKE—HEECENZTER - 7L
B AR ¥60,000,0007T (20164F : AREE
60,000,0007T) ©

M20174F128318 » AEBIREBEREMR
ERENVE  BEREENKARR
ST E D RIK A ARYE1,602,773,000 7T
(20164 + AR ®1,771,128,000 L) &
AR #417,504,0007C (201656 « AR
395,635,0007T) (K sE15(iv)) » B E TR &%
FEABREELN AR 137,171,0007L(2016
£ ANR#133,742,0007T) 2 KRR S 1E
B (FIEE22) - BB IER2017F128
NERE —BRENBARNBRERS
AHELH AR H180,000,0007T (20164 : A
FR#190,000,0007T) °

WAKEEREERR  BEEE TN
RESETHAEA ©

AEERERERAEZERBFRNAT

2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARETTT ARETF T

Gross finance lease liabilities — minimum lease payments gt EHE G E4AE — EEMNHEE

FIE
Not later than one year TER—F 266,018 275,996
Later than one year and no later than five years —F B ETNERES 835,045 858,132
Later than five years RFE 222,316 255,114
1,323,379 1,389,242
Future finance charges on finance leases BEMRE 2 KRR L (152,722) (180,204)
Present value of finance lease liabilities REHERERE 1,170,657 1,209,038
The present value of finance lease liabilities is as follows: FiEAEEGERENT

Not later than one year TER—%F 258,275 225,514
Later than one year and no later than five years —FURETNERAESF 731,832 752,590
Later than five years AF% 180,550 230,934
1,170,657 1,209,038
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31 CORPORATE BOND 31 hEEH
2017 2016
20176 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETIT
Non-current liabilities E e UN=Er=
RMB denominated corporate AREGHERN T EES —
bond — unsecured IR 1R 799,363 -
Current liabilities mEEaE
RMB denominated corporate ARBEERNTEES—
bond — unsecured R - 799,343
799,363 799,343
As at 31 December 2017, the balance represents RMB800,000,000 201712 A318 &8 ABRKR2017F5

green corporate bond issued on 22 May 2017, as approved by
National Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors on
23 November 2016, due in May 2020. The bond is unsecured,
carries a fixed coupon rate of 5.5% per annum, with the interest
being payable annually.

As at 31 December 2016, the balance represented
RMB800,000,000 corporate bond issued on 9 January 2012, due
in January 2017. The bond was unsecured and carried an effective
interest rate of 6.78% per annum, with the interest being payable
semi-annually. The Group fully settled the corporate bond in
January 2017.

As at 31 December 2017, the fair value of the corporate
bond amounted to approximately RMB826,317,000 (2016:
RMB824,730,000). The fair value is calculated using cash flows
discounted at a rate based on the borrowing rate of 5.5% (2016:
6.8%) and are within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

F22H%17 AR#800,000,0007T Z 4 8
PEES  R2016511 A3 E2E S
BT EEEREERBTIE - R2020F
SAEIE - ZEHFAERRE  THEERF
FE55% @ WESFZHFFE -

R2016F 12 A31H @ AR AR2012F 1
F9H %77 AR%800,000,0007T 7 1%
&% - N2017F1 AEIE - ZEHAER
15 BEHERFHNE678%  WETEF
TR B - AEBDH2017F1 AEE(E
BREES-

2017128318 » EBHAFED
B AR826,317,0007T(20164F : AR
#824,730,0007T) ° A FETIABEEF
K55% (20164 : 6.8% )AL IRIBL R E
BESY BRATEBHNE _E
WA °
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Deferred income taxes are calculated in respect of temporary
differences under the liability method using the tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
against current income tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes relate to the same tax authority. The following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown in
the balance sheet:

32 EEFREBH
EEFESHRIRBEEEEREEADE
R BER OB R R EREETT
BBEEEBHNITHENREMSHEE
KB EFMEHaERREMSHER
— G HEEEN  RIEMSHEEHR
BEFEAEE - LU TRELHEE EH
BET  UHREEAERTEY

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFT ARETFIT

Deferred income tax assets LTS TR EE 27,180 24,586
Deferred income tax liabilities RS aE (75,286) (112,317)
Net deferred income tax liabilities ELEFEHRaETEE (48,106) (87,731)

The net movements in the net deferred income tax liabilities are as
follows:

BIEFrSIR B E SR FEBMT

2017 2016

201745 20164

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT AREFIT

At 1 January »1ATH (87,731) (56,652)

Credited to the consolidated statement of RecE 2 EWERETA

comprehensive income 2,750 -
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated income RéraUzRat A (F1KR)

statement (Note 10) (K$7E10) 36,875 (31,079)

At 31 December MW12A31H (48,106) (87,731)
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32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

32 EEMSHGE)

221

EXHBEERBERFAZEHIL E
At AR RDAER 2 AR -

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows: FEnR -
Deferred tax assets: IREFHIRE =
Depreciation Tax losses
allowances  and others Total
BKER
TERE REAM et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT ARETT
At 1 January 2017 2017915818 17,357 7,229 24,586
Credited to the consolidated statement of R4F&2EUZERETA
comprehensive income - 2,750 2,750
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated income  R4R& U (F18) /5T A
statement (647) 491 (156)
At 31 December 2017 2017512 A31H 16,710 10,470 27,180
At 1 January 2016 »20165F1 818 18,004 7,229 25,233
Charged to the consolidated income statement A4R4& Kz & INKR (647) - (647)
At 31 December 2016 M2016512 A31H 17,357 7,229 24,586




222

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED

HEENBREFRERERAR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BHRRME

32 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (CONT'D)

32 EEMSH(E)

Deferred tax liabilities: EEHIBALRE !
Withholding
tax for Depreciation
unremitted Fair value  allowances
earnings gains and others Total
KREHERH WERER
BN ARERE Hity st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETTE ARETT
At 1 January 2017 20171 81H (49,716) (42,622) (19,979) (112,317)
Credited to the consolidated REEEERTA
income statement 34,613 1,205 1,213 37,031
At 31 December 2017 »20179F12A318 (15,103) (41,417) (18,766) (75,286)
At 1 January 2016 20161818 (16,866) (43,827) (21,192) (81,885)
(Charged)/credited to the PR (F08),/
consolidated income statement A (32,850) 1,205 1,213 (30,432)
At 31 December 2016 »20165F12A31H (49,716) (42,622) (19,979) (112,317)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit
through future taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December
2017, the Group had unrecognised tax losses of approximately
RMB443,071,000 (2016: RMB379,332,000) for Hong Kong profits
tax purposes with no expiry date and unrecognised tax losses of
approximately RMB401,719,000 (2016: RMB310,715,000) for the
PRC corporate income tax that will expire within five years.

Deferred income tax liabilities to the extent of approximately
RMB91,149,000 (2016: RMB56,573,000) have not been
recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries
because the directors consider that the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Unremitted earnings totalled approximately
RMB1,210,686,000 (2016: RMB1,848,886,000) as at 31
December 2017.

BELEMGSHMEERNBEAMEBENEZRE
AJREB AR R ERT A F E BT 5
EEMIBBBETUER - R20174F
128318 AEEREERAB A
BRERESAERMBABENAR
¥ 443,071,000 76 (2016 F : A R #&
379,332,0007T) * WHLEHHR AFAE M
ZHBEMERES RERBIBEEE
£ NRE401,719,0007T (20164 : AR
#310,715,0007T) °

REBUEARETHBERARZKEHE
FIFE A 2 TE B e E b B TR R SRR A P
BHAEHARE,149,0007T (2016
£ ANR#¥56,573,0007T) © Ty BB
EERAAEE T IEFIGEE R 2 #D
PR - BZERR R AN I8
RAgRER o RIEHZFIN2017F12A4
31 BB AARY1,210,686,0007T
(20164 : AR 1,848,886,0007T) °
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33 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

The carrying amounts of accounts payable approximate their
fair values due to their short maturities. All these payables are
denominated in RMB.

The normal credit period for accounts payable generally ranges
from 60 to 180 days, Ageing analysis of accounts payable is as
follows:

33 FEFERR

MR EAERREHANIE - REEE
BREAFEEE - FEZSENERY
AN RHEEHE -

ENERZ EREEH R AB60E180
B o BNERRZREDITAT

2017 2016

20174 20165

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFIT ARETIT

Current to 3 months BIHAZE31E A 45,970 34,031
7 to 12 months 721218 A - 2
Over 1 year 1960+ 669 720

46,639

34,753
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34 CONSTRUCTION COSTS PAYABLE, OTHER

34

BAZERA - EEANRIE

PAYABLES AND ACCRUED CHARGES RESTER
2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
ARETTT AREBTT
Construction costs payable FES IR SRR AN 1,760,870 1,917,952
Salaries and staff welfare payable B e B T EAFIE 13,942 9,950
Value added tax payable FERIS(ET 31,489 22,825
Repairs and maintenance expenses payable JEHEIE R ERERAY 6,322 1,525
Considerations payable for WEEM B A El 2 I R(E
acquisitions of subsidiaries 89,442 87,757
Other payables and accrued H{h A~ B K e st
operating expenses KRR 34,945 25,325
Interest payable FERTF & 74,846 112,514
Government grants BT & 131,173 54,144
Amounts due to a Member and its B — 2R N EMEB AT
subsidiaries (Note (7)) SRIE(PHEEG)) 14,001 2,865
Amount due to a joint venture (Note (i)) BN —HEaERFENIA
(BFEE() 31,207 20,074
Amounts due to non-controlling interests e IR AR M 25 SRR
(Note (i)) (BEE()) 543 543
2,188,780 2,255,474
Less: Non-current portions B FERNERER
Construction costs payable (Note (i) FEREREER AN
(B &E(in)) (947,656) (976,153)
Government grants BB E (131,173) (54,144)
Current portion ENERER 1,109,951 1,225,177
Denominated in: FHMEER
RMB AR 2,130,007 2,196,410
Others Hity 58,773 59,064
2,188,780 2,255,474
Notes: Bisx
(i) These balances are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. (i) Iy phmE TV 0 B RERER(EE o

(i)  FERRERARIERNEAI A RIBRE R H K
(ii) Non-current portion of construction costs payable will not be payable HBAEALEE AR —FERNE -
within one year from the balance sheet date in accordance with the

terms of the construction agreements.



ANNUAL REPORT 2017
3R 2017

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

225

AR BHEME
35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35 HEBHSRERMT
CASH FLOWS
(a) Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated (a) BMREABEANELETBHRBRESZ
from operations HER
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT AREFIT
Profit before tax B 55 AT ) 560,706 665,154
Adjustments for: FE
Finance costs, net HsER  FRE 515,155 503,807
Depreciation and amortisation e o 884,502 835,980
(Gains)/losses on disposals of property, HEWZE - BB k&
plant and equipment (Wz),/ B8 (207) 43,817
Share of profits of associates FEAEH R AL F (12,752) (9,366)
Share of profits of joint ventures EihEaBETERT (19,946) (36,396)
Gain on disposal of a joint venture HE—FeELE K (10,683) -
BEBERANTEYRZ
Fair value losses/(gains) on financial assets at SRVEENTFEEER,
fair value through profit or loss (Yizs) 78 (1,397)
Operating profit before working LIBEESEBH KL R
capital changes 1,916,853 2,001,599
Increase in inventories HFEHM (20,353) (4,589)
Increase in accounts receivable FEUL R FRIE AN (382,326) (428,188)
Increase in prepayments, AR - e REAER
deposits and other receivables FIBHE M (81,575) (3,428)
Increase in accounts payable A BR FRAE 0 11,886 19,820
Increase in other payables and Hib RN HRIBRIESER
accrued charges #hn 128,601 43,686
Cash generated from operations KEERFE RS 1,573,086 1,628,900
(b) Net debt reconciliation (b) BEFHEIYE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARETIT
Cash and cash equivalents He MRS EMEER 775,703 1,816,761
Liquid investments (Note (i) BN IR (KTEEG)) 7,140 7,216
Borrowings — repayable within one year BE-—AR—FANEE (3,517,070) (3,371,414)
Borrowings — repayable after one year EE—AR—FREE (10,163,220) (9,748,816)
Net debt BEFHE (12,897,447) (11,296,253)
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35 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 35 HMEBSREXRMT(E)
CASH FLOWS (CONT’D)
(b) Net debt reconciliation (Cont’d) (b) EEFEIHIER(E)
Liabilities from
Other assets financing activities
HihEE RETHELZEE
Cash Liquid Borrowings  Borrowings
and cash investments  due within due after
equivalents (Note (i) 1 year 1 year Total
Hek REMRE BE- BE-
HeZEER (MiEHG) R—FREE R-FARIH @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARETT ARBTR ARETT ARETR

Net debt as at 201618182
1 January 2016 EEFE 999,812 5,841 (2,572,071) (9,177,674)  (10,744,092)
Cash flows Reng 816,949 - 1,399,440 (2,995,475) (779,086)
Other non-cash movements HitIER e 28 - 1,375 (2,198,783) 2,424,333 226,925
Net debt as at 31 December 2016 #2016 128318 K&
and 1 January 2017 201718182
BERE 1,816,761 7,216 (3,371,414) (9,748,816)  (11,296,253)
Cash flows HEREINERR (1,041,058) - 1,317,551 (1,876,791) (1,600,298)
Other non-cash movements Hitn R e & - (76)  (1,463,207) 1,462,387 (896)
Net debt as at M2017F12A3182
31 December 2017 EEFE 775,703 7,140 (3,517,070)  (10,163,220)  (12,897,447)
Note: MisE -
(i) Liquid investments comprise current investments that are traded in 0) G EBRENERTIEE S BN
an active market, being the Group’s financial assets held at fair value & AREEERIEFUATLEREZS

through profit or loss. REE -
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36 COMMITMENTS 36 &iE
(a) Capital commitments (a) EAEIE
2017 2016
20174 20165
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETIT AREFIT
Contracted but not provided for in respect of B ET4){E R EE — W% -

— property, plant and equipment e N &iE 2,463,578 1,245,811
(b) Commitments under operating leases (b) REHNT ZEIE
Future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable BB HBELERLD - RAEAKEMEE
operating leases are as follows: FIAX HARZENT -
2017 2016
20176 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFT AREBFIT
Land and buildings T AT
Not later than one year MNER—F 4,448 6,840
Later than one year and —FUBRETNERAF
not later than five years - 4,387

4,448 11,227

The Group's operating leases are for terms of 1 year (2016: 1 to 2 AREE 7 EEHNAPIF(2016F : 12

years). 29F) °
(c) Future operating lease agreements () FRRKF[EHIWHS
Future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non- BIENATREEEZHLY  ARKEER
cancellable operating leases are as follows: MEFIERENOT -
2017 2016
20175 20164
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREBT T AREBT T
Land and buildings T RIEF
Not later than one year TER—F 10,394 9,329
Later than one year and —FLABETERRAF
not later than five years 14,526 18,390
Later than five years AFi% 6 1,710
24,926 29,429
The Group's operating leases are for terms of 1 to 6 years (2016: AEE 2 EMOBPIE6FTE(2016

110 6 years). FE6F) o
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2017, State Power Investment Corporation
Limited and China Three Gorges Corporation Limited held 28.07%
(2016: 28.07%) and 27.10% (2016: 27.10%) equity interests in
the Company respectively. The remaining shares are widely held.

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if
they are subject to common control.

The Group is a state-owned enterprise. In accordance with the
revised HKAS 24, “Related Party Disclosures”, government related
enterprises, other than entities under the Group, which the PRC
government has control, joint control or significant influence over
are also considered as related parties of the Company and its
subsidiaries (“other government-related enterprises”).

The majority of the business activities of the Group are conducted
with other government-related enterprises. For the purpose of
the related party balances and transactions disclosure, the Group
has established procedures to determine, to the extent possible,
the identification of the ownership structure of its customers and
suppliers as to whether they are government-related enterprises.
However, many government-related enterprises have a multi-
layered corporate structure and the ownership structures change
over time as a result of transfers and privatisation programs.
Nevertheless, management believes that all material related party
balances and transactions have been adequately disclosed.

37 BEALXRS

R2017F12 8318 BREHIEESE
BEERARLEFERIZKEEGRA
Al B A AR 7] 28.07% (2016 4F -
28.07% ) }27.10% (20164 : 27.10% )
2 BEiE o FIIR D BIRZAIAREIRE ©

WBE—HBARENEZRXAEEEN S -7
HNMEH M REERERE S — 517
BERFEN  AETHRE SRR
oo RS - BB TRR AR
HERRAE -

AEBREEDLE - REKEBITELE
FHERIFE24RIEEALTHE] KA
SETEBERZIN  ZPEBFES -
HRZEHRERTZENBTARBLET
BRAARBREMBARMEEAL
([EAEATHREADE]D) -

AEERNEERELESEREMBFNA
XA - LEEALTEBRER ST
BME  AKREDEAERILIEF AR
AEEFEHEm I MARERE - 1K)
BEENEREA/SBNMRBLE - Rl
REBTHBELEREZEEANGE
¥ HEMAREEHNBEIMALAE
IMBERENE - EEEERE B
ROBBEAEERBEALERIZS °
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

The following is a summary of significant related party transactions
which, in the opinion of the directors, are entered into in the
ordinary course of the Group’s business in addition to the related
party information shown elsewhere in these consolidated financial
statements. Management of the Group are of the opinion that
meaningful information relating to related party transactions has
been adequately disclosed, and also comply with the disclosure
requirements (where appropriate) in accordance to Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules.

(@) Transactions with related parties

Revenue from heat supply to ) — 2 R R A
an associate KA

Revenue from composite support service to  [A]— &A% R &I MT B A T4t
subsidiaries of a Member e TR RIS WA

Revenue from provision of ERP system to an [A]— RSEE44 A B1E(LERPZ
associate FSl0ll /N

Repair and maintenance and m—RRERAM B AR
power generation expenses to SIS KRR
subsidiaries of a Member BEHRY

Operating lease rental R—fH&EREZ NI
expenses to a joint venture RETBHNEERX

Other operating expenses on provision of  [a]— &A% A B A AR A
ERP system to a subsidiary of a Member ERPE M E b8 & H X

Interest expenses on loans to [0 — BRI E QR
subsidiaries of a Member SR EFF B
Interest expenses on loans m—EEEPEINN
to a joint venture BRI SHAE
Interest expenses on finance leases to [m— & MR AT B A B)
a subsidiary of a Member XA REHERNS
i3

37 BEAXXRZ (&)

BRASR & B B ¥Rk M EL A B8 0 PR R 32
AL ZERSN  MTREBBEALR
PZHE  EERB/RERFIELRE
BEEBBRERITL - AEEEEE
R BEBALIRZ5ERZEERE
HMEERDWE - A EMARAE14A
ERBEERK(ER)

(a) HEHBAEALXRES

2017 2016
20175 20165
Note RMB'000 RMB’000

FisE ARBTTT ARBTTT

0) 15,668 19,161
(ii) 13,592 -
(iii) 351 -
(iv) 1,058 4,861
v) 469 617
(vi) 4,055 -
(vii) 35,966 15,599
(vii) 2,251 117

(viii) 8,596 9,821
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37

(a)

Notes:

(0}

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

Transactions with related parties (Cont'd)

The Group has entered into agreements for revenue from heat supply
to an associate, the terms of which were mutually agreed between the
parties.

The Group has entered into a composite support services agreement
with subsidiaries of a Member, the terms of which were mutually agreed
between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for providing enterprise
resource planning system (“ERP”) to an associate, the terms of which
were mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the provision of repair
and maintenance and power generation services from subsidiaries of a
Member, the terms of which were mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the operating lease rental
from a joint venture, the terms of which were mutually agreed between
the parties.

The Group has entered into agreements for the provision of ERP system
from a subsidiary of a Member, the terms of which were mutually
agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into entrusted loan agreements with subsidiaries
of a Member and a joint venture (Note 30(c)), the terms of which were
mutually agreed between the parties.

The Group has entered into a finance lease agreement with a subsidiary
of a Member (Note 30(d)), the terms of which were mutually agreed
between the parties.

37

(a)
BfaE -

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

BEALXRS(H)

HEEA TR S (H)

AEE B FM — KB E R B AR AT
S - BRGKAR O T EEWE

AEFDR-ZRRNME QR LEE
SEBRB B - BRGTRBETOEHEE
Wi °

AEE DA —ME L ARRECEER
B RAUERP)RT L% - B R IRFNAHET 4
EFHEEWHE

AEECH A —BRRAKNE AR RS
& B2 e B BRG] L% - BRIER
MRTHE T HEHE °

AEFECHA —HaELERHELEED
HERT S H# ARG BETOEEE
WhiE °

AEECHA—BRROME QB RH
ERPRSET L% - BRAGARINETS
HEWRE °

AEER-FZRROMEAR L —HAE
ERET R RS (FE30(0) - BRE
ERBRTB T HEERE °

AEFED R - ZRRNME QR Z/E
HE R (HE300d) - BRGKBETHE
TTREWRE -
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT’D) 37 BEAXLRS(E)
(b) Period-end balances with related parties (b) BEIEATHIRARR
2017 2016
20175 20164
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
BaE AREFIT AREFTT
Included in: A
Cash and cash equivalent RekREFHEIEE
Cash and cash equivalent from a KE—BREAME A
subsidiary of a Member BIZRENRSZE
BH (i) 244,460 269
Accounts receivables FEUBR SR
Accounts receivable from N —REEE R E 2
an associate BRIX (ii) 1,096 1,869
Other receivables H A & WK IR
Amount due from a Member JE W — 2 R R (ii) 24,064 2,679
Amount due from a joint venture el —MEEERERE (i) 31,207 3
Dividend receivable from a joint venture  fEIf—RI&EMERE (i) 22,136 -
Other payables Hth T RIA
Amounts due to a Member and BN —RRRREET
certain of its subsidiaries [ OpEEYNCIP O (i) 14,001 2,865
Amounts due to a joint venture EN—EEEREFRE (i) 31,207 20,074
Amounts due to non-controlling FETIEIERR e 2R SR IR
interests (ii) 543 543
Note: BaE
(i) The balances with related party are unsecured, interest-bearing and (i) HEEATAENEHRAEER AR
repayable on demand. BREREFEE -
(i) The balances with these related parties are unsecured, interest-free and (ii) HZEHBEATEENESRAERT &
repayable on demand. BRAREREFERE -
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37 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONT'D)

(b) Period-end balances with related parties (CONT'D)
Transactions with government-related enterprises

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries sold substantially all their products
to local government-related power grid companies. Please
refer to Note 5 for details of sales information to major power
grid companies. The Company and its domestic subsidiaries
maintained most of its bank deposits in government-related
financial institutions while lenders of most of the Company
and its subsidiaries’ loans are also government-related financial
institutions, associated with the respective interest income or
interest expense incurred.

For the years ended 31 December 2017 and 2016, other
collectively-significant transactions with government-related
enterprises also included a large portion of fuel purchases,
property, plant and equipment construction and related labour
employed.

(c) Key management compensation

Basic salary, housing allowance, EXFHE - R
other allowances and benefits in kind HE b M EMA =

Employer’s contributions to pension scheme — {E F$HiRIRE T B

37 BEALXREZ (&)

(b) BEBEATHIRGER(E)
BT P EETRS
HE2017FNX2016F12A31BIEFE -
A RERANMB AR BEERILD
ERETHHABRNHBEEMAQR - BHE
MEZEMPQRHENERFIBENKH
FE5 c AR REBEAWB AR INEERXR
HORITERTRBITEE S REE -
MARE REWB QR KIS ERHM
BEANMEBRSHEESREE mMESE
EEFBWASF SRS -

HE2017FN2016F12A318IEFE -
Ha BT HBEEETHREEEAR
SIMBIERBLYRENEE - W% - K
EREENERREEFELTHER -

(0 FEEEEMS

2017 2016
20175 20165
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

3,079 2,904
14 14

3,093 2,918
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF 38 FRAREEEERRREESD
THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company KAREEEER
As at 31 December 2017 2017128318
2017
20175
RMB’000
ARETIT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset ERBEE
Interests in a subsidiary NG YNGIPR 2 5,765,264
Current assets MENEEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables — JEfIFXIE « &4 K H b fE UK IE 353
Amount due from a subsidiary A ENGIE ] 198,384
198,737
Total assets BERE 5,964,001
EQUITY =
Share capital R& A 5,746,012
Reserves (Note (a)) (M @)) 211,986
Total equity TR 4R RE 5,957,998
LIABILITIES =i
Current liability MENEE
Amount due to subsidiaries AN NG 6,003
Total equity and liabilities Em kB ERE 5,964,001
Wang Fengxue Zhao Xinyan
TR TS
Director Director

EF EF
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38 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTS OF 38 ARTEEEEBERRRAREED
THE COMPANY (CONT’D) (&)
Note (a) Reserve movements of the Company M@ A R RIfEEES

Share-based

Share compensation Retained
capital reserve earnings Total
BRA  ROBMGERE RERA @t
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AREFTT ARETRT ARETT ARETR
At 8 May 2017 (date of incorporation) $2017F5 A8 A (GEfftpk sz BHER) - - - -
Issue of shares BT 5,746,012 19,252 - 5,765,264
Profit and total comprehensive income HREN R 2R LS
for the period - - 192,734 192,734
At 31 December 2017 72017412 A318 5,746,012 19,252 192,734 5,957,998
39 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 39 #HEMBEREK
The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board AR MIERAREN2018F3 16 EE
of Directors on 16 March 2018. EEHE o
40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMBARZFE

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 () MU TAMR2017F12A31BZEZE
December 2017: [ OPEE/NCIE -

Equity interest

attributable to

Place of establishment the Group
Name of companies and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEEE  Typeof legal entity Principal activities
DA RIREEHH BHR/CRiRE Rags  EEAAER TEER
Interests held directly:
ERGARE:
China Power New Energy Development — BermudaiHong Kong HK$1,186,633,418 100%  Limited iabilty company ~ Investment holdings
Company Limited

HEE T RRRARAR BRE/ER B141,186,633,4187 100%  EBAT RETH

fe=il]
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40

Name of companies

A%

Interests held indirectly:

R -

Lucky Talent Limited
Lucky Talent Limited

Start Bright Interational Limited
ARERARAT

Deluxe Vantage Limited
Deluxe Vantage Limited

AR RERERARLA

AR RERERARLA

China Power (New Energy)
Holdings Limited
RES N (ER RRERL

Green Health Development Company

Limited
GERRYEERLT

BRI R AR ARAT
B RERARAT
ERRHRARARAA

B RARARAA

Place of establishment
and operation
RIREEHS

British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong
ABROEE/BE

British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong
ABROEE/EE

British Virgin Islands/Hong Kong
ABROEE/BE

PRC
R

Hong Kong

mh
=3

Hong Kong
B
PRC
e
PRC
e
PRC

e

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT'D)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017: (Cont'd)

Paid up/issued capital

BHR/BRfikE

1 share of US$1
BESwdiy)

1 share of US$1
BESwdiy)

1 share of US$1
BESwdiy)

RMBG0,000,000
ARH60,000,0007
1 share of HKS 1
1RIETZ R
1 share of HKS 1
1RIETZ R
RMIB162,210,000
NB162,2100007
1$355,000,000
355,000,005 70
RMBG0,000,000

AE560,0000007

235

40 FEMBAFZFHEE)

(i)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
AREEL
ks

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

60%

60%

AT AR2017F12A3MBZEE
WEBARZE : (B)

Type of legal entity
EEATER

Limited fiability company
ARAd

Limited fiability company
ARAd

Limited fiability company
ARAd

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEALR

Limited liability company

ERAR

fe=il]

Limited liability company

ERAR

fe=il]

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Sino-foreign equity joint
venture

FaELR

Principal activities

IERE

Securities trading

-
E5EE

Investrent holdings

BERR

Property holdings
UES

Property holdings
UESE
Investrent holdings
REER
Investrent holdings
REER

Generation and sales of
electricity
A REEES)

Investrent holdings
REMK

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERHEEY
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40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017: (Cont'd)

Place of establishment

Name of companies and operation Paid up/issued capital
N2 RUREEHE BRR/CRIKA
hE (LR ENEATERLT PRC RIIB26,000,000

hE (LR ENERTERLT hE AE%26,000,0007C
HE(BR)ENFRERLT PRC RVB32,750,000
TE(ER)ENFEARDA hE AR %632,750,0007

HRPEERE NEEERAA PRC RVB154,450,000

HRPEERE NEEERLA HE AR 154,450,007
HEREEFEEANREERLT  MRC RVB147,160,000
HEREEFE-ANREERLY  wE AEH147.160,0007

HEREEFECANREERLT  MC RVB1,629,32,455

TRPEEREZAIERARLT  fE NRE1,69.2324557C
TRPEERENEERARAA  PC RMB335,620,000
TRPEERENEEEARLT  fE NRE335,6200007
TRPEEREIANERARLA  PMC RMB56,350,000
TRPEEREIAERARLT  fE AR 56,350,000

HERERALREEERLT PRC RIB158,320,000

HERERALREEERLT HE AE 158,320,007
HERERRNEEARLT PRC RVB175,320,000

HERERREREEERLT HE ARH175,320,0007

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

40 FEMBLTZFEE)

(i)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
AREEL
ey £

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

T AR2017F12A3MBZEE

MEBARRE : (&)

Type of legal entity
EEATER

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Principal activities

IERE

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERN

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD
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e M HRRM

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017: (Cont'd)

Place of establishment

Name of companies and operation Paid up/issued capital
R RIREEHS B#R/ERKA
FERENRAEARLA PRC US$43 435,965
FERENRAEARLA G BHSESET
REAEECABARLA PRC RMB350,000,000
FEAEE_AEARLA G ARH350,000,0007
hEAESEEERRAA PRC RMB428,618,000
hEAEEEERRAA G AR428618,0007
BRERRENARLA PRC RMIB116,800,000
BRERRENARLA G ARE116,800,0007
EYmEIKERRAT PRC RMB122,190,000
EYmEIKERRAT G ARH122,190,0007
RERFERNETARAA PRC RVIB143,821,600
RERFERNETARAT G ARE143,821,6007
ERBETIEKEREERAT PRC RMB520,000,000
BRI EREERAT G ARH520,0000007
BT ERENEERRAT PRC USS21,180,000
BHREERENEERRAA G 21,180,000 7T
HREAEE NEERRAA PRC US$21,600,000
BRI S TARAT G 21,600,000

254

40 FEMBAFZFHEE)

(i)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
AREEL
ks

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

AT AR2017F12A3MBZEE

MEBARRE : (B)

Type of legal entity
EEATER

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Principal activities

IERE

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES)

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERHEEY

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES)

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES)

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERHEEY

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES)

Generation and sales of
electricity
B REEES

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERHEEY
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e M BHRRME

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES
(CONT’D)

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2017: (Cont'd)

Place of establishment

Name of companies and operation Paid up/issued capital
%R RIREEHH BHR/CRRE
ARG TERARAT PRC RMB25,000,000
ARG TERARAT e AEH25,000,0007
BTEREZARAA PRC RMB133,690,000
BTERERARLA e NEH133,690,0007C
BIEERAERERRAT PRC RMB5,000,000
BIEERKERERRAT e ARH5,000,0007C
TIPEAREEARAA PRC RMB71,400,000
TIPEAREEARAA e ARHT1,400,0007
BORERRERL PRC RVIB126,000,000
B ERRARAT e AEH126,000,0007C
MAEHRLIEEERLA PRC RVIB1 11,500,000
A EHRLRERRAT e ARE111,500,0007
RLAERNEEARLA PRC RMB106,340,000
REAERNEEARLA e ARE106,3400007
ErERREEARLA PRC RMB164,000,000
ErERREEARLA e ARE164,000,0007
CERERREEARLT PRC RMB78,330,000
CERERREEARLA e NEH78330,0007

40 FEMBLTZFEE)

(i)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
AREEL
ey £

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

T AR2017F12A3MBZEE
B RRZE  (B)

Type of legal entity
EEATER

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEERLR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Principal activities

IERE

Energy-related project
management
WRREREER

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

EREERD

Generation and sales of
electricity

TREEEN
Generation and sales of

electricity

TREEEN

Development of power plant

LRUEH
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40

Br RS SRR MR

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

(CONT'D)

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31

December 2017: (Cont'd)

Name of companies

A%
ERERRAEARLT

ERERREEARLT
ERMRREEARELLT
ERMRREEARELLT
BRELRETARLT
BRPELRETARLT
BN R RAERARAT

E=1

BN REERARAT
EEhEMMRRRERARLA
EEMEMMRRRERARLA
TEH RSN HAREERAA
TEHEERAHAREERAA
VRS SRRETARAAAA
VR ERRERARALT
R ENSHERATARLA

RN ENERAEERAT

Place of establishment
and operation
RIREEHS

PRC
T

PRC

PRC
R
PRC
T
PRC
R
PRC
T
PRC
R
PRC

e

Paid up/issued capital
B#R/ERKA

RMB130,000,000
AKH130,000,0007
RMBG0,000,000
ARH60,000,0007
RMB220,000,000
AR8220,000,0007C
RMBY 000,000
ARH91,0000007
RMB12,900,000
ARE12,9000007
RMB24,000,000
ARH24000,0007
RMIBS3,400,000
ARB53,400,0007
RMBS0,000,000

AK50,0000007

759

40 FEMBAFZFHEE)

(i)

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
AREEL
ks

100%
100%
86.43%
86.43%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
0%
0%
0%
0%
95.52%

95.52%

AT AR2017F12A3MBZEE

HBATEE :

Type of legal entity
EEATER

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IEEELR

Sino-foreign equity joint

venture

FaELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

JIEEELR

Wholly-owned foreign
enterprise

IIEEELR

Sino-foreign equity joint

venture

FaELR

Sino-foreign equity joint

venture

FiaELR

Sino-foreign equity joint

venture

FeELR

(%)

Principal activities

IERE

Development of power plant
YREEH
Development of power plant
YREEH

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERHEEY

Generation and sales of
electricity

SBRHEEN
Development of power plant
LRAER

Generation and sales of
electricity

YERBEEN
Development of power plant
YREEH

Development of power plant

RAER
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A MR

40 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 40 FEMBARIZFHEGE)
(CONT'D)

(i)  The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 () WU TAER2017F12A3MBZEE
December 2017: (Cont'd) B RRZE  (B)

Equity interest

attributable to
Place of establishment the Group

Name of companies and operation Paid up/issued capital AEEEE  Typeof legal entity Principal activities

DA RUREEHE BAR/BRIRA RAgE  EEAFER TR

FRPERARRERL PRC RMB20,000,000 70%  Wholy-owned foreign ~ Generation and sales of
enterprise electricity

R R AR RERLT e AEH20000,00072 % EEELR TREERS

EEMANESARLT PRC RMB18,000,000 60%  Sinoforeign equityjoint  Generation and sales of
venture electricity

REEMEKERARAA e NR18,000,00072 0%  FIRELR TREERS

EAnEENERSERAT PRC RIB30,000,000 100%  Wholl-owned foreign ~ Development of power plant
enterprise

BRENESEARLT PE ARH30,000,00072 100%  SEEELE LRAER

HERERRATERLA PRC RMBS,000,000 51%  Sinoforeign equityjoint  Development of power plant
venture

HEPERRYEERLT P& NE58,000,0007C 5% WaBlE LRAER

BN ERRETERLT PRC RIMB91,670,000 100%  Wholl-owned foreign ~ Development of power plant
enterprise

BT ERRYTARL e NRH91,6700007 0%  SEEELR LRAEH

RERERRESERAA PRC RMB59,050,000 100%  Wholl-owned foreign ~ Generation and sales of
enterprise electricity

AT EKERARAA PE NEH69,050,0007C 0%  SEFELR TREEES

e RRRREERRLA PRC RB5,000,000 100%  Wholl-owned foreign ~ Development of power plant
enterprise

P ERRRRETARLA PE NRH5,000,0007C 0%  SEFELR LRAEH

Zehnte Windpark Support Germany EUR03,000 100%  Wholly-owned foreign Generation and sales of

GmbH & Co. KG enterprise electricity
Zefnte Windpark Support e 300087 0%  IEBELE ShEESS

GmbH & Co. KG

(i)  As at 31 December 2017 and for the year ended 31 iy  M2017F12 A31H REHE2017F

December 2017, there were no significant non-controlling NABELEE  AEFEHEA
interests of the subsidiaries in the Group (2016: Nil). T EE A JEE IR AE RS (20164 ¢

&) -
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Yearended Yearended Yearended Yearended Year ended
31 December 31 December 31December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
BR2017F  #HZ2016F #HZ20155 HZ2014F  HZ20135
12A31H 12H31H 12A31H 12H31H 12A31H
LEE HEE HEE tFE HEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL ARETTL ARETL AREFTL ARETTL
Revenue and tariff LONYER &
adjustment 4,820,975 4,726,592 2,404,602 2,344,381 2,187,530
Operating profit REE R 1,043,163 1,123,199 647,180 745,641 628,926
Profit before tax BE AR A 560,706 665,154 210,943 376,910 334,979
Income tax expense iyl (156,860) (264,504) (103,480) (97,279) (57,702)
Profit for the year FREF 403,846 400,650 107,463 279,631 277,277
Attributable to: BE
Equity holders of ARARRFEA
the Company 401,702 404,536 108,228 274,791 257,379
Non-controlling interests JEER 2,144 (3,886) (765) 4,840 19,898
Earnings per share for BERARARERIFEA
profit attributable to FEAE &N 2 BREN
equity holders of the (AR®)
Company (RMB) 0.3385 0.3409 0.0913 0.2363 0.2241
Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests BE AERFERER
As at As at As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31December 31 December 31 December
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
R2017E R2016% R2015% 20145 R20135F
12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H 12A31H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
Non-current assets ERBEE 21,425,787 19,924,235 18,572,913 16,313,260 14,276,804
Current assets THEE 3,161,770 3,935,123 2,793,677 2,482,573 3,277,417
Total assets BEHE 24,587,557 23,859,358 21,366,590 18,795,833 17,554,221
Current liabilities MEBERE (4,716,526)  (4,694526)  (2,632,038)  (2,900,565)  (3,064,335)
Non-current liabilities ERBAE (11,317,335)  (10,891,430)  (10,863,932) (8,068,213) (6,978,301)
Net assets EESE 8,553,696 8,273,402 7,870,620 7,827,055 7,511,585
Non-controlling interests kg 99,268 70,565 36,554 24,373 196,055
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GLOSSARY

7 58

13th Five-Year Plan
+=3

2017 AGM
2017 FRAFAE

2018 AGM
2018 R AFAE
Articles

ZRMA

biomass

E¥E

Board

E

Bye-laws
AR R

CG Code
(R

Companies Ordinance
NEMED

Company or CPCE
RRTFHHEFREER
CPNE

EHREIR

Group
REH

Hainan Bo'ao Lecheng Company

EIIEE YN

Hainan Bo'ao Lecheng Project

ETEIEE R E

HKEx
A S P AD A5

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

the Outline of the 13th Five-Year Plan for the National Economic and
Social Development of the PRC for the period between 2016 and 2020
FEBEREEMHEERET=MAFREME - £ILRHE : 20165
%2020

the annual general meeting of CPNE held on 19 May 2017
BETRLIRN 20175 A19RBRT IRRAFKE

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held on 28 June
2018
ARAINGHR20185F6 A28 A BIT 2 RRAFAE

the articles of association of the Company

ARBWERZAR

plant material, vegetation or agricultural waste that is used as a fuel or
energy source

FRYERREL SREIRHOTE D IR AT - R SR S BE Y

the board of directors
g

the bye-laws of CPNE
B RAVAEE

Corporate Governance Code, contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules

EEERTA - R AR

the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws of Hong Kong)
BEEDIE622F N REAI

China Power Clean Energy Development Company Limited

TREENBRERERERAA]

China Power New Energy Development Company Limited

hEE S EERERAR AR

the Company and its subsidiaries (including CPNE)
KA REWBAR(BEFEHER)

Hainan Bo’ao Lecheng Development Holdings Company Limited

SRR ERER AR

Bo’'ao Lecheng International Medical and Tourism Pilot Zone
Development Project in Hainan, the PRC

SRR R B RIRELETRAEIAR

Stock Code on the Stock Exchange
B 32 P AL A7 R 51%
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Tk

HKSFC

%/Eu Eﬁ%
installed capacity
R E

kw

TR

kWh

TR

Listing Rules
EARA

Model Code

fZ=AE<F Al

Member/Shareholder
B

MW
KB

MWh
KRB

NEEQ
= IRAD 5

Post-Listing Share Option Scheme
Fig BB S

Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme
RIS 8

PRC
F

243

The Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong

ERERAFIHEEREREZES

the capacity of a power generation unit that has been completely
assembled or erected

BEEREKNERNEERENTE

kilowatt, a unit of energy

BEREN - TR

a unit of energy. One kilowatt-hour (kWh) is equivalent to one kilowatt
of power that would be produced by a power generator in one hour

BESREENT o 1 FREBEENBESIREN N EREEITRNES

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B P LR A

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers,
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHBETAZBRETESFRZNRETR - &0 LW RAIMEET

a person (including but not limited to natural person) who hold the
shares

AR AL (BREENRREAA)

megawatt, a unit of energy. 1 MW = 1,000 kW
BEIREAL - JKR © 1JKFL=1,000F &

a unit of energy. One megawatt-hour (MWh) is equivalent to one
megawatt of energy that would be produced by a power generator for
one hour of time

BEREN - VERRESNEBHREV NS AEEVKENEE

Stock Code on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations

EERPEERNEREZGRDER

the share option scheme of CPCE adopted on 8 June 2017 and passed
by an ordinary resolution in the general meeting of CPNE held on 7 July
2017

720176 A8 R R T &5 RaLIRIE T & - w2017 7A7H
ZHEMRERRREAG AT ERERR

the pre-listing share option scheme of CPCE adopted on 8 June 2017
201746 A8 R ERNH) BB RALIR L Al iE AT 21

the People’s Republic of China
i AR HFE
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GLOSSARY
Bk

Reorganisation Proposal

BEAE

Scheme
HE

SFO
B MR R

SNPTC
BERZE

SPIC
BxEX

SSEC
EARPRBAD SR

Stock Exchange
Bt 32 P

SZSE
R P B AD H55%

CHINA POWER CLEAN ENERGY DEVELOPMENT COMPANY LIMITED
HEENBREFRERERAR

the proposal of change of the holding company of the Group from
CPNE to CPCE, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, by way of the Scheme which became effective on 17 July 2017,
and CPCE has replaced CPNE as the listing vehicle since 18 July 2017
BB ERBAEENZERAFTATENEREERTEBRER(NE
ABEMAZ 2 BRARDHIER » sHEIER2017F7 A17BER - W
BFRRN2017F7 18 MK TR - KA LHEE

a scheme of arrangement pursuant to section 99 of the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended) involving, among other things,
the cancellation of all CPNE's shares in issue at the record time (14 July
2017), with details provided in the scheme document of CPNE published
on 14 June 2017
EIRIBEAREI1BIFRRNE(KIER]) BFET 2 Ha i - B R(H
B )T R R RN SR (2017F7 A 14R ) B8R 2 BITHFN
B, - FBEU282017F6 A 148 P EHEEREH 2 5181304

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong
Kong)
BBEPIFEST1 EEFH LA E {55

State Nuclear Power Technology Corporation
BRZ BRI A A

State Power Investment Corporation Limited
HREHIREEEBRAF]

Stock Code on the Shanghai Stock Exchange
EEESRFFRMO R

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMARSMARAR

Stock Code on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange
RYFBHZ 5 PR DR
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Development Company Limited
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